
 

 

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 

1301 81ST AVENUE N.E. 

AGENDA 

MONDAY, JULY 20, 2015 

7:00 P.M. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

4. ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA 

5. CONSENT AGENDA: 

A. Approval of Minutes – July 6, 2015 

B. Disbursements: 

1.   General Operations Disbursement Claim No. 15-11 – $787,392.93 

2.   Liquor Fund Disbursement Claim No. 15-12 - $212,562.67  

C. Renewal Application for Optional 2 AM License – Biff’s Billards Sports Bar 

D. Contractor’s Licenses 

E. Sign Permits 

F. Correspondence 

6. DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

7. PRESENTATIONS 

A. 2015 MS4 Permit Annual Public Meeting 

B. 2014 Audit Presentation – Jason Miller, Smith Schafer & Associates  

8. POLICE REPORT 

9. PARKS AND RECREATION REPORT 

10. ORDINANCE AND RESOLUTIONS 

A.  Ordinance 417 – Liquor Ordinance Update 

11. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Consideration of SunShare Community Solar Proposal 

B. Authorization to Begin Testing Process for Police Officer Position 

C. Accept Maureen Goertz Resignation and Authorize Recruitment of Position 

12. ENGINEER’S REPORT 

13. ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

14. OTHER 

A.  Multi-City Residential Recycling Drop Off Day 

B.  Administrator Reports 

15. ADJOURN 

 

SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR RULES FOR PUBLIC HEARING 

AND DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

 





  OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, the regularly scheduled meeting of the Spring Lake Park City Council 

was held on July 6, 2015 at the Spring Lake Park Community Center, 1301 81st Avenue N.E., at 7:00 P.M. 

 

1.  Call to Order 

 

Mayor Hansen called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 

 

2.  Roll Call 

 

Members Present: Councilmembers Mason, Nash, Nelson, Wendling and Mayor Hansen 

 

Members Absent: None 

 

Staff Present: Police Chief Ebeltoft; Public Works Director Randall; Building Official Brainard; 

Attorney Carson; Engineer Gravel; Park and Recreation Director Rygwall; and 

Executive Assistant Gooden 

 

Visitors: Olivia Koester, ABC Newspaper 

 Larry Johnson, Emmanuel Christian Center 

 Tim Sanders, Emmanuel Christian Center 

   

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4.  Additions or Corrections to Agenda - None 

 

5.  Discussion From The Floor -  None 

 

6.  Consent Agenda: 

 

Mayor Hansen reviewed the following Consent Agenda items: 

 

A. Approval of Minutes – June 15, 2015 

B. Statement of Fund Balance – May 2015 

C. Contractor’s Licenses 

D. Sign Permits 

E. Contractor Payment #1 – 2015 Sealcoat Project 

F. Contractor Payment #8 – 2014-2015 Street Improvement Project 

G. Correspondence 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER NASH APPROVING THE CONSENT AGENDA.  ROLL CALL 

VOTE:  ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 

7.  Public Works Report 

 

Public Works Director Randall reported that the Public Works Department prepared for and cleaned up for 

Tower Days; continue to mow and weed at the parks; prepare the softball fields daily; recoated the basketball 

courts at Terrace park; painted crosswalk and stop bars on the streets; continue to clean out the sewers and 

reports that the Public Works Department will be reporting out of the new Public Works building starting on 

Wednesday, July 8, 2015.  



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 2 July 6, 2015 

 

8. Code Enforcement Report 

 

Building Official Brainard reported that he attended the Council meeting on June 1st; a Department Head 

meeting on June 2nd and June 16th; a Fire Department Marshals Meeting on June 11th; a meeting with Convoy 

of Hope with Chief Ebeltoft on June 12th and a code review meeting on June 24th with Substance Church DBA 

Architects and General Contractor Superintendent from McGough. 

 

Mr. Brainard stated that in June 2015, 51 permits were issued compared to 43 permits in 2014.  He reported 

that he conducted 93 inspections in June. 

 

Mr. Brainard reported that the June 2015 vacancy listing shows that there are 21 vacant/foreclosed residential 

properties currently posted and/or soon posted by the Code Enforcement Department, which remains the same 

from last month. There are 3 vacant/foreclosed commercial properties, which is up one from last month; and 

19 residential properties currently occupied and ready for Sheriff sale, which is up three from last month.  He 

reported that 18 violation notices were issued in June by the Code Enforcement Department. He reported that 

five administrative offense tickets were issued. 

 

Mr. Brainard provided a handout for Spring Lake Park residents to remind them of some of the maintenance 

standards for the outside of their property. 

 

9.  Ordinances and Resolutions 

 

A.  Resolution 15-15 for Hearing on Proposed Assessment for 81st Avenue NE between Able Street NE and   

      University Avenue NE 

 

Mayor Hansen reported that with the near completion of the 2015 Street Improvement Projects, staff is seeking 

authority from the City Council to set the assessment hearings.  She stated that all hearings are scheduled for 

7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter, on August 17, 2015 at City Hall.  She reported that the notice of hearings will 

be published and mailed notices will be sent to affected property owners at least two weeks prior to the hearing. 

 

Mayor Hansen stated that the assessments are payable in equal annual installments over a period of 10 years at 

an interest rate of 3.5%. She stated the assessment rates for all three projects are $3,079.55/lot for single family 

residential and $62.88/front foot for commercial properties. 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER NELSON TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 15-15 FOR HEARING ON 

PROPOSED ASSESSMENT FOR 81ST AVENUE NE BETWEEN ABLE STREET NE AND UNIVERSITY 

AVENUE NE.  ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

B.  Resolution 15-16 for Hearing on Proposed Assessment for Arthur Street between 81st Avenue NE and  

      Anoka CSAH 35 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER NELSON TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 15-16 FOR HEARING ON 

PROPOSED ASSESSMENT FOR ARTHUR STREET BETWEEN 81ST AVENUE NE AND ANOKA 

CSAH 35. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

 

 

 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 3 July 6, 2015 

 

C.  Resolution 15-17 for Hearing on Proposed Assessment for East Trunk Highway 65 Service Road between   

      Osborne Road and a Point Approximately 800 Feet North of Osborne Road NE 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER NELSON TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 15-17 FOR HEARING ON 

PROPOSED ASSESSMENT FOR EAST TRUNK HIGHWAY 65 SERVICE ROAD BETWEEN 

OSBORNE ROAD AND A POINT APPROXIMATELY 800 FEET NORTH OF OSBORNE ROAD NE. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

10.  New Business 

 

A.  Special Event Permit for Convoy of Hope Minneapolis – August 1, 2015 

 

Building Official Brainerd reported that on June 23, 3015, Mr. Tim Sanders from Emmanuel Christian Center 

applied for a Fire Permit as required for all special events with temporary indoor or outdoor assemblies and 

temporary use of tents in excess of 200 square feet or canopies in excess of 400 square feet are allowed with a 

fire inspection permit and Council review. 

 

Mr. Brainerd reported that the proposed special event is called “Convoy of Hope” sponsored by several local 

churched including Emmanuel Christian Center.  He stated that the special event is to be held at the Spring 

Lake Park High School Baseball Field on Saturday, August 1, 2015.  He stated that event could see as many as 

10,000 participants as a collaborate effort to provide thousands of struggling people in the surrounding 

communities with necessities such as prayer, groceries, shoes, health services, job and career services, family 

portraits, games and activities for children, all for no charge.  He stated that staff has waived the $50 Fire Permit 

fee due to the fact it is a non-profit event. 

 

Mr. Brainerd reviewed the following required submittals for the Fire Permit: 

 

 1. Provide two copies of a detailed site or floor plan showing the seating arrangement, exits and 

 locations of portable fire extinguishers. One approved copy must remain on site at all times. 

 2.  Provide a detailed description of all activities that will be occurring, the hours of the event and the 

 approximate number of participants. 

 3.  Provide a certificate, executed by an approved testing laboratory, certifying the flame resistance of 

 materials used to construct the tent with NFPA Standard 701. 

 

Mr. Brainerd stated that all submittals have been reviewed and approved with the following conditions to be 

verified by a pre-event inspection conducted on Friday, July 31, 2015. 

 

 1.  Estimated maximum occupancy at one time is 3,000 participants. 

 2.  Documentation must be provided showing all draperies, decorative fixtures, and other fabrics and    

                   materials have been treated with an approved fire retardant material. 

 3.  When more than 300 loose seats, folding chairs or similar seating is provided, chairs must be bonded                       

                   together in groups not less than three. This is not necessary for seating around tables. 

 4.  All tents and canopies must have a permanently attached label stating the material is fire retardant. 

 5.  No tents shall be located within 12 feet of lot lines, structures, other tents, parked vehicles or internal  

                   combustion engines expect as noted in IFC 2403.2.2.3. 

 6.  Cooking installations require separate permit and approval from Anoka County Health &     

                   Environmental service. 

 7.  Outdoor cooking shall not be performed within 20 feet of tent. 

 8.  An electrical permit is required for all temporary electrical installation and a pre-event inspection     



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 4 July 6, 2015 

 

                   to be conducted on July 31, 2015. 

 9.  All L.P. gas must be secured outside of a tent with the following separations:   

   Containers: < 500 gallons – 10’ 

     >500 gallons – 25’ 

 10.  Flammable liquids shall be stored outside not less than 50-feet from tent. 

 11.  Generators shall be at least 20 feet from tents and secured from public access. 

 12.  Vegetation and waste materials shall be kept a minimum of 30-feet from tent. 

 13.  Post “No Smoking” signs at all tents. 

 14.  Open flame or other cooking devices utilizing flammable or combustible liquids, gas or charcoal 

        are not permitted inside or within 20’ of tent. 

 15.  Fireworks are not permitted within 100-feet of tent. 

 

Councilmember Mason inquired if vendors would provide food.  Tim Sanders, Emmanuel Christian Center, 

stated that the food will be prepared by volunteers and will include grilled hot dogs kept in a warmer and bottled 

water. He stated there would be no outside vendors attending. 

 

Councilmember Wendling inquired on the garbage disposal plans during the event.  Mr. Sanders stated that 

Walters Recycling will have trash containers on site and volunteers will be emptying the containers throughout 

the day. 

 

Councilmember Nash expressed his concern with the number of participants expected and where the parking 

will take place since the high school has less than 700 spaces.  Mr. Sanders stated that the parking situation is 

still being worked out.  He stated that a shuttle service from the Sports Center in Blaine will be provided and 

participants are encouraged to park at Northtown Mall near the bus area and shuttles will take participants to 

the high school.   

 

Councilmember Mason inquired if there will be an admission fee. Mr. Sanders stated that this is a free event. 

He reported that Convoy of Hope provides disaster relief and quick recovery during disasters. He stated that all 

the events are free and made available from fundraising and local businesses.  He stated that these types of 

events are held to promote volunteerism and as a stepping-stone to help those less fortunate. 

 

Police Chief Ebeltoft commented that he has been working with Convoy of Hope organizers for all procedures 

including severe weather, traffic and code enforcement. He stated that this event would be similar to the parade 

that is held annually but on a larger scale.  He reported that he will be reaching out to the other law enforcement 

communities for assistance that day and especially the Fridley Police Department since they already provide 

traffic control to Emmanuel Christian Center for their services. 

 

Councilmember Nash inquired if EMT and Paramedic staff will be aware of pathways for easy access.  Chief 

Ebeltoft stated that there will be access for the EMT and paramedic staff. Mr. Sanders added that Min-Care 

personnel will be on site. 

 

Councilmember Nelson inquired if a Joint Powers Agreement is necessary with the surrounding communities 

for their assistance for safety should it be needed and he inquired who would be responsible to the payment to 

the other agencies if needed.  Chief Ebeltoft stated that the Joint Powers Agreement already in place covers 

events like this. Attorney Carson stated that is it understood that every agency involved covers their own costs. 

 

Police Chief Ebeltoft stated that Convoy of Hope and Emmanuel Christian Center have insurance in place.  Mr. 

Sanders confirmed and stated that he was not aware of the current limit. Attorney Carson asked that a copy of 

the Certificate of Insurance be sent to the City for his review. 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 5 July 6, 2015 

 

Councilmember Nelson inquired if this an annual event.  Mr. Sanders stated that he hopes that in future Convoy 

of Hope will choose Spring Lake Park again. He stated that the organization changes locations and depending 

on the results from this year, it will determine the need in the community for another event. 

 

Councilmember Mason inquired on the hours of the event. Mr. Sanders stated the event will run from 9 AM – 

4 PM however, in the past participants have lined up much earlier. He stated volunteers will be on site form 6 

AM – 6 PM. 

 

MOTION MADE BY COUNCILMEMBER MASON TO APPROVE SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT FOR 

CONVOY OF HOPE MINNEAPOLIS ON AUGUST 1, 2015 SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AND THE 

CONTINGENT OF SATISFACTORY INSURANCE COVERAGE SUBMITTED FOR THE EVENT. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

B.  City Hall Facility Use Permit 

 

Parks and Recreation Director Rygwall reported that the City regularly receives calls from residents who are 

looking for a space to hold special events indoors.  She stated that often times a park building works for their 

event; however, with some occasions such as a bridal shower rea, a park building is less than ideal.  She 

explained that the City Administrator Buchholtz asked Executive Assistant Gooden and herself to conduct a 

survey of surrounding communities as to their policies and fees charged for facility use.  She provided a 

summary of the results and the results showed an average hourly rate of $26/hour for residents and $43/hour 

for non-residents, with staff present. Ms. Rygwall also presented the rules to be included in the proposed facility 

use policy. 

 

Ms. Rygwall stated that the facility use permit fee has two options for the Council to consider. 

 

 Option 1: $60/day for resident use only, no staff present. 

 Option 2: $25/hour resident, $40/hour non-resident, with staff present. A building supervisor 

would be hired, on an as needed basis and paid for from the permit fee. 

 

Councilmember Wendling inquired as to how many people the room could accommodate and if there are 

adequate restroom facilities.  Mr. Rygwall stated that Council Chambers B would be the only room available 

to be reserved and it will hold 30 people. She stated that the restrooms are adequate considering larger events 

have been held at City Hall. 

 

Councilmember Wendling inquired if there would be any food preparation done on site. Ms. Rygwall stated 

that only prepared food could be brought in and there would be no food preparation done at City Hall. 

 

Councilmember Nelson inquired if option number one applied to non- profit organizations.  Ms. Rygwall stated 

that non-profit organizations would not have a fee and no staff present. 

 

Mayor Hansen stated she was in favor of option number two. 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO ADOPT CITY HALL FACILITY USE PERMIT WITH 

OPTION NUMBER TWO. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

 

 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 6 July 6, 2015 

 

C.  Approve Agreement for Purchase of Wetland Credits for CSAH 35 Turn Lane Project 

 

City Engineer Gravel reported that he is finalizing plans for the CSAH 35 turn lane and sidewalk project, which 

is a requirement of the Substance Church Special Use Permit.  He stated that the improvements will result in 

wetland impacts and the wetland impacts must be addressed through the purchase of wetland credits.  He stated 

that approval of the agreement will authorize the purchase of the needed wetland credits.  He stated that since 

this is part of the required CSAH 35 turn lane/sidewalk project, Substance Church will be responsible for this 

cost. 

 

Councilmember Nelson inquired what will be done since there is already water pooling in this area and  if the 

flooding would become worse, who would be responsible.  Engineer Gravel stated that he does not see a greater 

impact with this impact to the wetland. He stated that the City would be responsible if there would be issues 

since it be a result of the storm sewer. 

 

Councilmember Nelson inquired if a culvert would be needed in the area to prevent future flooding and inquired 

who would be responsible for creating this.  City Attorney Carson stated that Substance Church would not be 

responsible since there is not any specific wording in the special use permit.  Engineer Gravel stated that he 

does not see a problem since there will be the six-foot sidewalk that will be feathered into the wetland area and 

is north of the building. 

 

MOTION MADE BY COUNCILMEMBER WENDLING TO APPROVE AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE 

OF WETLAND CREDITS FOR CSAH 35 TURN LANE PROJECT. ROLL CALL VOTE: AYES 

COUNCILMEMBERS MASON, NASH, WENDLING. VOTING NAY: COUNCILMEMBER NELSON 

AND  MAYOR HANSEN. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

D. Appoint Student Member to Planning and Zoning Commission 

 

Mayor Hansen reported that Vince Smith, Chair of the Planning and Zoning Commission, worked with High 

School Counselor Donald Fineran to find interested students to fill the student position on the Planning and 

Zoning Commission. She stated that one student, Gabriel Strawn, expressed interest.  She stated that Chair 

Smith and City Administrator Buchholtz interviewed Mr. Strawn on Monday, June 15, 0215 and came away 

very impressed.  She stated that Administrator Buchholtz recommends the City Council to appoint Mr. Strawn 

as the 2015-2016 student member of the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

 

MOTION MADE BY COUNCILMEMBER MASON TO APPOINT STUDENT GABRIEL STRAWN TO 

THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

11.  Engineers Report 

 

Engineer Gravel reported that the 2015 Seal Coat Project work has been completed and a second sweeping and 

pavement makings will be completed in the next week or two.  He stated that the majority of the work has been 

completed for the 2014-2015 Street Improvement Project and a few items remain on the punch-list.  He stated 

that seeding items need to be addressed by the contractor. 

 

12. Attorney’s Report - None 

 

 

 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 7 July 6, 2015 

 

13.  Reports  

 

Mayor Hansen reported that Fire Chief Zikmund has requested the meeting with the City Council members at 

their convenience. She suggested Monday, July 20, 2015 at 6:00 PM at City Hall. Executive Assistant Gooden 

will confirm with Chief Zikmund to see if that time is available and will let the Council know. 

 

14.  Other 

 

A.  Motion to Close Meeting to Review Settlement Proposal for Arbitration (Pending Litigation) 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO CLOSE THE COUNCIL MEETING TO REVIEW 

SETTLEMENT PROPOSAL FOR PENDING LITIGATION. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION 

CARRIED. 

 

The Council meeting closed at 8:05 PM. 

 

The Council meeting resumed at 8:20 PM.  

 

City Attorney Gravel reported that the Council met on a possible settlement with pending litigation. He stated 

that the Council reviewed the proposal from employee Gary King and the City Council has agreed to enter the 

agreement entitled Separation and Release from all claims against the City of Spring Lake Park and Gary King 

if  there is a satisfactory motion made. 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO EXECUTE THE SEPARATION AGREEMENT WITH 

EMPLOYEE GARY KING. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

15.  Adjourn 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER MASON TO ADJOURN.  VOICE VOTE:  ALL AYES.  MOTION 

CARRIED. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:23 P.M. 

 

 

 

       __________________________________ 

       Cindy Hansen, Mayor  

Attest: 

 

 

________________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 



 





















 





 





 























MS4 Permit Annual Public Meeting July 20, 2015

1

City of Spring Lake Park
July 20, 2015

2015 MS4 Permit Annual Public Meeting

Municipal Separate Storm 
Sewer Systems (MS4)
• Owned by a State, City, 

Village, or Other Public Entity 
that Discharges to Waters of 
the U.S.

• Designed or used to Collect or 
Convey Stormwater

• Not a combined sewer
• Not part of a Publicly Owned 

Treatment Works (sewage 
treatment plant)

What is an MS4?

Who is Involved with Stormwater Management 
Regulation in Spring Lake Park?

Federal Programs

Watershed 
Management
Organizations

State of 
Minnesota

Minnesota Pollution 
Control Agency
• NPDES MS4 Permit
• NPDES Construction 

Stormwater Permit
• NPDES Industrial Permit

• Coon Creek 
Watershed 
District

• Rice Creek 
Watershed 
District

• Metropolitan 
Council

• Department of 
Natural Resources

• State Board of 
Water and Soil 
Resources (BWSR)

Stormwater Regulatory Documents that 
Impact Municipal Operations

NPDES MS4 Permit
Stormwater 

Pollution Prevention 
Plan Document

Watershed 
Management

Plans and Rules

Local Surface 
Water 

Management 
Plan

Basic Components of the MS4 Permit

1. Public Education and Outreach

2. Public Participation and Involvement

3. Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination

4. Construction Site Storm Water Runoff Control

5. Post-Construction Storm Water Management

6. Pollution Prevention and Good Housekeeping for 
Municipal Operations

6 Minimum Control Measures
Examples of Pollutant Sources

Organic Waste Illicit Discharges

Construction Runoff Chemical Application



MS4 Permit Annual Public Meeting July 20, 2015

2

How Spring Lake Park Currently Complies 
with the MS4 Permit.

• Partnerships with Watersheds
• City Ordinance and LWMP Requirements
• Implement Enforcement Response Procedures
• Storm Sewer System Map
• Stormwater Related Brochures and Articles
• MS4 Permit Annual Public Meeting
• Inspections (Illicit discharge, Construction, and MS4 System)
• Provide a Plan Review Checklist
• Street Sweeping
• Staff Training
• Facilities Inventory Assessment
• Pond Assessment
• MS4 Annual Reports

Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan Document

Questions?















CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014





PAGE
INTRODUCTORY SECTION

Elected and Appointed Officials i

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditor's Report 1

Management's Discussion and Analysis 3
Basic Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements

Statement of Net Position 17

Statement of Activities 18

Fund Financial Statements
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 22

Reconciliation of Net Position in the Government-wide

Financial Statements and Fund Balances in the Fund

Basis Financial Statements 25

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 26
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 

and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Activities 29

Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balance - 

Budget and Actual - General Fund 30

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds 34
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in

Net Position - Proprietary Funds 37

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds 38

Notes to Financial Statements 43

Combining Nonmajor Fund Statements and Schedules

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 77
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 78

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 80

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 82

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Debt Service Funds 84
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances - Nonmajor Debt Service Funds 86

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds 88

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances - Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds 92

OTHER REPORT SECTION

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 99

Schedule of Findings and Responses 101

Independent Auditor's Report on Minnesota Legal Compliance 103

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2014

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



This Page Left Blank Intentionally



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

INTRODUCTORY SECTION

DECEMBER 31, 2014



This Page Left Blank Intentionally



i

POSITION NAME TERM EXPIRES

ELECTED OFFICIALS

City Council:

Mayor Cindy Hansen December 31, 2014

Council Member Robert Nelson December 31, 2016
Council Member Larry Raymond December 31, 2014

Council Member Jeanne Mason December 31, 2014
Council Member Bill Nash December 31, 2016

APPOINTED OFFICIALS

City Administrator, 
   Clerk-Treasurer Daniel R. Buchholtz Continuous

Accountant Peggy Anderson Continuous

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS

December 31, 2014



This Page Left Blank Intentionally



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

FINANCIAL SECTION

DECEMBER 31, 2014



This Page Left Blank Intentionally



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Members of
the City Council

City of Spring Lake Park

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Spring Lake Park, as of 
and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.  Accordingly, 
we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting principles 
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions.

Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Spring Lake Park, as of December 31, 2014, and the 
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the budgetary 
comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America.



2

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Spring Lake Park
Page 2

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 13 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in appropriate operational, economic or historical context.  We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City of Spring Lake Park's basic financial statements.  The introductory section and combining 
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements listed in the Table of Contents are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and 
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the combining and 
individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole.

The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 26, 2015, on 
our consideration of the City of Spring Lake Park's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.  
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not provide an opinion on the internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of Spring Lake Park's internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance.

Maplewood, Minnesota
June 26, 2015



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

3

As management of the City of Spring Lake Park, we offer readers of the City's financial statements 
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Spring Lake Park for the 
fiscal year ended December 31, 2014. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

 The assets of the City of Spring Lake Park exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most 
recent fiscal year by $21,760,866 (net position). Of this amount, $8,107,802 (unrestricted net 
position) may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors in 
accordance with the City's fund designations and fiscal policies.

 The City's total net position decreased by $1,002,314. The decrease is attributed to 
governmental activities.

 As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Spring Lake Park’s governmental funds 
reported combined ending fund balances of $5,413,289, an increase of $977,935 from the 
prior year.

 At the end of the current fiscal year, fund balance for the general fund was $1,560,403, or 
39.8% of total general fund expenditures.  

 The City's total noncurrent liabilities increased by $1,862,748 due primarily to the issuance of 
the 2014A general obligation improvement bonds.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Spring Lake 
Park’s basic financial statements. The City's basic financial statements are comprised of the 
following three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, providing information for the 
City as a whole, 2) fund financial statements, providing detailed information for the City's significant 
funds, and 3) notes to the financial statements, providing additional information that is essential to 
understanding the government-wide and fund statements. This report also contains other 
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Spring Lake Park’s finances, in a 
manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City of Spring Lake Park’s assets 
and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or 
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the 
City of Spring Lake Park is improving or deteriorating.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

4

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net position changed during 
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event 
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues 
and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in 
future fiscal periods (e.g. uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Spring Lake 
Park that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental 
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs 
through user fees and charges (business-type activities).  The governmental activities of the City of 
Spring Lake Park include general government, public safety, public works, recreation and parks 
and development. The business-type activities of the City of Spring Lake Park include the utility and 
liquor funds.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 17-19 of this report. 

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of 
Spring Lake Park, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of 
Spring Lake Park can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike 
the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s 
near-term financial requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By 
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term 
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to 
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Spring Lake Park maintains thirty-five individual governmental funds. Information is 
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, the 
recreation fund, HRA reserve fund, Able & Terrace improvement fund, and the 2014-2015 street 
improvement project fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other 
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.  Individual fund data for 
each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements or 
schedules elsewhere in this report.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

5

The City of Spring Lake Park adopts an annual budget for its general fund.  Budgetary comparison 
statements have been provided for this fund (pages 30 to 33) to demonstrate compliance with the 
budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 22-29 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The City of Spring Lake Park maintains one type of proprietary fund -
enterprise funds.  Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-
type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City of Spring Lake Park uses 
enterprise funds to account for its utility and liquor operations.  

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate 
information for the utility and liquor funds, both of which are considered to be major funds of the 
City of Spring Lake Park.

The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 34-39 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential to a 
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The 
notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 43-74 of this report.

Other Information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major 
governmental funds can be found on pages 79-97 of this report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial 
position. In the case of the City of Spring Lake Park, assets exceeded liabilities by $21,760,866 at 
the close of the most recent fiscal year.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

6

The largest portion of the City of Spring Lake Park’s net position, $12,657,397 (58%) reflects its 
investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings and improvements, and machinery and 
equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City of 
Spring Lake Park uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these 
assets are not available for future spending.  Although the City of Spring Lake Park's investment in 
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay 
this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used 
to liquidate these liabilities.

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Current and other assets 6,170,811$   5,486,972$   5,916,500$       5,744,357$       12,087,311$ 11,231,329$ 
Capital assets 11,136,089   11,060,013   5,944,773        6,084,179        17,080,862   17,144,192   

Total assets 17,306,900   16,546,985   11,861,273       11,828,536       29,168,173   28,375,521   

Long-term liabilities outstanding 4,761,937     2,677,605     2,041,072        2,228,877        6,803,009     4,906,482     

Other liabilities 377,605        506,025        226,693           199,834           604,298        705,859        

Total liabilities 5,139,542     3,183,630     2,267,765        2,428,711        7,407,307     5,612,341     

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 8,687,624     9,295,013     3,969,773        3,919,179        12,657,397   13,214,192   
Restricted 995,667        1,398,863                                                     995,667        1,398,863     

Unrestricted 2,484,067     2,669,479     5,623,735        5,480,646        8,107,802     8,150,125     

Total net position 12,167,358$ 13,363,355$ 9,593,508$       9,399,825$       21,760,866$ 22,763,180$ 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

City of Spring Lake Park's Net Position

An additional portion of the City of Spring Lake Park's net position at December 31, 2014 (5%) 
represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.  The 
remaining balance of unrestricted net position ($8,107,802) may be used to meet the government's 
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Spring Lake Park is able to report positive balances 
in all categories of net position for the City as a whole.  



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

7

Governmental activities.  Governmental activities account for 56% of the City of Spring Lake 
Park's net position as of December 31, 2014.  The total decrease in net position for governmental 
activities was $1,195,997, accounting for all of the decrease in the net position of the City of Spring 
Lake Park for the year ended December 31, 2014. Key elements of this decrease include:

 General government expenditures increased by $140,070 from the prior year due primarily 
to the cost of renovation associated with a municipal building.

 Public works expenditures increased by $1,393,164 from the prior year due primarily to 
increased expenditures related to the 2014-2015 street improvement project.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City of Spring Lake Park's net 
position by $193,683.

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Revenues:

Program revenues:

Charges for services 1,124,722$    1,089,411$    2,094,195$      2,095,186$      3,218,917$    3,184,597$    
Operating grants and contributions 705,338         270,336                                705,338         270,336         

Capital grants and contributions 121,592         99,022                                  121,592         99,022           

General revenues:

Property taxes 2,741,152      2,587,086                             2,741,152      2,587,086      

Other 1,188,985      39,083           389,169          241,909          1,578,154      280,992         

  Total revenues 5,881,789      4,084,938      2,483,364       2,337,095       8,365,153      6,422,033      

Expenses:

General government 981,172         841,102         981,172         841,102         
Public safety 2,267,164      1,748,527      2,267,164      1,748,527      

Public works 2,554,403      1,161,239      2,554,403      1,161,239      

Recreation and parks 1,027,553      1,019,720      1,027,553      1,019,720      

Development and other 298,497         256,755         298,497         256,755         

Interest on long-term debt 98,878           129,103         98,878           129,103         

Utility 1,623,954       1,585,625       1,623,954      1,585,625      

Liquor 513,846          515,038          513,846         515,038         

   Total expenses 7,227,667      5,156,446      2,137,800       2,100,663       9,365,467      7,257,109      

Change in net position (1,345,878)     (1,071,508)     345,564          236,432          (1,000,314)     (835,076)       

Transfers 149,881         224,182         (151,881)         (224,182)         (2,000)                                

Change in net position after transfers (1,195,997)     (847,326)       193,683          12,250            (1,002,314)     (835,076)       

Net position - beginning of year 13,363,355    14,210,681    9,399,825       9,387,575       22,763,180    23,598,256    

Net position - end of year 12,167,358$  13,363,355$  9,593,508$      9,399,825$      21,760,866$  22,763,180$  

City of Spring Lake Park's Change in Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

8

Below are specific graphs that provide comparisons of the governmental activities direct program 
revenues with their expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2014. Any shortfalls in direct 
revenues are primarily supported by property tax levy or general state aid.

$0
$250,000
$500,000
$750,000

$1,000,000
$1,250,000
$1,500,000
$1,750,000
$2,000,000
$2,250,000
$2,500,000
$2,750,000

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities

Program revenues

Expenses

Property taxes
47%

Charges for 
services

19%

Capital grants and 
contributions

2%

Operating grants 
and contributions

12%

Other
20%

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

9

The following graphs related the business-type activity's program revenues with its expenditures for 
the year ended December 31, 2014. Since this activity requires significant physical assets to 
operate, any excess revenues are held for planned capital expenditures to keep pace with growing 
demand for services.

$0

$250,000

$500,000

$750,000

$1,000,000

$1,250,000

$1,500,000

$1,750,000

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-Type Activities

Program revenues

Expenses

Charges for 
services

84%

Other
16%

Revenues by Source - Business-Type Activities



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

10

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Spring Lake Park uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds.  The focus of the City of Spring Lake Park’s governmental funds is to 
provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such 
information is useful in assessing the City of Spring Lake Park’s financing requirements. In 
particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net 
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.  

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Spring Lake Park’s governmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $5,413,289, an increase of $977,935 in comparison with the 
prior year. Approximately 88% of this total fund balance, or $4,741,358, constitutes assigned and
unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the government’s discretion. The 
remainder of the fund balance $671,931 is restricted and nonspendable to indicate that it is not 
available for new spending because it has already been restricted by creditors, grantors or 
regulations of other governments or has been expensed for prepaid items.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of City of Spring Lake Park. At the end of the current 
fiscal year, fund balance of the general fund was $1,560,403. As a measure of the general fund's 
liquidity, it may be useful to compare the fund balance to total fund expenditures. Fund balance 
represents 40% of total current year general fund expenditures. The general fund’s total fund 
balance decreased by $537 during the current fiscal year due primarily to collection of property 
taxes and intergovernmental revenues that were similar in amount to current year expenditures.

The recreation fund increased its fund balance by $54,920 due primarily to charges for services in 
excess of current expenditures for recreation activities.

The HRA reserve fund decreased its fund balance by $87,949 due primarily to capital outlay for a 
building purchase in excess of intergovernmental revenues assigned to this fund. 

The Able & Terrace improvement capital project fund decreased its fund balance by $200,917 due 
to debt service payments in excess of current year collections of special assessments for this 
project.

The 2014-2015 street improvement project fund increased its fund balance by $1,442,450 due 
primarily to bond proceeds received before all expenditures for this project had been incurred.

The special revenue funds, other than the recreation fund and HRA reserve fund described as 
major funds above, increased their overall fund balances by $5,121 due primarily to charges for 
services, fines and forfeitures revenue and intergovernmental revenues in excess of development 
and other expenses.

The debt service funds decreased their collective fund balance by $21,416 due primarily to 
transfers to other funds during the year. 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

11

The capital projects funds, other than the Able & Terrace improvement fund and 2014-2015 street 
improvement project fund described as major funds previously, decreased their collective fund 
balance by $213,737 due primarily to capital outlay and other expenditures in excess of 
intergovernmental revenues, special assessments collected for capital projects and the funds’
investment earnings.

Proprietary funds.  The City of Spring Lake Park's proprietary funds provide the same type of 
information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position for utility operations and liquor operations at the end of the year amounted 
to $4,509,999 and $1,113,736, respectively.  The utility fund increased its net position by $164,887
while the liquor fund increased its fund balance by $28,796 for the year ended December 31, 2014. 
Other factors concerning the finances of these two funds have already been addressed in the 
discussion of the City of Spring Lake Park's business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City's General Fund budget was not amended during the year.  The budget called for no 
change in General Fund balance.  The actual net change to the General Fund balance was a
decrease of $537.  Revenues exceeded budget by $418,935 for the year ended December 31, 
2014 due primarily to receipt of state fire aid that was not anticipated. Total expenditures exceeded
budget by $439,472 for the year. Two departments had expenditures in excess of budget: public 
safety expenditures exceeded budget by $405,664 and other expenditures exceeded budget by 
$75,284.  These over expenditures were primarily related to the unanticipated remittance of state 
fire aid (related to the receipt of the aid as noted above) to the City’s Fire Relief Association and 
severance payments which were not anticipated.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets.   The City of Spring Lake Park’s investment in capital assets for its governmental 
and business-type activities as of December 31, 2014, amounted to $17,080,862 (net of 
accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, construction in 
progress, land improvements, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment and 
infrastructure. Total capital assets decreased by $63,330, or less than 1%, for the year ended 
December 31, 2014, due to depreciation for the year ended December 31, 2014 in excess of 
capital asset acquisitions. 

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Land 604,950$           354,950$           127,883$            127,883$            732,833$            482,833$            

Construction in progress 613,308             590,675             179,246                                         792,554              590,675              

Land improvements                                                                                  

Buildings and improvements 978,627             573,226             3,652,718           3,917,177           4,631,345           4,490,403           

Machinery and equipment 785,737             786,295             153,178              149,402              938,915              935,697              

Infrastructure 8,153,467          8,754,867          1,831,748           1,889,717           9,985,215           10,644,584         

Total 11,136,089$      11,060,013$      5,944,773$         6,084,179$         17,080,862$       17,144,192$       

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

City of Spring Lake Park's Capital Assets

(net of depreciation)



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

12

Additional information on the City of Spring Lake Park’s capital assets can be found in Note 3B
beginning on page 60 of this report.

Long-term debt.  At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Spring Lake Park had $6,373,889
in bonds, certificates and notes payable outstanding.  The entire amount outstanding comprises 
debt backed by the full faith and credit of the government.

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

General obligation bonds

and notes payable 3,936,141$        1,724,012$        1,975,000$         2,165,000$         5,911,141$         3,889,012$         

General obligation certificates 462,748             625,288                                                           462,748              625,288              

Total 4,398,889$        2,349,300$        1,975,000$         2,165,000$         6,373,889$         4,514,300$         

City of Spring Lake Park's Outstanding Debt

General Obligation Bonds, Certificates and Notes Payable

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

The City of Spring Lake Park's total bonds, certificates and notes payable increased by $1,859,589
during the current fiscal year.  The increase was due primarily to the issuance of the City's 2014A 
general obligation capital improvement bonds.

The City of Spring Lake Park maintains an Aa3 bond rating from Moody's for general obligation 
debt.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a Minnesota City may issue to 3% of its 
market value of taxable property.  Net debt is payable solely from ad valorem taxes.  The City is 
currently well within this limit.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The City Council has prepared a balanced budget for the General Fund for 2015. While certain of 
the City’s intergovernmental revenues were lost due to a decade long economic crisis in the State 
of Minnesota, Local Government Aid was restored in 2014.The restoration of Local Government 
Aid has relieved a financial burden from the taxpayers of the City and allowed the City to make 
much needed capital investments in the community.

The economy of the area is anticipated to remain stable.  Inflationary trends in the region compare 
favorably to the national indices.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

13

Major activities contemplated in 2015 are:

 Arthur Street, 81
st

Avenue NE, and Highway 65 Service Drive improvement projects.
Bonds were issued to finance these projects, as well as the University Avenue and 
Monroe Street improvements projects, in 2014.

 Acquisition of capital assets with the proceeds from equipment certificates issued in 
January 2013.

 Completion of renovation of the Public Works facility at the intersection of Highway 65 
and 85

th
Avenue.

 Slip-lining project for sanitary sewer in an effort to renew the City’s sanitary sewer 
system.

 Seal-coat project in an effort to maintain the City’s investment in its street network.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Spring Lake Park’s
finances for all those with an interest in the City's finances. Questions concerning any of the 
information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to 
City of Spring Lake Park, 1301 - 81st Avenue NE, Spring Lake Park, Minnesota 55432.



This Page Left Blank Intentionally



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2014



This Page Left Blank Intentionally



See Notes to Financial Statements

17

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS

Cash and investments 5,539,370$     5,126,583$     10,665,953$   
Receivables 612,821 459,450 1,072,271       
Internal fund balances 11,186            (11,186)                                  
Inventory 341,653          341,653          

Prepaid items and other 7,434                                     7,434              
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable 1,218,258 307,129 1,525,387       
Depreciable, net 9,917,831 5,637,644 15,555,475     

Total Assets 17,306,900     11,861,273     29,168,173     

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 87,892            171,994          259,886          

Accrued payroll and related taxes 27,288            6,659              33,947            
Accrued interest 35,777            18,558            54,335            
Unearned revenue 15,891                                   15,891            
Deposits and other liabilities 210,757          29,482            240,239          

Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 462,284          226,928          689,212          
Due in more than one year 4,299,653 1,814,144 6,113,797       

Total Liabilities 5,139,542       2,267,765       7,407,307       
  

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 8,687,624       3,969,773       12,657,397     

Restricted 995,667          995,667          

Unrestricted 2,484,067       5,623,735       8,107,802       

Total Net Position 12,167,358$   9,593,508$     21,760,866$   

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

December 31, 2014



See Notes to Financial Statements

18

Operating Capital

Charges for Grants and Grants and 

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions

Governmental activities:

General government 981,172$       247,261$     $              $              

Public safety 2,267,164      161,857       584,463                           

Public works 2,554,403      38,497         65,076         116,592       

Recreation and parks 1,027,553      569,241       4,175                               

Development and other 298,497         107,866       51,624         5,000           

Interest on long-term debt 98,878                               

Total governmental activities 7,227,667      1,124,722    705,338       121,592       

Business-Type activities:

Utility 1,623,954      1,541,155                        

Liquor 513,846         553,040                           

Total business-type activities 2,137,800      2,094,195                                            

Total 9,365,467$    3,218,917$  705,338$     121,592$     

General revenues:

   General property taxes

   Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs

   Lease revenue

   Investment earnings (loss)

   Miscellaneous

Transfers

     Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

Program Revenues

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014



19

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total

(733,911)$          (733,911)$          

(1,520,844)         (1,520,844)         

(2,334,238)         (2,334,238)         

(454,137)            (454,137)            

(134,007)            (134,007)            

(98,878)              (98,878)              

(5,276,015)         (5,276,015)         

(82,799)$            (82,799)              

39,194               39,194               

                          (43,605)              (43,605)              

(5,276,015)         (43,605)              (5,319,620)         

2,741,152          2,741,152          

1,059,481          1,059,481          

186,709             186,709             

105,862             189,833             295,695             

23,642               12,627               36,269               

149,881 (151,881)            (2,000)                

4,080,018          237,288             4,317,306          

(1,195,997)         193,683             (1,002,314)         

13,363,355        9,399,825          22,763,180        

12,167,358$      9,593,508$        21,760,866$      

Net (Expense) Revenue

and Changes in Net Position



This Page Left Blank Intentionally



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2014



See Notes to Financial Statements

22

General Fund Recreation HRA Reserve

ASSETS

Cash and investments 1,254,886$  294,869$     61,589$       

Accounts receivable 63,921                                                 

Taxes receivable 84,524         

Special assessments receivable 684                                                      

   Due from other funds 331,453                                               

Due from other governmental units 24,759                                                 

Accrued interest receivable 34,104                                                 

   Prepaid expenses 5,459           1,975                               

TOTAL ASSETS 1,799,790$  296,844$     61,589$       

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 48,725$       13,431$       240$            

Accrued payroll and taxes 27,288                                                 

Deposits and other liabilities 78,166                                                 

Due to other funds                                                             

Unearned revenue 15,891         

Total liabilities 154,179       29,322         240              

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue:

Property taxes 84,524         

Special assessments 684                                  

Total deferred inflows of resources 85,208                                                 

FUND BALANCE

Nonspendable 5,459           1,975           

Restricted                     

Assigned 1,554,944    265,547       61,349         

Unassigned

   Total Fund Balance 1,560,403    267,522       61,349         

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE 1,799,790$  296,844$     61,589$       

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2014

Special Revenue Fund



23

Able & 
Terrace 

Improvement

2014-2015 
Street 

Improvement 
Project

Other 
Governmental 

Funds Total

$             1,445,564$  2,482,462$  5,539,370$    

                                        68,870         132,791         

84,524           

207,231                           123,255       331,170         

                                                            331,453         

802                                  4,671           30,232           

                                                            34,104           

                                        7,434             

208,033$     1,445,564$  2,679,258$  6,491,078$    

$             3,114$         22,382$       87,892$         

                                        27,288           

                                        132,591       210,757         

148,905                           171,362       320,267         

15,891           

148,905       3,114           326,335       662,095         

84,524           

207,231                           123,255       331,170         

207,231                           123,255       415,694         

7,434             

664,497       664,497         

1,442,450    1,676,748    5,001,038      

(148,103)      (111,577)      (259,680)       

(148,103)      1,442,450    2,229,668    5,413,289      

208,033$     1,445,564$  2,679,258$  6,491,078$    

Capital Project Funds



This Page Left Blank Intentionally



See Notes to Financial Statements

25

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Total governmental fund balances (pages 22-23) 5,413,289$      

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds:

Governmental funds - capital assets 23,897,240$      
Accumulated depreciation (12,761,151)       

11,136,089      

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period

expenditures and, therefore, are unavailable in the funds:
Delinquent property taxes 84,524$             

Special assessments 331,170             
415,694          

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Bonds payable (4,398,889)$       
Compensated absences (329,269)            
Accrued interest (35,777)              

Net unamortized bond premiums (33,779)              
(4,797,714)      

Net position of governmental activities (page 17) 12,167,358$    

December 31, 2014

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

RECONCILIATION OF NET POSITION IN THE

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FUND BALANCES

IN THE FUND BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



See Notes to Financial Statements

26

General Fund Recreation HRA Reserve

REVENUES

Property taxes 2,585,538$   $              $              
Special assessments                                           
Licenses and permits 129,862        
Intergovernmental revenues 852,938        633,662
Charges for services 109,918        548,289

Fines and forfeitures 87,292          
Investment income (loss) 4,296            10,540          3,958
Other revenues 85,740          777

TOTAL REVENUES 3,855,584     558,829        638,397        

EXPENDITURES

Current

General government 740,546        52,807
Public safety 2,211,147     
Public works 218,592        
Recreation and parks 530,242        443,909
Development and other 168,534        

Capital Outlay

General government 673,539
Public safety 45,202          
Public works
Recreation and parks                      

Debt Service

Principal
Interest and other
Bond issuance costs

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,914,263     443,909        726,346        

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (58,679)         114,920        (87,949)         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers from other funds 182,470        
Transfers to other funds (124,328)       (60,000)         
Premium on issuance of debt
Bond proceeds

Total other financing sources (uses) 58,142          (60,000)                              

Net change in fund balances (537)              54,920          (87,949)         

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), Beginning 1,560,940     212,602        149,298

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), Ending 1,560,403$   267,522$      61,349$        

Special Revenue Fund

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014



27

Able & 
Terrace 

Improvement

2014-2015 
Street 

Improvement 
Project

Other 
Governmental 

Funds Total

$              $              158,255$      2,743,793$  
99,694                               156,658        256,352       

                     129,862       
                                          236,917        1,723,517    

160,946        819,153       

26,036          113,328       
9,140            4,605            73,323          105,862       

32,471          118,988       

108,834        4,605            844,606        6,010,855    

25,024          818,377       
12,481          2,223,628    

2,586                                 149,622        370,800       
4,213            978,364       

180,063        348,597       

673,539       
                     45,202         

25,605          1,418,465     270,539        1,714,609    
20,035          20,035         

                                          795,411        795,411       
                                          52,549          52,549         

25,510 25,510         

28,191          1,443,975     1,509,937     8,066,621    

80,643          (1,439,370)    (665,331)       (2,055,766)  

271,940                             955,641        1,410,051    
(553,500)                            (520,342)       (1,258,170)  

36,820                      36,820         
                     2,845,000                          2,845,000    

(281,560)       2,881,820     435,299        3,033,701    

(200,917)       1,442,450     (230,032)       977,935       

52,814                               2,459,700     4,435,354    

(148,103)$     1,442,450$   2,229,668$   5,413,289$  

Capital Project Funds



This Page Left Blank Intentionally



See Notes to Financial Statements

29

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (pages 26-27) 977,935$           

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures.

However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets

is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as 

depreciation expense:

Capital outlay 926,477$           

Depreciation expense (850,401)            

76,076               

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current

financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds:

Unavailable revenue, end of year 415,694$           

Unavailable revenue, beginning of year (558,095)            

(142,401)            

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require

the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported as expenditures in governmental funds:

Compensated absences, end of year (329,269)$          

Compensated absences, beginning of year 328,305             
(964)                   

Bond, contract and loan proceeds provide current financial resources

to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term
liabilities in the statement of net position.  Repayment of long-term

debt is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net
position:

Principal retirement on long-term debt 795,411$           
Issuance of long-term debt (2,845,000)         

Change in accrued interest, bond premiums,
bond discounts and deferred charges (57,054)              

(2,106,643)         

Change in net position of governmental activities (pages 18-19) (1,195,997)$       

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014



See Notes to Financial Statements

30

Variance with

2014 Final Budget-

Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES

  General property taxes 2,610,930$ 2,610,930$ 2,585,538$ (25,392)$        

  Licenses and Permits

Licenses 49,752        49,752        55,429        5,677             

Permits 70,656        70,656        74,433        3,777             

Total Licenses and Permits 120,408      120,408      129,862      9,454             

  Intergovernmental

Police aids 75,600        75,600        87,316        11,716           

Other aids 290,971      290,971      765,622      474,651         

Total Intergovernmental 366,571      366,571      852,938      486,367         

Charges for Services

General government 47,090        47,090        54,628        7,538             

Public safety 2,000          2,000          1,575          (425)               
Housing registration 70,000        70,000        53,715        (16,285)          

Total Charges for Services 119,090      119,090      109,918      (9,172)            

  Fines and forfeits 119,000      119,000      87,292        (31,708)          

  Investment earnings (loss) 20,000        20,000        4,296          (15,704)          

  Miscellaneous Revenue

Liaison officer 69,450        69,450        69,450                              

Insurance dividends 7,000          7,000          8,193          1,193             

Reimbursements and other 4,200          4,200          8,097          3,897             
Total Miscellaneous Revenue 80,650        80,650        85,740        5,090             

TOTAL REVENUES 3,436,649   3,436,649   3,855,584   418,935         

EXPENDITURES

General Government

Mayor and Council
Personnel services 34,023        34,023        34,268        (245)               

Supplies and services 1,961          1,961          1,538          423                

Other charges 10,329        10,329        9,071          1,258             

Total Mayor and Council 46,313$      46,313$      44,877$      1,436$           

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014



See Notes to Financial Statements

31

Variance with
2014 Final Budget-
Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Administration
Personnel services 409,420$    409,420$    390,454$    18,966$         
Supplies 7,910          7,910          9,622          (1,712)            
Contracted services 6,845          6,845          6,114          731                
Other services and charges 15,590        15,590        12,059        3,531             

Total Administration 439,765      439,765      418,249      21,516           

Election
Temporary Employees 10,113        (10,113)          
Other services and charges                                       1,940          (1,940)            

Total Elections                                       12,053        (12,053)          

Assessing
Contracted services 35,500        35,500        35,270        230                

Accounting and Auditing
Contracted services 8,700          8,700          8,700                                

Information Technology
Contracted services 21,333        21,333        22,531        (1,198)            

Legal
Contracted services 132,000      132,000      102,705      29,295           

Engineering
Contracted services 11,500        11,500        3,315          8,185             

Planning and Zoning
Supplies and other charges 666             666             321             345                

Government Buildings
Personnel services 19,497        19,497        19,331        166                
Supplies 14,292        14,292        16,853        (2,561)            
Contracted services 40,109        40,109        55,465        (15,356)          
Other charges 940             940             876             64                  

Total Government Buildings 74,838        74,838        92,525        (17,687)          

Total General Government 770,615$    770,615$    740,546$    30,069$         

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014



See Notes to Financial Statements

32

Variance with
2014 Final Budget-

Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)

EXPENDITURES

Public Safety

Police Protection

Personnel services 1,395,799$ 1,395,799$ 1,342,098$ 53,701$         
Supplies 39,618        39,618        33,507        6,111             

Contracted services 28,148        28,148        26,063        2,085             
Other charges 45,686        45,686        43,779        1,907             

Capital outlay 32,075        32,075        31,569        506                
Total Police Protection 1,541,326   1,541,326   1,477,016   64,310           

Fire Protection
Contracted services 181,511      181,511      656,162      (474,651)        

Capital outlay 12,438        12,438        13,184        (746)               
Total Fire Protection 193,949      193,949      669,346      (475,397)        

Code Enforcement
Personnel services 103,998      103,998      101,393      2,605             

Supplies 3,814          3,814          4,269          (455)               
Contracted services 986             986             1,245          (259)               

Other charges 3,300          3,300          1,545          1,755             
Total Code Enforcement 112,098      112,098      108,452      3,646             

Emergency Management
Services and other charges 1,848          1,848          1,086          762                

Capital outlay 464             464             449             15                  
Total Emergency Management 2,312          2,312          1,535          777                

Animal Control                                                                                
Contracted services 1,000          1,000                             1,000             

Total Public Safety 1,850,685   1,850,685   2,256,349   (405,664)        

Public Works

Street Maintenance
Personnel services 180,880      180,880      172,205      8,675             

Supplies 37,202        37,202        45,251        (8,049)            
Contracted services 1,212          1,212          984             228                

Other charges 500             500             152             348                
Total Street Maintenance 219,794      219,794      218,592      1,202             

Total Public Works 219,794$    219,794$    218,592$    1,202$           

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014



See Notes to Financial Statements

33

Variance with
2014 Final Budget-

Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)

EXPENDITURES

Recreation and Parks

Recreation

Personnel services 273,091$    273,091$    261,511$    11,580$         
Supplies 6,175          6,175          7,769          (1,594)            

Contracted services 9,857          9,857          9,476          381                
Other charges 1,105          1,105          1,843          (738)               

Total Recreation 290,228      290,228      280,599      9,629             

Parks and Forestry

Personnel services 190,120      190,120      187,656      2,464             
Supplies 37,681        37,681        39,190        (1,509)            

Contracted services 7,693          7,693          9,190          (1,497)            
Other charges 14,725        14,725        13,607        1,118             

Total Parks and Forestry 250,219      250,219      249,643      576                

Total Recreation and Parks 540,447      540,447      530,242      10,205           

Other

General insurance 40,050        40,050        42,038        (1,988)            

Other charges 500             500             493             7                    
Permit surcharges 2,600          2,600          2,948          (348)               

Severance payments                                       72,955        (72,955)          
Contingency expense 50,100        50,100        50,100                              

Total Other 93,250        93,250        168,534      (75,284)          

Total Expenditures 3,474,791   3,474,791   3,914,263   (439,472)        

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
   over (under) expenditures (38,142)       (38,142)       (58,679)       (20,537)          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers from other funds 186,970      186,970      182,470      (4,500)            

Transfers to other funds (148,828)     (148,828)     (124,328)     24,500           

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 38,142        38,142        58,142        20,000           

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE                                       (537)            (537)               

FUND BALANCE, January 1 1,560,940   1,560,940   1,560,940                         

FUND BALANCE, December 31 1,560,940$ 1,560,940$ 1,560,403$ (537)$             

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014



See Notes to Financial Statements

34

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2014

Utility Fund Liquor Fund Total

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and investments 1,252,337$   184,966$     1,437,303$   
Accounts receivable 459,309 141 459,450        
Inventory 341,653       

Total Current Assets 1,711,646     526,760       2,238,406     

Noncurrent Assets

Property and Equipment
Construction in progress 179,246                     179,246        

   Land and improvements                      133,648       133,648        

   Buildings and structures 6,553,078     808,717       7,361,795     
   Distributions and collection systems 3,277,265                         3,277,265     

   Furniture, fixtures and equipment 649,252        290,845       940,097        
Total Property and Equipment 10,658,841   1,233,210    11,892,051   

Less: Accumulated depreciation 5,116,265     831,013       5,947,278     

Net Property and Equipment 5,542,576     402,197       5,944,773     

Reserved Assets

Cash and investments 2,962,312     726,968       3,689,280     

Total Noncurrent Assets 8,504,888     1,129,165    9,634,053     

TOTAL ASSETS 10,216,534$  1,655,925$  11,872,459$ 



35

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Statement of Net Position (Continued)

December 31, 2014

Utility Fund Liquor Fund Total
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 89,603$        77,306$       166,909$      
Accrued payroll and taxes 3,818            2,841           6,659            
Accrued interest 18,558                              18,558          
Unearned revenue 8,085                                8,085            

Other accrued liabilities 4,968            21,514         26,482          
Due to other funds                      11,186         11,186          
Current portion of compensated absences 18,161          12,767         30,928          
Current portion of note payable 196,000        196,000        

Total Current Liabilities 339,193        125,614       464,807        

Long-term Liabilities

Compensated absences payable 20,766          14,378         35,144          

Note payable 1,779,000                         1,779,000     

Total Long-term Liabilities 1,799,766     14,378         1,814,144     

Total Liabilities 2,138,959     139,992       2,278,951     

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 3,567,576     402,197       3,969,773     
Unrestricted 4,509,999     1,113,736    5,623,735     

   Total Net Position 8,077,575     1,515,933    9,593,508     

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

NET POSITION 10,216,534$  1,655,925$  11,872,459$ 



This Page Left Blank Intentionally



See Notes to Financial Statements

37

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Statement of Revenues, Expenses

and Changes in Net Position

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Utility Fund Liquor Fund Total

Sales and Cost of Goods Sold

Sales $              2,100,732$   2,100,732$   
Cost of goods sold                      1,547,692     1,547,692     

Gross Profit                      553,040        553,040        

Operating Revenue

Charges for services 1,541,155                          1,541,155     

Operating Expenses

Personnel services 341,251        297,704        638,955        
Supplies 130,004        10,852          140,856        
Contracted services and other 219,599        88,578          308,177        
Treatment charges 450,517                             450,517        
Depreciation 341,135        43,994          385,129        
Other charges 82,202          72,718          154,920        
   Total Operating Expenses 1,564,708     513,846        2,078,554     

Operating Income (Loss) (23,553)         39,194          15,641          

Other Revenue (Expense)

Lease revenue 186,709                             186,709        
Commissions and other revenue 6,978            5,649            12,627          
Investment income 130,880        58,953          189,833        
Interest and other expense (59,246)                              (59,246)         
   Total Other Revenue (Expense) 265,321        64,602          329,923        

Income (Loss) Before Transfers 241,768        103,796        345,564        

Transfers to other funds (76,881)         (75,000)         (151,881)       

Net Income (Loss) 164,887        28,796          193,683        

Net Position, Beginning of Year 7,912,688     1,487,137     9,399,825     

Net Position, End of Year 8,077,575$   1,515,933$   9,593,508$   



See Notes to Financial Statements

38

Utility Fund Liquor Fund Total

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash received from customers 1,722,469$    2,106,381$  3,828,850$   
Cash paid to suppliers (825,475)        (1,761,499)   (2,586,974)   
Cash paid to employees (346,475)        (300,512)      (646,987)      
Net Cash Provided By (Used In)
   Operating Activities 550,519         44,370         594,889        

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Investment income 130,880         60,334         191,214        

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities

Transfers to other funds (76,881)          (75,000)        (151,881)      

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities

Acquisition of capital assets (241,019)        (4,704)          (245,723)      
Principal paid on long-term debt (190,000)                            (190,000)      
Interest paid on long-term debt (61,032)                              (61,032)        
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Capital and
   Related Financing Activities (492,051)        (4,704)          (496,755)      

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash

   and Cash Equivalents 112,467         25,000         137,467        

Cash and Cash Equivalents, January 1 4,102,182 886,934 4,989,116     

Cash and Cash Equivalents, December 31 4,214,649$    911,934$     5,126,583$   

Classified as:
Cash and investments - current assets 1,252,337$    184,966$     1,437,303$   
Cash and investments - reserved assets 2,962,312      726,968       3,689,280     

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents, December 31 4,214,649$    911,934$     5,126,583$   

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 



39

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED 

BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income (loss) (23,553)$        39,194$       15,641$        

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation 341,135         43,994         385,129        
Lease and other revenues 193,687         5,649           199,336        

(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable (6,586)                                (6,586)          

Inventory (29,471)        (29,471)        
Other receivables                                                               

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable 56,847           (10,046)        46,801          

Accrued payroll and taxes (6,642)            (3,585)          (10,227)        

Unavailable revenue (5,787)                                (5,787)          
Other accrued liabilities                       (2,142)          (2,142)          

Estimated liability for compensated absences 1,418             777              2,195            
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 550,519$       44,370$       594,889$      

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 



This Page Left Blank Intentionally



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2014



This Page Left Blank Intentionally



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43

                                                                             

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
                                                                               

The financial statements of the City of Spring Lake Park (the City) have been prepared in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental 
units.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting 
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more 
significant of the City's accounting principles are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

The City operates according to applicable laws and statutes under the council-
administrator plan (Statutory Plan A) as defined by Minnesota statutes. A Council 
composed of an elected mayor and four other elected members directs the government of 
the City.  The Council exercises legislative authority and determines all matters of policy
and is responsible for directing the activities of the City. The Council appoints the City 
Administrator and other personnel who are responsible for the proper administration of all 
affairs relating to the City.  

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, the financial statements of the 
reporting entity include those of the City of Spring Lake Park (the primary government) 
and its component unit.  A component unit is a legally separate entity for which the primary 
government is financially accountable, or for which the exclusion of the component unit 
would render the financial statements of the primary government misleading. The criteria 
used to determine if the primary government is financially accountable for a component 
unit include whether or not the primary government appoints the potential component 
unit's board, is able to impose its will on the potential unit, is in a relationship of financial 
benefit or burden with the potential component unit, or is fiscally depended upon by the
potential component unit. The component unit described below is included in the City's 
reporting entity because of the significance of its operational or financial relationship with 
the City.

Blended Component Unit

The Spring Lake Park Economic Development Authority (EDA) is an entity legally separate 
from the City. The EDA was created by the City and operates in accordance with 
applicable Minnesota statutes. The primary purpose of the EDA is to assist and support 
economic, housing and other development projects undertaken within the City, which are 
under the statutory authority of the EDA. The governing board and management of the 
EDA are appointed by the City Council. The EDA has not been involved in any 
development projects requiring financial assistance; as such there are no financial 
activities of the EDA to be included in this financial report. The EDA does not issue 
separate financial statements.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44

                                                                             

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
                                                                               

A. Reporting Entity (Continued)

Related Organizations

The City has joined with the cities of Blaine and Mounds View to cooperatively provide fire 
protection services to their residents.  This is provided by the Spring Lake Park - Blaine -
Mounds View Fire Department (the Fire Department), a private nonprofit Internal Revenue 
Code Section 501(c)(3) organization.  The service territory is generally comprised of the 
cities of Spring Lake Park, Blaine and Mounds View.  

The three cities agreed upon several significant provisions in their agreement dated 
December 11, 1990:

1. The Fire Department is governed by its own Board of Directors.  Directors are 
appointed by each city and from the Fire Department.

2. Operation, maintenance and debt service costs are shared based upon a formula. 
One half of the formula is the relative assessed value of each city.  The other half 
is the three year average of fire calls within each city.  The City's share of the 
formula was 8.8884% in 2014.

3. The city of Blaine issued $8,050,000 G.O. Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 
2005A, on December 1, 2005 to construct a new fire station and training facility 
and acquire two additional fire trucks.  The City of Spring Lake Park has recorded 
its share of the debt related to this bond issuance.

4. The city of Blaine issued $1,555,000 G.O. Equipment Certificates of Indebtedness, 
Series 2011B on November 1, 2011 to purchase certain pieces of fire equipment 
including three fire trucks.  The City of Spring Lake Park has recorded its share of 
the debt related to this bond issuance.

5. In 2013, the city of Blaine issued crossover refunding bonds to refund (in 2016) the 
2005A G.O. Capital Improvement Bonds.  The City of Spring Lake Park will record 
its share of this debt when the refunding occurs.

6. Each city has a non-measurable equity interest in the property that is held in the 
city of Blaine's name.

The City's share of operating costs were $181,511, capital costs were $13,184 and debt 
service costs were $81,149 during 2014.  The operating and capital costs were recorded 
as expenditures in the General Fund. The debt service costs were recorded as 
expenditures in the Fire Bond - Building and Fire Bond – Equipment debt service funds.

Because the City is not financially accountable for the Fire Department (the Fire 
Department is able to fund itself independently of the City) it is excluded from the reporting 
entity of the City.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45

                                                                             

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
                                                                               

A. Reporting Entity (Continued)

A related entity, the Spring Lake Park Firemen's Relief Association (the Association), is a 
nonprofit organization organized to provide pension and other benefits to its members in 
accordance with Minnesota statutes.  Because the City is not financially accountable for 
the Association (the Association is able to fund itself independently of the City) it is also 
excluded from the reporting entity of the City.  

The Fire Department and the Association issue financial reports which are available at City 
offices or at the Fire Department, 1710 Highway 10, Spring Lake Park, Minnesota, 55432.

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities) report information on all of the activities of the City.  For the most 
part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.  
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a 
significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 
given function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that 
are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) 
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, 
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary 
funds. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are 
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund 
financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded 
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes 
are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46

                                                                              

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
                                                                              

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 
(Continued)

Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues 
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are 
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the 
current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as 
under accrual accounting.  However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures 
related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded when 
payment is due.

Property taxes, licenses and permits, and interest associated with the current fiscal 
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable 
due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue 
of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and 
available only when cash is received by the City.

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives 
essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes 
place.  On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the year in which the 
resources are measureable and become available.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the City receives value without directly giving equal 
value in return, include property taxes, grants and donations.  On an accrual basis, 
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the year for which the tax is levied.  
Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the year in which all eligibility 
requirements have been satisfied.  Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, 
which specify the year in which the resources are required to be used or the year when 
use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the City must provide local 
resources to be used for a specific purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the 
resources are provided to the City on a reimbursement basis.  On a modified accrual 
basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it is 
recognized.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47

                                                                              

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
                                                                              

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 
(Continued)

Unearned revenue is recorded when assets are recognized before revenue recognition 
criteria have been satisfied.  Grants received before eligibility requirements other than 
time requirements are met are recorded as unearned revenue.  Grants received before 
time requirements are met are recorded as a deferred inflow of resources.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all 
financial resources of the City, except those required to be accounted for in 
another fund.

The recreation fund is an accumulation of resources for city-sponsored 
recreation activities for citizens.

The HRA reserve fund is an accumulation of resources and costs associated 
with the acquisition of property to be used for economic revitalization of the City.

The Able and Terrace improvement fund is an accumulation of resources and 
costs associated with the Able Street and Terrace Road improvement project.

The 2014-2015 street improvement project fund is an accumulation of resources 
and costs associated with the 2014-2015 street improvement project.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The utility fund accounts for the operation of the City owned utility (water and 
sewer) system.

The liquor fund accounts for the retail operation of the City's off-sale municipal 
liquor store.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48

                                                                              

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
                                                                              

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 
(Continued)

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the 
government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-
lieu of taxes and other charges between the City's enterprise funds and various other 
functions of the City.  Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and 
program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants 
for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) 
capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated 
resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, 
general revenues include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing 
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations.  
The principal operating revenues of the City's enterprise funds are charges to customers 
for sales and services.  Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales 
and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation of capital assets.  All revenues 
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and 
expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's 
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

49

                                                                              

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
                                                                              

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position or Equity

1. Cash and investments (including cash equivalents)

Cash balances from all City funds, except certain designated funds and the liquor 
fund, are pooled and invested to the extent available in various securities as 
authorized by Minnesota statutes.  Earnings from the pooled investments are allocated 
to the respective funds on the basis of the average cash balance participation of each 
fund throughout the year.

Investments are stated at fair value, based upon quoted market prices at the reporting 
date.  Cash and cash equivalents for purposes of the basic financial statements 
includes amounts in demand deposits as well as all investments held by the City.

2. Receivables and payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements 
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other 
funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" 
(i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans).  All other outstanding balances 
between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds."  Any residual balances 
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are 
reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal fund balances."

Advances between funds, if any, are offset by a fund balance reserve account in 
applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation 
and are not expendable available financial resources.

Property tax levies are set by the City Council in December of each year and are 
certified to the County for collection in the following year.  In Minnesota, counties act 
as collection agents for all property taxes. The County spreads all levies over taxable 
property.  Such taxes become a lien on January 1, of the following year, and are 
recorded as receivables by the City at that date. Revenues from property taxes are 
accrued and recognized in the year collectible, net of delinquencies.

Real property taxes may be paid by taxpayers in two equal installments on May 15 and 
October 15.  Personal property taxes may be paid on February 28 and June 30.  The 
County provides tax settlements to cities and other taxing districts normally during the 
months of January, July and December.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

50

                                                                              

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
                                                                              

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position or Equity (Continued)

2. Receivables and payables (continued)

Taxes which remain unpaid at December 31 are classified as delinquent taxes 
receivable. The net amount of delinquent taxes receivable are fully offset by deferred 
inflow of resources in the governmental funds of the fund financial statements because 
they are not known to be available to finance current expenditures.

Assessments are levied at various times upon City Council resolution for property 
owner improvements made by the City.  Assessment collections are deferred, 
generally over ten year periods, with interest charges ranging from 3.5% to 7.0%.  
Revenue from these assessments is recognized when assessed in the government-
wide financial statements and as the annual installments become collectible in the 
governmental funds of the fund financial statements.  Annual installments not collected 
as of each December 31 are classified as delinquent assessments receivable.  The 
net amount of delinquent assessments receivable are fully offset by deferred inflow of 
resources in the governmental funds of the fund financial statements because they are 
not known to be available to finance current expenditures.

3. Inventories

Inventory held by proprietary funds is stated at a moving, weighted average cost or 
market on the first-in, first-out valuation method.  The cost of inventory is recognized 
as an expense when items are sold or used (consumption method).

Inventories of expendable supplies held by governmental fund types are recorded as 
expenditures when purchased (purchase method) as the amounts are not material.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

51

                                                                              

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
                                                                              

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position or Equity (Continued)

4. Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets 
(e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial 
statements.  Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, 
individual cost of more than $3,000 and an estimated useful life greater than one year. 
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or 
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the 
date of donation.  The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the 
value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.  

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are 
constructed.  Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of 
business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets 
constructed, net of interest earned on the invested debt proceeds over the same 
period.

Property, plant and equipment are capitalized when acquired, and depreciation is 
provided using the straight-line method applied over the following estimated useful 
lives of the assets.

Useful Life
in Years

Land Improvements 10 - 20
Buildings and Improvements 15 - 40
Infrastructure                                               25 - 35
Distribution and Collection System 15 - 80
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 3 - 10

The City reviews its property, plant and equipment for impairment whenever events 
indicate the decline in service utility of the capital asset is significant in magnitude and 
the event of change in circumstances is outside the normal cycle of the capital assets.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

52

                                                                              

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
                                                                              

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position or Equity (Continued)

5. Compensated absences benefits

The City's policy is to permit employees to accumulate unused vacation and 
compensatory time benefits.  City employees are entitled to vacation pay based upon 
length of employment.  In addition, the City has established a severance pay policy for 
nonunion employees.  This policy provides for severance payments upon termination 
of employment based on accumulated personal leave accrued, subject to certain 
conditions and specified maximums.  Severance pay policy for union employees is 
governed by individual union contracts.

Vested benefits for City employees attributable to governmental funds are recorded as 
expenditures in these funds as benefits are paid to employees.  The liability and 
corresponding expense is recorded in the government-wide financials statements as 
these benefits accrue.  The liability and corresponding expense associated with 
proprietary funds is recorded in the applicable proprietary fund as benefits accrue.

6. Long-term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund 
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as 
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or 
proprietary fund type statements of net position.

Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds 
using the effective interest method.  Bond issuance costs are expensed as incurred.  
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.  

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums 
and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period.  The face 
amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.  Premiums received on 
debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt 
issuances are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not 
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service 
expenditures.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

53

                                                                              

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
                                                                              

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position or Equity (Continued)

7. Fund equity

In the government-wide and proprietary financial statements, net position is classified 
in the following categories:

Net Investment in Capital Assets – This amount consists of capital assets net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt attributed to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of the assets.

Restricted Net Position – This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, 
contributors, laws or regulations of other governments.

Unrestricted Net Position – This amount is all net position that does not meet the 
definition of “net investment in capital assets” or “restricted net position.”

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and 
Governmental Fund Type Definitions, the City classifies governmental fund balances 
as follows:

Non-spendable – includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either 
because it is not in spendable form or because of legal or contractual restraints.

Restricted – amounts are restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors, laws 
or regulations of other governments.

Committed – includes fund balance amounts that are committed by resolution, which 
is the City's highest level of decision-making authority, for specific purposes that are 
internally imposed by the City Council through formal action and remain binding 
unless removed by the City Council by subsequent formal action (resolution). 

Assigned – includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific 
purposes that are neither considered restricted or committed. The City Council, by 
majority vote, may assign fund balances to be used for specific purposes when 
appropriate.  The Council has the power to assign fund balances or to designate an 
official who may assign fund balances. The City Administrator has been designated 
by the Council to assign fund balances.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

54

                                                                              

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
                                                                              

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position or Equity (Continued)

7. Fund equity (continued)

Unassigned – includes positive fund balances within the General Fund which have 
not been classified within the above mentioned categories and negative fund 
balances in other governmental funds.

The City considers restricted/committed amounts to be spent first when both restricted 
and unrestricted fund balance is available unless there are legal documents/contracts 
that prohibit doing this, such as a grant agreement requiring dollar for dollar spending. 
Additionally, the City would first use committed, then assigned and lastly unassigned 
amounts when expenditures are made.  

E. Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which expose the City to a concentration of credit risk consist 
primarily of cash, investments and accounts and loans receivable.  Credit risk associated 
with cash and investments is discussed in Note 3. The City's accounts and loans receivable 
are concentrated geographically, and for the most part, amounts are due from individuals 
residing in and businesses located in the City of Spring Lake Park.

F. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make estimates 
that affect amounts reported in the financial statements during the reporting period.  Actual
results could differ from such estimates.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

55

                                                                              

2. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability
                                                                              

A. Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America.  Annual appropriated budgets are legally 
adopted by Council resolution for the General Fund and certain Special Revenue Funds.  
Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year 
for the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds.

The City follows these legal compliance procedures in establishing the budgetary data 
reflected in the financial statements.

1. Budget requests are submitted by all department heads to the City Administrator.  The 
Administrator's office compiles the budget requests into an overall preliminary City 
budget, balancing budget requests with available revenue.

2. The preliminary budget is submitted to the City Council in August for its review and/or 
modification.

3. City administration presents the proposed budget to the City Council which in turn 
holds a truth-in-taxation public hearing on the proposed budget.  The budget resolution
adopted by the City Council sets forth the budget at the department level for the 
General Fund.

4. All budgeted appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year.  The legal level of 
control (the level on which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) for 
each budget is at the department level.  Administration cannot legally amend or 
transfer appropriations between departments without the approval of the City Council 
once the budget has been approved.  Any over expenditures of appropriations or 
transfers of appropriated amounts must be approved by the City Council.

5. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the City Council.  The 
budget cannot be amended without approval by the City Council.

All budget amounts presented in the accompanying supplementary information reflect the 
original budget and the final budget (which were the same for the year ended December 
31, 2014).

The City does not use encumbrance accounting.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

56

                                                                              

2. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability (Continued)
                                                                              

B. Expenditures Exceeding Appropriations

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the following General Fund departments had 
expenditures exceeding the latest amended budget:

2014 Budgeted 
Expenditures

 2014 Actual 
Expenditures 

Amount Exceeding 
Budgeted Amount

Public safety 1,850,685$           2,256,349$           405,664$              

Other 93,250                  168,534                75,284                  

The above listed overexpenditures were approved by the City Council.

C. Fund Balance Deficits

As of December 31, 2014, the following funds had deficit fund balances:

Fund Amount

Major:

Able & Terrace Improvement 148,103$              

Nonmajor:

Developer's Escrow 11,439                  
Fire Bond - Building 1,324                    

81st Avenue Rehabilitation 98,814                  

The fund balance deficits will be eliminated by future revenue and financing sources.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

57

                                                                                                                                       

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds
                                                                                                                                       

A. Deposits and Investments

In accordance with applicable Minnesota statutes, the City maintains deposits at 
depository banks authorized by the City Council.  All such depositories are members of 
the Federal Reserve System.

Minnesota statutes require that all deposits be protected by insurance, surety bond or 
collateral.  The market value of collateral pledged must equal 110% of the deposits not 
covered by insurance or surety bonds.  Authorized collateral includes certain state or 
local government obligations and legal investments described in the investment policy 
section. Minnesota Statutes require that securities pledged as collateral be held in 
safekeeping by the City Treasurer or in a financial institution other than the institution 
furnishing the collateral.

The City's deposits were entirely covered by federal depository insurance or collateral at 
December 31, 2014.

Investment Policy

The City maintains a formal investment policy that limits its investment choices as a 
means of managing its exposure to credit risk.  The City's investment policy does not 
address, however, limits on investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure 
to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

The City is authorized by Minnesota Statutes to invest idle funds as follows:

(a) Direct obligations or obligations guaranteed by the United States or its agencies.
(b) Shares of investment companies registered under the Federal Investment 

Company Act of 1940 and whose only investments are in securities described in 
(a) above.

(c) General obligations of the State of Minnesota or its municipalities.
(d) Bankers acceptances of United States banks eligible for purchase by the Federal 

Reserve System.
(e) Commercial paper issued by United States corporations or their Canadian 

subsidiaries, of the highest quality, and maturing in 270 days or less.
(f) Repurchase agreements with banks that are members of the Federal Reserve 

System with capitalization exceeding $10,000,000, a reporting dealer to the 
Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or certain Minnesota securities broker-
dealers.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

58

                                                                                                                                       

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)
                                                                                                                                       

A. Deposits and Investments (Continued)

(g) Money market funds with institutions that have portfolios consisting exclusively of 
United States Treasury obligations and Federal Agency issues.

(h) Guaranteed investment contracts (gic's) issued or guaranteed by United States 
commercial banks or domestic branches of foreign banks or United States 
insurance companies and with a credit quality in one of the top two highest 
categories.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair 
value of an investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the 
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates.  One of the ways that the City 
manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter and 
longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the 
portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide 
the cash flow and liquidity needs for operation.

The following is a summary of the City of Spring Lake Park's cash and investment portfolio 
including the range of maturities and investment ratings by type of investment:

Investment Range of Maturities Rating Value

Cash N/A N/A 2,031,089$  

Certificates of Deposit 12/28 N/A 6,069,917    

Municipal Bonds 2/21 D - AAA 612,296       

U.S. Government Securities 3/33 AAA 1,952,651    

Total cash and investments 10,665,953$ 

N/A  Not applicable or not available



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

59

                                                                                                                                       

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)
                                                                                                                                       

A. Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to 
the holder of the investment.  The City's investments are rated by various credit rating 
agencies, where applicable, to indicate the associated credit risk.  Investment ratings by 
investment type (as applicable) are included in the preceding summary of investments.

The City does not have a formal policy related to the credit risk of its investments, but 
continues to buy safe and liquid assets that are allowable under Minnesota Statutes.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The City diversifies its investment portfolio to eliminate the risk of loss resulting from over-
concentration of assets in a specific maturity, a specific issuer or a specific class of 
securities.  The City's investment policies do not limit the concentration of investments.  
Investments in any one issuer that represented 5% or more of total investments as of 
December 31, 2014 were as follows:

Issuer Investment Type Value

UBS Financial Services Cash Accounts 900,000$    
Wells Fargo Cash Accounts 682,316      

Custodial Credit Risk

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counter party, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investment securities that 
are in the possession of an outside party.  At December 31, 2014, all investments were 
insured or registered or the securities were held by the City or its agent in the City's name.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

60

                                                                                                                                       

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)
                                                                                                                                       

B. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the City for the year ended December 31, 2014 was as follows:

Beginning Ending

Governmental Activities Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land  $               354,950  $          250,000 $                   $               604,950 

Construction in progress                   590,675                22,633                                           613,308 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 945,625                 272,633                                1,218,258              

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 2,145,625              486,412            2,632,037              

Machinery and equipment 2,709,552              167,432                                2,876,984              

Infrastructure 17,169,961                                17,169,961            

Total capital assets, being depreciated 22,025,138            653,844                                22,678,982            

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements 1,572,399              81,011             1,653,410              

Machinery and equipment 1,923,257              167,990                                2,091,247              

Infrastructure 8,415,094              601,400            9,016,494              

Total accumulated depreciation 11,910,750            850,401                                12,761,151            

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 10,114,388            (196,557)                              9,917,831              

Governmental activities capital assets, net 11,060,013$          76,076$            $                 11,136,089$          



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

61

                                                                                                                                       

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)
                                                                                                                                       

B. Capital Assets (Continued)

Beginning Ending

Business-Type Activities Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land  $               127,883  $                        $                   $               127,883 

Construction in progress              179,246                   179,246 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated                   127,883              179,246                                       307,129 

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Land improvements 5,765                     5,765                     

Buildings and improvements 7,361,795              7,361,795              

Machinery and equipment 899,035                 41,062                                 940,097                 

Infrastructure 3,251,850              25,415             3,277,265              

Total capital assets, being depreciated 11,518,445            66,477                                 11,584,922            

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Land improvements 5,765                     5,765                     

Buildings and improvements 3,444,618              264,459            3,709,077              

Machinery and equipment 749,633                 37,286             786,919                 

Infrastructure 1,362,133              83,384             1,445,517              

Total accumulated depreciation 5,562,149              385,129                                5,947,278              

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 5,956,296              (318,652)                              5,637,644              

Business-type activities capital assets, net 6,084,179$            (139,406)$        $                 5,944,773$            

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2014 was charged to functions/programs 
as follows:

Governmental Activities

   General government 105,311$  

   Public safety 23,626      

   Public works 668,358    

   Recreation and parks 53,106      
Total 850,401$  

Business-Type Activities

   Utility 341,135$  

   Liquor 43,994      
Total 385,129$  



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

62

                                                                                                                                       

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)
                                                                                                                                       

C. Long-Term Debt

The City issues general obligation bonds and equipment certificates to provide funds for 
economic development and for the acquisition and construction of major capital assets 
including infrastructure.  General obligation bonds have been issued for both general 
government and proprietary activities.  Bonds issued to provide funds for business-type 
activities are reported in proprietary funds if they are expected to be repaid from 
proprietary revenues.

General obligation bonds and certificates are direct obligations and pledge the full faith 
and credit of the City. General obligation improvement and refunding bonds are expected 
to be repaid, in part, from assessments to the benefited properties.

A summary of long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2014 is as follows:

Range of Final Balance
Issue Date Interest Rates Maturity 12/31/14

General obligation bonds:

2005 Capital Improvement Bonds 12/20/2005 3.80% - 4.00% 2026 466,141$       
2013B Capital Improvement Bonds 12/18/2013 0.55% - 3.00% 2023 625,000         

2014A Capital Improvement Bonds 6/18/2014 2.00% - 2.75% 2025 2,845,000      
General obligation certificates:

2011A Equipment Certificates 11/16/2011 1.00% - 1.45% 2017 57,748           

2013A Equipment Certificates 2/28/2013 1.00% 2017 405,000         
General obligation note payable:

Note Payable - Public Facilities Authority 7/8/2003 2.819% 2023 1,975,000      
Other Liabilities:

Net unamortized premium on bonds 33,779           
   Compensated Absences 395,341         

Total Long-Term Debt 6,803,009$    

Liquidation of the compensated absences liability occurs within the department and fund 
for which the corresponding employees are assigned.

The City is subject to statutory limitation by the State of Minnesota for bonded
indebtedness payable principally from property taxes.  As of December 31, 2014, the City 
had not utilized $10,298,144 of its net legal debt margin.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

63

                                                                                                                                       

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)
                                                                                                                                       

C. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

The following is a summary of the changes in long-term debt obligations for the year 
ended December 31, 2014:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Bonds and Notes Payable:

General obligation bonds:

2009 Refunding Bonds 540,000$      $              540,000$    $               $            

2005 Capital Improvement Bonds 499,012                             32,871        466,141         34,203        

2013B Capital Improvement Bonds 685,000        60,000        625,000         65,000        

2014A Capital Improvements Bonds 2,845,000     2,845,000                         

General obligation certificates:

2011A Equipment Certificates 85,288                               27,540        57,748           28,429        

2013A Equipment Certificates 540,000        135,000      405,000         135,000      

Other Liabilities:

Compensated Absences 328,305        200,031        199,067      329,269         199,652      

Unamortized premium                      78,073          6,447          71,626           

Less: unamortized (discount)                      (41,253)         (3,406)        (37,847)         

Governmental Activities

Long-Term Liabilities 2,677,605     3,081,851     997,519      4,761,937      462,284      

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Bonds and Notes Payable:

General obligation note payable:

Note Payable - Public Facilities Authority 2,165,000                          190,000      1,975,000      196,000      

Other Liabilities:

Compensated Absences 63,877          32,096          29,901        66,072           30,928        

Business-Type Activities

Long-Term Liabilities 2,228,877     32,096          219,901      2,041,072      226,928      

Total 4,906,482$   3,113,947$   1,217,420$ 6,803,009$    689,212$    



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

64

                                                                                                                                       

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)
                                                                                                                                       

C. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Debt service requirements to maturity for long-term debt, excluding compensated 
absences, as of December 31, 2014 were as follows:

Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2015 99,550$      120,622$    163,717$    4,805$        196,000$    55,675$     

2016 300,896      88,658        164,031      3,110          201,000      50,150       
2017 362,242      82,544        135,000      1,350          207,000      44,484       

2018 403,588      75,159                                            213,000      38,649       
2019 410,383      66,569        219,000      32,644       

2020-2024 2,022,491   192,129      939,000      67,120       
2025 336,991      8,870          

Totals 3,936,141$ 634,548$    462,748$    9,265$        1,975,000$ 288,722$   

General Obligation 
Improvement and Refunding 

Bonds

General Obligation 
Equipment and Refunding 

Certificates
General Obligation Note 

Payable



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

65

                                                                                                                                       

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)
                                                                                                                                       

D. Interfund Receivables and Payables

The following schedule reports the interfund receivables and payables within the City's 
funds as of December 31, 2014:

Due From Due To
Other Funds Other Funds

Major Governmental Funds:
General Fund 331,453$        $               

Able & Terrace Improvement 148,905         
Subtotal 331,453          148,905         

Non-Major Governmental Funds:

Special Revenue
Cable 4,967             

Debt Service
Fire Bond - Building                    58,941           

Capital Projects

81st Avenue Rehabilitation 102,110         
Park Equipment and Improvement 5,344             

Subtotal                    171,362         

Total Governmental Funds 331,453          320,267         

Proprietary Funds:

Liquor                    11,186           

Total All Funds 331,453$        331,453$       

Interfund receivables and payables are the result of expenditures of funds prior to the 
collection of special assessments, property taxes and other revenues.  All interfund 
balances will be repaid as the revenues are collected by the individual funds or by transfers 
from other funds.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

66

                                                                                                                                       

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)
                                                                                                                                       

E. Interfund Transfers

Transfers are used to 1) move revenues from the fund with collection authorization to the 
debt service fund as debt service principal and interest payments become due; or 2) move 
unrestricted general fund revenues to finance various programs that the government must 
account for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.  The amount 
transferred from the liquor fund was used to finance general operations in the City's 
General Fund.

Interfund transfers during the year ended December 31, 2014 were as follows:

Transfers In Transfers Out

Major Governmental Funds:
General Fund 182,470$        124,328$       
Recreation Fund 60,000           
Able & Terrace Improvement 271,940          553,500         

Subtotal 454,410          737,828         
Non-Major Governmental Funds:
Special Revenue

Recycling Fund 3,500             
Debt Service

2009 Refunding Bonds 553,500          271,940         
Fire Bond - Building 50,000            
Fire Bond - Equipment 57,613            
2013B GO Capital Improvement Bonds 72,911            

Capital Projects
Highway 10 Frontage Road 187,289          
Storm Water 25,000            
Building Maintenance 7,328              
Public Safety Replacement 2,000              
81st Avenue Rehabilitation 187,289         
2013 Equipment Certificates 57,613           

Subtotal 955,641          520,342         

Total Governmental Funds 1,410,051       1,258,170      

Proprietary Funds:
Utility 76,881           
Liquor                    75,000           

Total Proprietary Funds                    151,881         

Total All Funds 1,410,051$     1,410,051$    



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

67

                                                                                                                                       

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)
                                                                                                                                       

F. Fund Equity

In accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 54, below is a schedule of 
ending fund balances as of December 31, 2014:

General Fund
Recreation 

Fund HRA Reserve

Able & 
Terrace 

Improvement

2014-2015 
Street 

Improvement 
Project

Other 
Governmental 

Funds

Total 
Governmental 

Funds

Nonspendable

Prepaid items 5,459$         1,975$         $             $             $              $             7,434$          

Restricted
Police activities 2,116           2,116            

Debt service 234,667       234,667        
Capital acquisitions 163,246       163,246        
Park acquisition 249,604       249,604        
Community development 14,864         14,864          

Total Restricted                                                                                                      664,497       664,497        

Assigned
Working capital reserve 1,177,162    1,177,162     
Compensated absences 329,269       329,269        

Elections 48,513 48,513          
Recreation programs 265,547                           265,547        
Recycling 69,799         69,799          
Street lighting 32,270         32,270          

Cable activities 14,178         14,178          
Public safety supplies 12,358         12,358          
HRA reserve 61,349         61,349          
Street improvement 1,442,450     712,795       2,155,245     
Street sealcoating 154,089       154,089        

Storm water runoff program 62,745         62,745          
Capital replacement 459,849       459,849        
Building maintenance 92,832         92,832          
Park acquisition 31,237         31,237          

Other activities 34,596         34,596          
Total Assigned 1,554,944    265,547       61,349                             1,442,450     1,676,748    5,001,038     

Unassigned                                         (148,103)                           (111,577)      (259,680)       

Total Fund Balance 1,560,403$  267,522$     61,349$       (148,103)$    1,442,450$   2,229,668$  5,413,289$   



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

68

4. Other Information
                                                                                    
                                   
A. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts: theft of, damage to, or 
destruction of assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  
The City participates in the League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust (LMCIT) to provide 
its general liability and property coverage.  The LMCIT is a public entity risk pool currently 
operating as a common risk management and insurance program for participating 
Minnesota Cities.  All Cities in the LMCIT are jointly and severally liable for all claims and 
expenses of the pool.  The amount of any liability in excess of assets of the pool may be 
assessed to the participating cities if a deficiency occurs.  The City purchases commercial 
insurance for property values in excess of the LMCIT policy limits and all other risks of loss. 
Settled claims have not exceeded the LMCIT or commercial coverage in any of the past 
three fiscal year.

Worker's compensation insurance is also purchased through the LMCIT.  The worker 
compensation program is a retrospectively rated contract with premiums or required 
contributions based primarily on the experience rates of the participating cities.  There were 
no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year or settlements in 
excess of insurance coverage for any of the past three fiscal years.

B. Commitments and Contingencies

Insurance:
The City has outstanding claims subject to its insurance deductible.  Although the outcome 
of these actions is not presently determinable, in the opinion of management, the resolution 
of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.

General Litigation:
Management is not aware of any existing or pending lawsuits, claims or other actions in 
which the City is a defendant.  It is the opinion of management that any such claims would 
be covered by the liability insurance of the City and that potential claims against the City 
would not materially affect the financial statements.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

69

4. Other Information (Continued)
                                                                                    
                               
C. Pension Plans

The following disclosures are made in accordance with GASB Statement No. 50:

1. Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) - Defined Benefit

A. Plan Description

All full-time and certain part-time employees of the City of Spring Lake Park are 
covered by defined benefit plans administered by the Public Employees Retirement 
Association of Minnesota (PERA). PERA administers the General Employees 
Retirement Fund (GERF), the Public Employees Police and Fire Fund (PEPFF) and 
the Local Government Correctional Service Retirement Fund, called the Public 
Employees Correctional Fund (PECF), which are cost-sharing, multiple-employer 
retirement plans. These plans are established and administered in accordance with 
Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 353 and 356.

GERF members belong to either the Coordinated Plan or the Basic Plan. Coordinated 
Plan members are covered by Social Security and Basic Plan members are not. All 
new members must participate in the Coordinated Plan. All police officers, firefighters 
and peace officers who qualify for membership by statute are covered by the PEPFF.  
Members who are employed in a county correctional institution as a correction guard 
or officer, a joint jailer/dispatcher, or as a supervisor of correctional guards or officers 
or of joint jailers/dispatchers and are directly responsible for the direct security, custody 
and control of the county correctional institution and its inmates are covered by the 
PECF.

PERA provides retirement benefits as well as disability benefits to members, and 
benefits to survivors upon death of eligible members.  Benefits are established by state 
statute, and vest after five years of credited service. The defined retirement benefits 
are based on a member's highest average salary for any five successive years of 
allowable service, age, and years of credit at termination of service.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

70

4. Other Information (Continued)
                                                                                    

D. Pension Plans (Continued)

1. Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) - Defined Benefit (Continued)

A. Plan Description (continued)

Two methods are used to compute benefits for PERA’s Coordinated and Basic Plan 
members. The retiring member receives the higher of a step-rate benefit accrual 
formula (Method 1) or a level accrual formula (Method 2).  Under Method 1, the 
annuity accrual rate for a Basic Plan member is 2.2 percent of average salary for each 
of the first 10 years of service and 2.7 percent for each remaining year. The annuity
accrual rate for a Coordinated Plan member is 1.2 percent of average salary for each 
of the first 10 years and 1.7 percent for each remaining year. Under method 2, the 
annuity accrual rate is 2.7 percent of average salary for Basic Plan members and 1.7 
percent for Coordinated Plan members for each year of service.  For PEPFF 
members, the annuity accrual rate is 3.0 percent for each year of service.  The annuity 
accrual rate is 1.9 percent for each year of service for PECF members.

For all PEPFF members, PECF members and GERF members hired prior to July 1, 
1989 whose annuity is calculated using Method 1, a full annuity is available when age 
plus years of service equal 90. Normal retirement age is 55 for PEPFF and PECF
members and 65 for Basic and Coordinated members hired prior to July 1, 1989. 
Normal retirement age is the age for unreduced Social Security benefits capped at 66 
for Coordinated members hired on or after July 1, 1989. A reduced retirement annuity 
is also available to eligible members seeking early retirement.

There are different types of annuities available to members upon retirement.  A single-
life annuity is a lifetime annuity that ceases upon the death of the retiree--no survivor 
annuity is payable.  There are also various types of joint and survivor annuity options 
available which will be payable over joint lives.  Members may also leave their 
contributions in the fund upon termination of public service, in order to qualify for a 
deferred annuity at retirement age.  Refunds of contributions are available at any time 
to members who leave public service, but before retirement benefits begin.  

The benefit provisions stated in the previous paragraphs of this section are current 
provisions and apply to active plan participants.  



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

71

4. Other Information (Continued)
                                                                                    

D. Pension Plans (Continued)

1. Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) - Defined Benefit (Continued)

A. Plan Description (continued)

PERA issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for GERF, PEPFF and PECF.  That report may be 
obtained on the internet at www.mnpera.org, by writing to PERA, 60 Empire Drive 
#200, St. Paul, Minnesota, 55103-2088 or by calling (651) 296-7460 or 1-800-652-
9026.

B. Funding Policy

Minnesota Statutes Chapter 353 sets the rates for employer and employee 
contributions. These statutes are established and amended by the state legislature. 
The City makes annual contributions to the pension plans equal to the amount 
required by state statutes. GERF Basic Plan members and Coordinated Plan 
members were required to contribute 9.1% and 6.25%, respectively, of their annual 
covered salary in 2014. PEPFF members were required to contribute 10.2% of their 
annual covered salary in 2014.  PECF members were required to contribute 5.83% of 
their annual covered salary.  In 2014, the City of Spring Lake Park was required to 
contribute the following percentages of annual covered payroll: 11.78% for Basic Plan 
members, 7.25% for Coordinated Plan members, 15.3% for PEPFF members and 
8.75% for PECF members. The City's contributions to the Public Employees 
Retirement Fund for the years ending December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were
$101,921, $99,405 and $104,218, respectively.  The City's contributions to the Public 
Employees Police and Fire Fund for the years ending December 31, 2014, 2013 and 
2012 were $135,348, $132,276 and $130,247, respectively. The City's contributions
were equal to the contractually required contributions for each year as set by state 
statute. Contribution rates will increase on January 1, 2015 in the Coordinated Plan 
(6.5% for members and 7.5% for employers) and the Police and Fire Fund (10.8% for 
members and 16.2% for employers).

2. Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) - Defined Contribution

Several council members of the City of Spring Lake Park are covered by the Public 
Employees Defined Contribution Plan (PEDCP), a multiple-employer deferred 
compensation plan administered by the Public Employees Retirement Association of 
Minnesota (PERA). The PEDCP is a tax qualified plan under Section 401(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code and all contributions by or on behalf of employees are tax 
deferred until time of withdrawal.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

72

4. Other Information (Continued)
                                                                                    

D. Pension Plans (Continued)

2. Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) - Defined Contribution (Continued)

Plan benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment 
earnings, less administrative expenses. Minnesota Statutes Chapter 353D.03 specifies 
plan provisions, including the employee and employer contribution rates for those 
qualified personnel who elect to participate.  An eligible elected official who decides to 
participate contributes 5 percent of salary which is matched by the elected official's 
employer.  Employees who are paid for their services may elect to make member 
contributions in an amount not to exceed the employer share.  Employer and 
employee contributions are combined and used to purchase shares in one or more of 
the seven accounts of the Minnesota Supplemental Investment Fund. For 
administering the plan, PERA receives 2 percent of employer contributions and twenty-
five hundredths of one percent of the assets in each member's account annually.

Total contributions made by the City of Spring Lake Park during fiscal year 2014 were:

Required

Employee Employer Employee Employer Rates
1,239$         1,239$         5% 5% 5%

Contribution Amount Percentage of Covered Payroll

3. Spring Lake Park Firemen's Relief Association

A. Plan Description

The City participates with the cities of Blaine and Mounds View in supporting an 
independent fire department which provides fire protection services for its three 
member cities.  Part of the operating budget of the fire department contains provisions 
for contributions to the Spring Lake Park Firemen's Relief Association (the 
Association). The Association is the administrator of a single employer retirement 
system established to provide pension and other benefits to its membership in 
accordance with Minnesota Statutes. The Association maintains a separate Special 
Pension Trust Fund to accumulate assets to fund the retirement benefits earned by its 
membership.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

73

4. Other Information (Continued)
                                                                                    

D. Pension Plans (Continued)

3. Spring Lake Park Firemen's Relief Association

Funding of the Association is derived primarily from an insurance premium tax in 
accordance with the Volunteer Firefighter's Relief Association Financing Guidelines 
Act of 1971 (Chapter 261 as amended by Chapter 509 of Minnesota Statutes 1980).  
The financial requirements of the Special Pension Trust Fund are determined in 
accordance with Minnesota Statutes, which requires the payment of pension benefits 
in a lump sum or optionally in annual installments.  Minnesota Statutes require this 
plan to fund current service as it accrues and prior year service cost amortized over a 
period of ten years.  Primary funding of the Special Pension Trust Fund is from state 
aids and contributions by the fire department to fund the pension and other benefit 
requirements of the Association for its membership.  Financial information regarding 
the Association was not available for inclusion in this report.

E. Other Postemployment Benefits

The City has considered the accounting pronouncement, GASB Statement No. 45, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-Employment Benefits Other 
than Pensions.  Management determined the OPEB liability at December 31, 2014 is not 
material and therefore is not recorded in these financial statements.

F. Joint Powers Agreements

As previously noted, the City of Spring Lake Park participates with the cities of Blaine and 
Mounds View through a joint powers agreement to cooperatively support the Spring Lake 
Park Fire Department, Inc. (the Department). The Department is independent of the cities 
and operates as a separate entity. Under terms of the agreement, the equipment, property 
and other assets of the Department are owned jointly by the three cities. Each city enters 
into a contract for services with the Department for fire protection services. Cost of services 
for each City is determined based on a formula prescribed in the agreement. Based on the 
agreement, in the event the Department sustains operating deficits, the cities will contribute 
additional funds to the Department in proportion to the formula described above. Operating 
budgets of the Department are approved annually by the cities.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

74

4. Other Information (Continued)
                                                                                    

F. Joint Powers Agreements (continued)

Payments to the Department by the City of Spring Lake Park in 2014 totaled $194,695, 
including a provision for capital expenditures. This total was approximately 10% of 
contracted revenues from member cities reported by the Department. As described in Note 
1, the City is also responsible for its share of debt service payments related to bonds issued
on behalf of the Department for building improvements and equipment acquisitions.

In addition, the City is a member of the Anoka County Joint Law Enforcement Council 
(JLEC), an organization of Anoka County and certain cities located within the County 
formed to cooperate in their law enforcement efforts. The City participates with the JLEC on 
a cost-sharing basis with the development and maintenance of an integrated central 
records communication system.  Costs related to the City's participation in the JLEC were 
$5,217 for the year ended December 31, 2014.

5. Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Adopted
                                                                                    

GASB 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, will be effective for the City 
beginning with its year ending December 31, 2015. This statement requires the reporting of 
unfunded pension liabilities in the government-wide and proprietary financial statements.  
Management has not determined the impact adoption of this new standard will have on the 
City's financial position.



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL
FUND STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

December 31, 2014



This Page Left Blank Intentionally



77

Special 
Revenue Debt Service

Capital 
Projects Total

ASSETS

Cash and investments 216,093$     290,912$     1,975,457$  2,482,462$    

Accounts receivable 68,870                                                 68,870           

Special assessments receivable                                         123,255       123,255         

Due from other funds                                          

Due from other governmental units                     1,372           3,299           4,671             

TOTAL ASSETS 284,963$     292,284$     2,102,011$  2,679,258$    

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 13,259$       $              9,123$         22,382$         

Deposits payable 132,591                                               132,591         

Due to other funds 4,967           58,941         107,454       171,362         

Total liabilities 150,817       58,941         116,577       326,335         

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue:

Special assessments                                         123,255       123,255         

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)

Restricted 16,980         234,667       412,850       664,497         

Assigned 128,605                           1,548,143    1,676,748      

Unassigned (11,439)        (1,324)          (98,814)        (111,577)       

   Total Fund Balance (Deficit) 134,146       233,343       1,862,179    2,229,668      

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE 284,963$     292,284$     2,102,011$  2,679,258$    

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2014



78

Special 
Revenue Debt Service

Capital 
Projects Total

REVENUES

Property and franchise taxes 19,145$        139,091$      19$               158,255$      
Special assessments                      87,895          68,763          156,658        
Intergovernmental revenues 36,993          134,848        65,076          236,917        
Charges for services 152,106                             8,840            160,946        
Fines and forfeitures 26,036                                                    26,036          
Investment income 7,178            2,626            63,519          73,323          
Other revenues 20,955                               11,516          32,471          

TOTAL REVENUES 262,413        364,460        217,733        844,606        

EXPENDITURES

Current

General government 25,024                                                    25,024          
Public safety 12,481                                                    12,481          
Public works 36,224                               113,398        149,622        
Recreation and parks                      4,213            4,213            
Development and other 180,063                                                  180,063        

Capital Outlay

Public works                                           270,539        270,539        
Recreation and parks                                           20,035          20,035          

Debt Service

Principal                      795,411                             795,411        
Interest and other                      52,549                               52,549          

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 253,792        847,960        408,185        1,509,937     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 8,621            (483,500)       (190,452)       (665,331)      

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers from other funds                      734,024        221,617        955,641        
Transfers to other funds (3,500)           (271,940)       (244,902)       (520,342)      

Total other financing sources (uses) (3,500)           462,084        (23,285)         435,299        

Net change in fund balances 5,121            (21,416)         (213,737)       (230,032)      

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), Beginning 129,025        254,759        2,075,916     2,459,700     

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), Ending 134,146$      233,343$      1,862,179$   2,229,668$   

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014



This Page Left Blank Intentionally



80

Recycling Street Lighting Cable

Police 
Forfeiture

ASSETS

Cash and investments 36,668$       26,074$       $             12,810$       

Accounts receivable 40,428         9,297           19,145                             

TOTAL ASSETS 77,096$       35,371$       19,145$       12,810$       

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 7,297$         3,101$         $             452$            

Deposits payable                                                                                 

Due to other funds 4,967           

Total liabilities 7,297           3,101           4,967           452              

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)

Restricted

Assigned 69,799         32,270         14,178         12,358         

Unassigned

   Total Fund Balance (Deficit) 69,799         32,270         14,178         12,358         

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE 77,096$       35,371$       19,145$       12,810$       

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

December 31, 2014



81

Police 
Reserves

Developers 
Escrow Tower Days

Traffic 
Education Total

2,116$         123,561$     8,954$         5,910$         216,093$     

                                                                                68,870         

2,116$         123,561$     8,954$         5,910$         284,963$     

$             2,409$         $             $             13,259$       

                    132,591                                               132,591       

4,967           

                    135,000                                               150,817       

2,116           8,954           5,910           16,980         

                                                            128,605       

(11,439)        (11,439)        

2,116           (11,439)        8,954           5,910           134,146       

2,116$         123,561$     8,954$         5,910$         284,963$     



82

Recycling Street Lighting Cable

Police 
Forfeiture

REVENUES

Franchise taxes $              $              19,145$        $              
Intergovernmental revenue 36,993                                                                         

Charges for services 107,866        38,497                                                    
Fines and forfeitures                                                                26,036          

Investment income (loss) 1,187            747               220               720               
Other revenues                                                                1,324            

TOTAL REVENUES 146,046        39,244          19,365          28,080          

EXPENDITURES

Current

General government                                           25,024                               

Public safety                                                                12,083          
Public works                      36,224                                                    

Development and other 140,398                                                                       
Capital Outlay

Public safety                      

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 140,398        36,224          25,024          12,083          

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 5,648            3,020            (5,659)           15,997          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers to other funds (3,500)                                                                          

Net change in fund balances 2,148            3,020            (5,659)           15,997          

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), Beginning 67,651          29,250          19,837          (3,639)           

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), Ending 69,799$        32,270$        14,178$        12,358$        

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014



83

Police 
Reserves

Developers 
Escrow Tower Days

Traffic 
Education Total

$              $              $              $              19,145$        
                                                                                    36,993          

                                                               5,743            152,106        
                                                                                    26,036          

68                 3,747            322               167               7,178            
                     5,000            14,631                               20,955          

68                 8,747            14,953          5,910            262,413        

                                                                                    25,024          

398                                                                              12,481          
                                                                                    36,224          

                     21,477          18,188                               180,063        
                     

                     

398               21,477          18,188                               253,792        

(330)              (12,730)         (3,235)           5,910            8,621            

                                                                                    (3,500)           

(330)              (12,730)         (3,235)           5,910            5,121            

2,446            1,291 12,189                               129,025        

2,116$          (11,439)$       8,954$          5,910$          134,146$      



84

2013 
Equipment 
Certificates

2009 
Refunding 

Bonds

ASSETS

Cash and investments 8,497$         $             

Due from other governmental units 1,368                               

TOTAL ASSETS 9,865$         $             

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES

Due to other funds $             $             

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)

Restricted 9,865                               

Unassigned

   Total Fund Balance (Deficit) 9,865                               

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE 9,865$         $             

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

December 31, 2014



85

Fire Bond - 
Building

Fire Bond - 
Equipment

2014A G.O. 
Improvement 

Bonds

2013B G.O. 
Capital 

Improvement 
Bonds Total

57,613$       $             224,802$     $             290,912$     

4                                                                              1,372           

57,617$       $             224,802$     $             292,284$     

58,941$       $             $             58,941$       

224,802                           234,667       

(1,324)                              (1,324)          

(1,324)                              224,802                           233,343       

57,617$       $             224,802$     $             292,284$     



86

2013 
Equipment 
Certificates

2009 
Refunding 

Bonds

REVENUES

Taxes 139,091$      $              
Special assessments                      

Intergovernmental revenue

Investment income 544                                    

TOTAL REVENUES 139,635                             

EXPENDITURES

Debt Service

Principal 135,000        540,000        

Interest and other charges 5,400            13,500          

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 140,400        553,500        

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures (765)              (553,500)       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers from other funds 553,500

Transfers to other funds                      (271,940)       

Total other financing sources (uses)                      281,560        

Net change in fund balances (765)              (271,940)       

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), Beginning 10,630          271,940        

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), Ending 9,865$          $               

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014



87

Fire Bond - 
Building

Fire Bond - 
Equipment

2014A G.O. 
Improvement 

Bonds

2013B G.O. 
Capital 

Improvement 
Bonds Total

$              $               $              $              139,091$      
87,895                      87,895          

134,848                      134,848        
23                                      2,059                      2,626            

23                                      224,802                             364,460        

32,871          27,540          60,000          795,411        
19,716          1,022            12,911          52,549          

52,587          28,562                               72,911          847,960        

(52,564)         (28,562)         224,802        (72,911)         (483,500)       

50,000 57,613          72,911 734,024        

                                                                                    (271,940)       

50,000          57,613                               72,911          462,084        

(2,564)           29,051          224,802                             (21,416)         

1,240            (29,051)                                                   254,759        

(1,324)$         $               224,802$      $               233,343$      



88

State Aid 
Street Fund

81st Avenue 
Rehabilitation

Street 
Sealcoating Storm Water

ASSETS

Cash and investments 19,726$       $             154,089$     66,039$       

Special assessments receivable                     120,382                                               
Due from other governmental units 3,296           

TOTAL ASSETS 19,726$       123,678$     154,089$     66,039$       

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 1,162$         $             $             3,294$         

Due to other funds                     102,110                                               
Total liabilities 1,162           102,110                           3,294           

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue:

Special assessments 120,382       

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)

Restricted

Assigned 18,564         154,089       62,745         
Unassigned (98,814)        

   Total Fund Balance (Deficit) 18,564         (98,814)        154,089       62,745         

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE 19,726$       123,678$     154,089$     66,039$       

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

December 31, 2014



89

Capital 
Replacement

2013 
Equipment 
Certificates Right of Way

Building 
Maintenance

Public Safety 
Replacement

434,031$     163,421$     16,032$       92,832$       25,818$       
                                                                                                    

434,031$     163,421$     16,032$       92,832$       25,818$       

$             175$            $             $             $             
                                                                                                    
                    175                                                                          

163,246       
434,031       16,032         92,832         25,818         

434,031       163,246       16,032         92,832         25,818         

434,031$     163,421$     16,032$       92,832$       25,818$       



90

Park Special 
Projects

Park 
Acquisition 

and 
Improvement

Lakeside 
Lions Park 

Improvement
Small 

Equipment

ASSETS

Cash and investments 18,859$       224,210$     6,535$         25,408$       

Special assessments receivable                                                                                 
Due from other governmental units

TOTAL ASSETS 18,859$       224,210$     6,535$         25,408$       

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $             $             $             331$            
Due to other funds                                                                                 

Total liabilities                                                             331              

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue:
Special assessments                     

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)

Restricted 18,859         224,210       6,535           
Assigned 25,077         
Unassigned

   Total Fund Balance (Deficit) 18,859         224,210       6,535           25,077         

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE 18,859$       224,210$     6,535$         25,408$       

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

December 31, 2014

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK



91

Park 
Equipment 

and 
Improvement

Highway 10 
Frontage 

Road
 Revolving 

Fund Total

11,504$       $             716,953$     1,975,457$  
                                        2,873           123,255       

3 3,299           

11,504$       $             719,829$     2,102,011$  

$             $             4,161$         9,123$         
5,344                                                   107,454       
5,344                               4,161           116,577       

2,873           123,255       

412,850       
6,160                               712,795       1,548,143    

(98,814)        
6,160                               712,795       1,862,179    

11,504$       $             719,829$     2,102,011$  



92

State Aid 
Street Fund

81st Avenue 
Rehabilitation

Street 
Sealcoating Storm Water

REVENUES

Taxes $              $              $              $              

Special assessments                      66,284                                                    

Intergovernmental revenues 65,076                                                                         
Charges for services                                                                                     

Investment income (loss) 686               735               4,760            1,897            

Other revenues                                                                                     

TOTAL REVENUES 65,762          67,019          4,760            1,897            

EXPENDITURES

Current

Public Works 56,222                                                    25,684          

Recreation and Parks                                                                                     
Capital Outlay

Public works                                                                                     

Recreation and Parks                                                                                     

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 56,222                                                    25,684          

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures 9,540            67,019          4,760            (23,787)         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers from other funds                                                                25,000          
Transfers to other funds (187,289)       

Total other financing sources (uses)                      (187,289)                            25,000          

Net change in fund balances 9,540            (120,270)       4,760            1,213            

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), Beginning 9,024            21,456          149,329        61,532          

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), Ending 18,564$        (98,814)$       154,089$      62,745$        

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014



93

Capital 
Replacement

2013 
Equipment 
Certificates Right of Way

Building 
Maintenance

Public Safety 
Replacement

$              $              $              $              $              
                                                                                                         
                                                                                                         
                                                                                                         

13,360          5,137            496               2,687            748               
2,355                                                                                                

15,715          5,137            496               2,687            748               

                                                                                                         
                                                                                                         

                     172,025                                                                       
                                                                                                         

                     172,025                                                                       

15,715          (166,888)       496               2,687            748               

                                                               7,328            2,000            
(57,613)         

                     (57,613)                              7,328            2,000            

15,715          (224,501)       496               10,015          2,748            

418,316        387,747        15,536          82,817          23,070          

434,031$      163,246$      16,032$        92,832$        25,818$        



94

Park Special 
Projects

Park 
Acquisition 

and 
Improvement

Lakeside 
Lions Park 

Improvement
Small 

Equipment

REVENUES

Taxes $              $              $              $              

Special assessments                                                                                     

Intergovernmental revenues                                                                                     
Charges for services 3,281                                                      5,559            

Investment earnings 580               6,927            201               927               
Other revenues                                                                4,986            

TOTAL REVENUES 3,861            6,927            201               11,472          

EXPENDITURES

Current

Public Works                                                                                     
Recreation and Parks 3,126                                                      1,087            

Capital Outlay

Public works                                                                                     

Recreation and Parks                                                                14,844          

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,126                                                      15,931          

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 735               6,927            201               (4,459)           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers from other funds                                                                                     
Transfers to other funds

Total other financing sources (uses)                                                                                     

Net change in fund balances 735               6,927            201               (4,459)           

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), Beginning 18,124          217,283        6,334            29,536          

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), Ending 18,859$        224,210$      6,535$          25,077$        

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014



95

Park 
Equipment 

and 
Improvement

Highway 10 
Frontage 

Road
Revolving 

Fund Total

$              $              19$               19$               
                                          2,479            68,763          
                                                               65,076          
                                                               8,840            

344                                    24,034          63,519          
4,175                                                      11,516          

4,519                                 26,532          217,733        

                     31,492 113,398        
                     4,213            

                     

                     98,514 270,539        
5,191            20,035          

5,191                                 130,006        408,185        

(672)                                   (103,474)       (190,452)       

                     187,289 221,617        
(244,902)       

                     187,289                             (23,285)         

(672)              187,289        (103,474)       (213,737)       

6,832            (187,289)       816,269        2,075,916     

6,160$          $              712,795$      1,862,179$   



This Page Left Blank Intentionally



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

OTHER REPORT SECTION

December 31, 2014



This Page Left Blank Intentionally



99

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING 
STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council

City of Spring Lake Park

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major fund of the City of Spring 
Lake Park as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City of Spring Lake Park's basic financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated June 26, 2015.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Spring 
Lake Park's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions 
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the City's internal control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as described in the 
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses, we identified certain deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City's financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the 
deficiencies described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses to be 
material weaknesses.



100

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council

City of Spring Lake Park

A significant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal control that is 
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances 
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Governmental 
Auditing Standards.

City's Response to Findings
The City of Spring Lake Park's responses to the findings identified in our audit have been 
included in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses.  The City's responses
were not subject to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the City's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  This report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Maplewood, Minnesota
June 26, 2015



101

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Audit Finding 2014-01 - Segregation of Duties

Criteria or Specific Requirement: Internal control that supports the City's ability to initiate, 
record, process and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the 
financial statements requires adequate controls over the access of such financial data.

Condition: The City does not have adequate segregation of accounting duties.

Context: This finding impacts the internal control for all significant accounting functions.

Effect: The lack of adequate segregation of accounting duties could adversely affect the City's 
ability to initiate, record, process and report financial data consistent with the assertions of 
management in the financial statements.

Recommendation: Continue to review the accounting system, including changes that may 
occur.  Implement segregation whenever practical.

Management's Response: Management agrees with our recommendation.

Auditing Finding 2014-02 - Material Audit Adjustments

Criteria or Specific Requirement: The City is required to report accurate financial information.

Condition: The City's unaudited trial balance contained material misstatements.

Context: This finding impacts the internal control for all significant accounting functions.

Effect: The material misstatement in the unaudited trial balance resulted in the need to record 
adjustments during the audit.

Recommendation: We recommend management develop an accounting policy and 
procedures manual to assist with ensuring that all transactions are recorded consistently and 
that the information necessary to prepare an accurate unaudited trial balance is gathered in an 
organized and efficient manner.

Management's Response: Management agrees with our recommendation.



This Page Left Blank Intentionally



103

MINNESOTA LEGAL COMPLIANCE

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council

City of Spring Lake Park

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Spring Lake Park, as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report 
thereon dated June 26, 2015.

The Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions, promulgated by the State 
Auditor pursuant to Minnesota State Statutes Sec. 6.65, contains seven categories of compliance 
to be tested: contracting and bidding, deposits and investments, conflicts of interest, public 
indebtedness, claims and disbursements, miscellaneous provisions and tax increment financing.  
Our audit considered all of the listed categories, except that we did not test for compliance with 
the provisions for tax increment financing because the City's lone tax increment financing district
was decertified in 2012.

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the City 
of Spring Lake Park failed to comply with the provisions of the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit 
Guide for Political Subdivisions. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining 
knowledge of such noncompliance.  Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other 
matters may have come to our attention regarding the City of Spring Lake Park's noncompliance 
with the above referenced provisions.

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on compliance. Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Maplewood, Minnesota
June 26, 2015



This Page Left Blank Intentionally



 

 

 

Police Report 

June 2015 

Submitted for Council Meeting – July 20, 2015 

 

The Spring Lake Park Police Department responded to four hundred and twenty-six calls for service for 

the month of June 2015. This compared to responding to four hundred and fifty-nine calls for service in 

June 2014. 

The police department for the month of June 2015 issued one hundred and thirty-four citations, this 

compared to issuing one hundred and fifty-two citations in June of 2014. The police department for the 

month of June 2015 has deployed our speed trailer ten times at different locations around our city to 

help those driving on our local streets to monitor their speeds.  

Investigator Baker reports handling eighty-one cases for the month of June 2015, forty-six of these cases 

were felony in nature, nineteen of these cases were gross misdemeanor in nature and sixteen of these 

cases were misdemeanor in nature. Investigator Baker continues to work on these cases in a diligent 

manner to bring them to a conclusion as quickly as possible. For further details, see Investigator Bakers 

attached report.  

The Spring Lake Park Police Department Office Staff remain steadfast in their duties, typing and imaging 

reports, filing, answering and dispensing phone calls for service and information,  while continuing to 

address citizen concerns at the “Police Public Walk up Window” along with other duties that may be 

assigned on a daily basis.  

The month of June 2015 has been a busy month for myself as well, besides handling the day to day 

operations of the police department, I have attended numerous meetings to include but not limited to: 

- Orchestrating a meeting with Mark Warner from furnitureWorx regarding research 

for office staff chairs for the police department and city hall.  

- Attending a Department Head meeting held here at City Hall 



- Orchestrating and hold a meeting with Scott Adkisson of Diversion Solutions, LLC., to 

finalize set up of our Traffic Education Program 

- Assisting with the City Celebration “Tower Days Parade” with staffing the parade 

route and monitoring the festivities associated with it, including weather conditions. 

- I attended both council meetings for the month 

- I attended a workshop held here at City Hall with the Mayor, Council and 

Department Heads regarding the cities “Capital Improvement Plan” 

- I attended the Anoka County Chiefs of Police monthly meeting  

- I attended a webinar regarding equipment research for the police department 

sponsored by Taser, Inc.  

- I preformed departmental evaluations of the Spring Lake Park Police Department 

Sergeants. 

- I had  a phone  meeting with Larry Johnson of Emmanuel Christian Center regarding 

the event “Convoy of Hope” to be held at the Spring Lake Park High School on 

August 1, 2015 

- I attended a meeting of the Governance Committee for the Public Safety Data 

System 

- I attended a meeting with Administrator Buchholtz, Law Enforcement Labor Services 

Representative Adam Burnside and an employee regarding city/labor issues. 

This will conclude my report for the month of June 2015.  

Are there any questions? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Spring Lake Park Police Department 
Investigations Monthly Report 

 

 
Investigator 

Brad Baker 

 

June 2015 
 

 

Total Case Load 
 

Case Load by Level of Offense: 81 
 

Felony    46 

Gross Misdemeanor  19 

Misdemeanor   16 

 

Case Dispositions: 
 

County Attorney    5 

Juvenile County Attorney  0 

City Attorney    1 

Forward to Other Agency  0 

SLP Liaison    0 

Carried Over    57 

Unfounded     0 

Exceptionally Cleared   1 

Closed/Inactive    5 

Active Forfeitures   9 

Forfeitures Closed   3 

 

Notes:  . 



 



 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: MAYOR HANSEN AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: DANIEL R. BUCHHOLTZ, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

SUBJECT: LIQUOR ORDINANCE UPDATE 

DATE: JUNE 23, 2015 

 

At the April 13 workshop, staff reviewed a proposed liquor ordinance with the City Council.  

The proposed ordinance, based on a template provided by the League of Minnesota Cities, 

would repeal and replace the existing liquor ordinance.  The Council reviewed the draft and 

authorized staff to send the proposed ordinance to our liquor licensees for review and comment.  

Staff provided licensees three weeks to respond with comments.  Comments were due on June 

22.  The City did not receive any calls or written comments in regards to the ordinance. 

 

The proposed liquor ordinance: 

 Adopts Minnesota Statutes Chapter 340A by reference.  M.S. 340A is the State Liquor 

Law.   

 Permits the City to be more restrictive than State Law concerning the sale and 

possession of alcoholic beverages. 

 Defines “liquor” and “restaurant” as those terms are used in the ordinance. 

 Makes it unlawful for liquor licenses to permit nudity on the premises of a licensed 

establishment. 

 Provides that no person shall consume intoxicating or 3.2 percent malt liquor on any 

public street, sidewalk, parking lot or alley or in any public place other than on the 

premises of an establishment licensed under this ordinance, in a municipal liquor 

dispensary if one exists in the city, or where the consumption and display of liquor is 

lawfully permitted.  Provides that no person shall consume or possess intoxicating or 

3.2 percent malt liquor in any public park unless specifically approved by the City 

Council. 

 Limits the number of licenses which may be issued to those authorized under M.S. 

340A.413. 

 Establishes the term and expiration of licenses. 

 Establishes the kinds of liquor licenses which may be issued 

o 3.2 percent malt liquor on-sale licenses 

o Temporary 3.2 percent malt liquor licenses 

o On-sale intoxicating liquor licenses (includes club licenses) 

o Sunday on-sale intoxicating liquor licenses 

o Temporary on-sale intoxicating liquor licenses 

o On-sale wine licenses 

o Consumption and display permit 



 

o Culinary class limited on-sale licenses 

o Brew pub on-sale licenses 

o Brew pub off-sale licenses 

o Brewer tap room licenses 

 Authorizes the establishment of license fees by ordinance 

 Permits the Council, in its sound discretion, to grant or deny applications for licenses, 

or for the transfer or renewal of any license. 

 Describes the information required in an application for a license. 

 Requires a specific description of the premises to be licensed. 

 Provides that applications for renewal of licenses be filed at least 60 days before the 

date of expiration and permits the Council, in its sound discretion, to renew or not 

renew a license. 

 Prohibits the transfer of a license without Council approval. 

 Requires background and financial investigation of applicants for a license, renewal of 

a license or transfer of a license. 

 Provides for a hearing on the issuance of a license. 

 Establishes restrictions on the issuance of a license. 

 Establishes the conditions or a liquor license that a licensee must follow to avoid 

suspension or revocation.  The failure of a licensee to meet any one of the conditions 

of the license shall result in a suspension of the license until the condition is met. 

o Within 90 days after employment, every person selling or serving liquor in an 

establishment which has an "on-sale" license shall receive training regarding 

the selling or serving of liquor to customers. The training shall be provided by 

an organization approved by the Council. Proof of training of the servers shall 

be provided by the licensee. 

o Every licensee is responsible for the conduct of the place of business and the 

conditions of sobriety and order in it. The act of any employee on the licensed 

premises is deemed the act of the licensee as well, and the licensee shall be 

liable to all penalties provided by this ordinance and the law equally with the 

employee. 

o Every licensee shall allow any peace officer, health officer, city employee, or 

any other person designated by the Council to conduct compliance checks and 

to otherwise enter, inspect and search the premises of the licensee during 

business hours and after business hours during the time when customers 

remain on the premises without a warrant. 

o No on-sale establishment shall display liquor to the public during hours when 

the sale of liquor is prohibited. 

o Compliance with financial responsibility requirements of state law and of this 

ordinance is a continuing condition of any license. 

 Establishes hours and days of sale which are consistent with those established by state 

law.  Provides that: 

o No person shall consume nor shall any on-sale licensee permit any 

consumption of intoxicating liquor or 3.2 percent malt liquor in an on-sale 



 

licensed premises more than 30 minutes after the time when a sale can legally 

occur. 

o No on-sale licensee shall permit any glass, bottle or other container 

containing intoxicating liquor or 3.2 percent malt liquor to remain upon any 

table, bar, stool or other place where customers are served, more than 30 

minutes after the time when a sale can legally occur. 

o No person, other than the licensee and any employee, shall remain on the on-

sale licensed premises more than 30 minutes after the time when a sale can 

legally occur. 

 Prohibits minor and underage persons on license premises except under certain 

conditions. 

 Prohibits persons from mixing or preparing liquor for consumption in any public place 

of business unless it has a license or permit. 

 Establishes the circumstances and procedures for suspension and revocation a license.  

The Council is required to either suspend for a period not to exceed 60 days or revoke 

any liquor license upon finding that the licensee has failed to comply with any 

applicable statute, regulation or provision of this ordinance relating to liquor. Lapse of 

required proof of financial responsibility shall effect an immediate suspension of any 

license issued pursuant to this ordinance or state law without further action of the 

Council. Notice of cancellation or lapse of a current liquor liability policy shall also 

constitute notice to the licensee of the impending suspension of the license.  A schedule 

of minimum periods of suspension and for revocation is established. 

 Provides for the continued establishment of an “off-sale” municipal liquor store. 

 Provides for the location of the municipal liquor store. 

 Provides for the operation of the municipal liquor store. 

 Provides for proof of financial responsibility of municipal liquor stores. 

 Provides for penalties for violating this ordinance, including a schedule of civil 

penalties. 

 

Staff wishes to thank the City’s liquor licensees for their time in reviewing the ordinance.  Staff 

also wishes to thank the City Council for their time in reviewing and providing comments on 

the proposed ordinance. 

 

If the ordinance appears to be in order, staff would recommend approval of Ordinance 417, an 

Ordinance Regulating the Possession, Sale and Consumption of Intoxicating and 3.2 Percent 

Malt Liquor within the City of Spring Lake Park, Minnesota. 

 

If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 763-784-6491. 



 



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 417 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING AND REPLACING CHAPTER 111 OF THE SPRING 

LAKE PARK CITY CODE REGULATING THE POSSESSION, SALE AND 

CONSUPTION OF INTOXICATING AND 3.2 PERCENT MALT LIQUOR WITHIN 

THE CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK, MINNESOTA, DOES 

HEREBY ORDAIN: 

 

Section 1. The language and content of the current Chapter 111 of the Spring Lake Park 

shall be and hereby is repealed in its entirety and that a new ordinance with the same title be 

enacted as follows: 

 

CHAPTER 111:  LIQUOR REGULATIONS 

 

§111.01 ADOPTION OF STATE LAW BY REFERENCE. 

 

The provisions of Minn. Stat. Ch. § 340A as they may be amended from time to time, with 

reference to the definition of terms, conditions of operation, restrictions on consumption, 

provisions relating to sales, hours of sale, and all other matters pertaining to the retail sale, 

distribution, and consumption of intoxicating liquor and 3.2 percent malt liquor are hereby 

adopted by reference and are made a part of this Ordinance as if set out in full. It is the intention 

of the City Council that all future amendments to Minn. Stat. Ch. § 340A are hereby adopted by 

reference or referenced as if they had been in existence at the time this Ordinance is adopted. 

 

§111.02 CITY MAY BE MORE RESTRICTIVE THAN STATE LAW. 

 

The Council is authorized by the provisions of Minn. Stat. § 340A.509 as it may be amended 

from time to time, to impose, and has imposed in this ordinance, additional restrictions on the 

sale and possession of alcoholic beverages within its limits beyond those contained in Minn. Stat. 

Ch. 340A as it may be amended from time to time. 

 

§111.03 DEFINITIONS 

 

In addition to the definitions contained in Minn. Stat. § 340A.101 as it may be amended from 

time to time, the following terms are defined for purposes of this ordinance: 

 

LIQUOR.  As used in this ordinance, without modification by the words An 

“intoxicating” or a “3.2 percent malt,” includes both intoxicating liquor and 3.2 percent malt 

liquor. 

 

RESTAURANT.  An eating facility, other than a hotel, under the control of a single 

proprietor or manager, where meals are regularly prepared on the premises, where full 

waitress/waiter table service is provided, where a customer orders food from printed menus and 

where the main food course is served and consumed while seated at a single location. To be a 

restaurant as defined by this section, an establishment shall have a license from the state as 



 

 

required by Minn. Stat. §157.16, as it may be amended from time to time, and meet the definition 

of either a “small establishment,” “medium establishment” or “large establishment” as defined in 

Minn. Stat. §157.16, subd. 3(d), as it may be amended from time to time. An establishment 

which serves prepackaged food that receives heat treatment and is served in the package or 

frozen pizza that is heated and served, shall not be considered to be a restaurant for purposes of 

this ordinance unless it meets the definitions of a “small establishment”, “medium 

establishment” or “large establishment”. 

 

§111.04 NUDITY ON THE PREMISES OF LICENSED ESTABLISHMENTS 

PROHIBITED. 

 

(A) The City Council finds that it is in the best interests of the public health, safety, and 

general welfare of the people of the city that nudity is prohibited as provided in this 

section on the premises of any establishment licensed under this ordinance. This is to 

protect and assist the owners, operators, and employees of the establishment, as well 

as patrons and the public in general, from harm stemming from the physical 

immediacy and combination of alcohol, nudity, and sex. The Council especially 

intends to prevent any subliminal endorsement of sexual harassment or activities 

likely to lead to the possibility of various criminal conduct, including prostitution, 

sexual assault, and disorderly conduct. The Council also finds that the prohibition of 

nudity on the premises of any establishment licensed under this ordinance, as set forth 

in this section, reflects the prevailing community standards of the city. 

 

(B) It is unlawful for any licensee to permit or allow any person or persons on the 

licensed premises when the person does not have his or her buttocks, anus, breasts, 

and genitals covered with a non-transparent material. It is unlawful for any person to 

be on the licensed premises when the person does not have his or her buttocks, anus, 

breasts, and genitals covered with a non-transparent material. 

 

(C) A violation of this section is a misdemeanor punishable as provided by law, and is 

justification for revocation or suspension of any liquor, wine, or 3.2 percent malt 

liquor license or any other license issued under this ordinance or the imposition of a 

civil penalty under the provisions of §111.27(B). 

 

§111.05 CONSUMPTION IN PUBLIC PLACES. 

 

No person shall consume intoxicating liquor or 3.2 percent malt liquor on any public street, 

sidewalk, parking lot or alley, or in any public place other than on the premises of an 

establishment licensed under this ordinance, in a municipal liquor dispensary if one exists in the 

city, or where the consumption and display of liquor is lawfully permitted.   

 

No person shall consume or possess intoxicating liquor or 3.2 percent malt liquor in any city 

park unless specifically approved by the City Council.  This prohibition shall include parking 

areas connected with the park. 

  



 

 

 

§111.06 NUMBER OF LICENSES WHICH MAY BE ISSUED. 

 

The number of licenses which may be granted under this ordinance is limited to the number of 

licenses authorized under Minn. Stat. §340A.413.  The Council is not required to issue the full 

number of licenses that it has available. 

 

§111.07 TERM AND EXPIRATION OF LICENSES. 

 

Each license shall be issued for a maximum period of one year. All licenses, except temporary 

licenses, shall expire on December 31 of each year unless another date is provided by ordinance. 

All licenses shall expire on the same date. Temporary licenses expire according to their terms. 

Consumption and display permits issued by the Commissioner of Public Safety, and the 

accompanying city consent to the permit, shall expire on March 31 of each year. 

 

§111.08 KINDS OF LIQUOR LICENSES. 

 

The Council is authorized to issue the following licenses and permits, up to the number specified 

in §111.06 of this Chapter. 

 

(A) 3.2 percent malt liquor on-sale licenses, which may be issued only to golf courses, 

restaurants, hotels, clubs, bowling centers, and establishments used exclusively for 

the sale of 3.2 percent malt liquor with the incidental sale of tobacco and soft drinks. 

 

(B) Temporary 3.2 percent malt liquor licenses which may be issued only to a club, 

charitable, religious, or nonprofit organization. 

 

(C) On-sale intoxicating liquor licenses, which may be issued to the following 

establishments as defined by Minn. Stat. § 340A.101, as it may be amended from 

time to time, and this ordinance: hotels, restaurants, bowling centers, theaters, clubs 

or congressionally chartered veterans organizations, theaters and exclusive liquor 

stores. Club licenses may be issued only with the approval of the Commissioner of 

Public Safety. The fee for club licenses established by the Council under §111.09 of 

this ordinance shall not exceed the amounts provided for in Minn. Stat. § 340A.408, 

subd. 2(b) as it may be amended from time to time. The following license 

classifications are established: 

 

(1) Class A: for establishments which are conducted in such a manner that the 

business of serving food for a license year is a minimum of 55% of the total 

business of serving food and intoxicating liquor. 

 

(2) Class B: for establishments which are conducted in such a manner that the 

business of serving food for a license year which is less than 55% of the total 

business of serving food and intoxicating liquor. 

 



 

 

The Council may in its sound discretion authorize a retail on-sale licensee to dispense 

intoxicating liquor off the licensed premises at a community festival held within the 

city under the provisions of Minn. Stat. § 340A.404, subd. 4(b) as it may be amended 

from time to time. The Council may in its sound discretion authorize a retail on-sale 

licensee to dispense intoxicating liquor off the licensed premises at any convention, 

banquet, conference, meeting, or social affair conducted on the premises of a sports, 

convention, or cultural facility owned by the city, under the provisions of Minn. Stat. 

§ 340A.404, subd. 4(a) as it may be amended from time to time; however, the 

licensee is prohibited from dispensing intoxicating liquor to any person attending or 

participating in an amateur athletic event being held on the premises. 

 

(D) Sunday on-sale intoxicating liquor licenses, only after authorization to do so by voter 

approval at a general or special election as provided by Minn. Stat. § 340A.504, subd. 

3, as it may be amended from time to time. Sunday on-sale intoxicating liquor 

licenses may be issued only to a restaurant as defined in §111.04 of this ordinance, 

club, bowling center, or hotel which has a seating capacity of at least 30 persons, 

which holds an on-sale intoxicating liquor license, and which serves liquor only in 

conjunction with the service of food. The maximum fee for this license, which shall 

be established by the Council under the provisions of §111.09 of this ordinance, shall 

not exceed $200, or the maximum amount provided by Minn. Stat. § 340A.504, subd. 

3(c) as it may be amended from time to time. 

 

(E) Temporary on-sale intoxicating liquor licenses, with the approval of the 

Commissioner of Public Safety, which may be issued only in connection with a social 

event sponsored by a club, charitable, religious or other nonprofit corporation that has 

existed for at least three years.  No license shall be for longer than four consecutive 

days and the City shall issue no more than twelve days worth of temporary licenses to 

any one organization in one calendar year. 

 

(F) On-sale wine licenses, with the approval of the Commissioner of Public Safety to: 

theaters, restaurants that have facilities for seating at least 25 guests at one time and 

meet the criteria of Minn. Stat. § 340A.404, subd. 5, as it may be amended from time 

to time, and which meet the definition of restaurant in §111.03; to licensed bed and 

breakfast facilities which meet the criteria in Minn. Stat. § 340A.401, subd. 1, as it 

may be amended from time to time and to theaters that meet the criteria of Minn. Stat. 

§ 340A.404(b) as it may be amended from time to time. The fee for an on-sale wine 

license established by the Council under the provisions of §111.09 of this ordinance, 

shall not exceed one-half of the license fee charged for an on-sale intoxicating liquor 

license. The holder of an on-sale wine license who also holds an on-sale 3.2 percent 

malt liquor license is authorized to sell malt liquor with a content over 3.2 percent 

(strong beer) without an additional license. 

 

(G) Approval of the issuance of a consumption and display permit by the Commissioner 

of Public Safety. The maximum amount of the additional fee which may be imposed 

by the Council on a person who has been issued a consumption and display permit 

under the provisions of §111.09 of this ordinance shall not exceed $300, or the 



 

 

maximum amount permitted by Minn. Stat. § 340A.414, subd. 6, as it may be 

amended from time to time. Consumption and display permits shall expire on March 

31 of each year. 

 

(H) Culinary class limited on-sale licenses may be issued to a business establishment not 

otherwise eligible for an on-sale intoxicating liquor license that, as part of its 

business, conducts culinary or cooking classes for which payment is made by each 

participant or advance reservation required. The license authorizes the licensee to 

furnish to each participant in each class, at no additional cost to the participant, up to 

a maximum of six ounces of wine or 12 ounces of intoxicating malt liquor, during and 

as part of the class, for consumption on the licensed premises only. 

 

(I) Brewer taproom licenses may be issued to brewers licensed under Minn. Stat. § 

340A.301 for the on-sale of malt liquor produced on a licensed premises, subject to 

the following conditions: 

 

(1) The on-sale of malt liquor may only be made during the days and hours that 

“on-sale” of liquor may be made, as prescribed by State Law or within this 

Chapter. 

 

(2) A brewer may only hold one (1) Brewer Taproom License within the City. 

 

(3) The only alcoholic beverage that may be sold or consumed on the premises of 

a licensed Brewer Taproom will be the malt liquor produced by the Brewer 

upon the Brewer Taproom premises. 

 

(4) Nothing in this subdivision precludes the holder of a Brewer Taproom License 

from also holding a license to operate a restaurant on the premises of the 

brewery. 

 

(5) A Brewer Taproom License may not be issued to a brewer if the brewer 

seeking the license, or any person having an economic interest in the brewer 

seeking the license or exercising control over the brewer seeking the license, 

is a brewer that brews or produces more than 250,000 barrels of malt liquor 

annually or a winery that produces more than 250,000 barrels of wine 

annually, as defined and prescribed by Minn. Stat. § 340.301. 

 

(J) On-sale brew pub licenses shall be issued only to hotels, clubs, restaurants, bowling 

centers or exclusive liquor stores and shall permit the sale of malt liquor produced on 

the licensed premises.  A licensee cannot sell more than 3,500 barrels of the malt 

liquor produced on the licensed premises per year.  A licensee may hold both an on-

sale license and an on-sale brew pub license. 

 

(K) Off-sale brew pub licenses may be issued to a licensee that hold a brewer taproom 

license or an on-sale brew pub license to sell growlers of the malt liquor produced on 

the licensed premises, subject to the following conditions: 



 

 

 

(1) The growler must be packaged in a 64 ounce container. 

 

(2) The growler must be properly sealed with a twist type closure, cork, stopper 

or plug. 

 

(3) At time of sale, the growler must also bear a plastic or paper adhesive band, 

strip or sleeve that extends over the top of the container forming a seal that 

must be broken upon opening the growler. 

 

(4) The seal and the growler must bear the name and address of the brew pub and 

will be considered intoxicating liquor. 

 

(5) Off-sale brew pub hours shall be as provided in §111.19. 

 

(6) Not more than 500 barrels of the brew pub’s annual production may be sold at 

off-sale. 

 

§111.09 LICENSE FEES; PRO RATA. 

 

(A) No license or other fee established by the city shall exceed any limit established by 

Minn. Stat. Ch. 340A, as it may be amended from time to time, for a liquor license. 

 

(B) The Council may establish from time to time in the Ordinance Establishing Fees and 

Charges the fee for any of the liquor licenses it is authorized to issue. The license fee 

may not exceed the cost of issuing the license and other costs directly related to the 

enforcement of the liquor laws and this ordinance. No liquor license fee shall be 

increased without providing mailed notice of a hearing on the proposed increase to all 

affected licensees at least 30 days before the hearing. 

 

(C) The fee for all licenses, except temporary licenses, granted after the commencement 

of the license year shall be prorated on a monthly basis. 

 

(D) All license fees shall be paid in full at the time the application is filed with the city. If 

the application is denied, the license fee shall be returned to the applicant. 

 

(E) A refund of a monthly pro rata share of an annual license fee may be refunded, less 

the cost of issuance as determined by the Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer, if: 

 

(1) The license is transferred to a new licensee in accordance with §111.14 and 

the City receives a license fee for the remainder of the license term from the 

transferee; or 

 

(2) A premises licensed to sell wine receives an on-sale intoxicating liquor license 

prior to the expiration of the wine license.  In this instance, a pro rata share of 

the wine license may be refunded. 



 

 

 

§111.10 COUNCIL DISCRETION TO GRANT OR DENY A LICENSE. 

 

(A) The Council in its sound discretion may either grant or deny the application for any 

license or for the transfer or renewal of any license. No applicant has a right to a 

license under this ordinance. 

 

(B) The Council may take into consideration any nuisance call or calls relating to the 

premises when considering the operation of the premises, application, transfer, 

modification or renewal of any license.  For the purposes of this section, “nuisance 

call” shall be defined as follows: any activity, conduct, or condition occurring on or 

related to the licensed premises which results in a call or report to the Spring Lake 

Park Police Department, other law enforcement agency or the Spring Lake Park Code 

Enforcement Department, including, but not limited to, calls and reports related to the 

following: 

 

(1) Any conduct, activity or condition alleged to constitute disorderly conduct, 

pursuant to Minn. Stat. §609.72. 

 

(2) Any conduct, activity or condition alleged to constitute a public nuisance, 

pursuant to Minn. Stat. §609.74 and/or §94.15-94.18 of the City Code. 

 

(3) Any conduct, activity or condition alleged to constitute an assault pursuant to 

Minn. State. §609.224. 

 

(4) Any conduct, activity or condition alleged to constitute a violation of 

Minnesota Statues relating to prostitution, controlled substances, use of 

firearms, criminal sexual conduct, and gambling. 

 

(5) Any conduct, activity or condition alleged to constitute a disorderly house 

pursuant to §609.33. 

 

(6) Any conduct, activity or condition alleged to constitute a violation of this 

article. 

 

(7) A failure to meet the minimum criteria for a restaurant or license holder. 

 

(C) Any violation of any provision of this article, or any nuisance call, regardless whether 

or not a criminal charge has been brought or a criminal conviction has been obtained, 

may be used by the Council, at its discretion, when considering the granting, denying, 

suspension, revocation, transfer, modification, or renewal of any license. 

 

§111.11 APPLICATION FOR LICENSE. 

 

(A) Form.  Every application for a license issued under this ordinance shall be on a form 

provided by the city. Every application shall state the name of the applicant, the 



 

 

applicant's age, representations as to the applicant's character, with references as the 

Council may require, the type of license applied for, the business in connection with 

which the proposed license will operate and its location, a description of the premises, 

whether the applicant is owner and operator of the business, how long the applicant 

has been in that business at that place, and other information as the Council may 

require from time to time. An application for an on-sale intoxicating liquor license 

shall be in the form prescribed by the Commissioner of Public Safety and shall also 

contain the information required in this section. The form shall be verified and filed 

with the city. No person shall make a false statement in an application. 

 

(B) Responsible party. Such application must identify a responsible party relative to each 

license. If the responsible party for a licensee will change, an application for the 

change shall be provided to the Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer at least 30 days prior 

to such change and shall be treated the same as an application for a new license. In 

the event that a 30-day prior notice is not feasible, a written explanation will be 

submitted to the Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer within one week of the known 

change documenting the reason(s) for the deviation; this is subject to approval by the 

police chief or his/her designee. Failure to file a timely application or explanation for 

a change in responsible party shall be grounds for revocation, suspension or non-

renewal of any license. 

 

(C) Financial responsibility.  Prior to the issuance of any license under this ordinance, the 

applicant shall demonstrate proof of financial responsibility as defined in Minn. Stat. 

§ 340A.409, as it may be amended from time to time, with regard to liability under 

Minn. Stat. § 340A.801, as it may be amended from time to time. This proof will be 

filed with the city and the Commissioner of Public Safety. Any liability insurance 

policy filed as proof of financial responsibility under this section shall conform to 

Minn. Stat. § 340A.409, as it may be amended from time to time. Operation of a 

business which is required to be licensed by this ordinance without having on file 

with the city at all times effective proof of financial responsibility is a cause for 

revocation of the license.  The licensee shall name the City as a certificate holder on 

the insurance policy or bond. 

 

§111.12 DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES. 

 

The application shall specifically describe the compact and contiguous premises within which 

liquor may be dispensed and consumed. The description may not include any parking lot or 

sidewalk.  An application for the proposed enlargement, alteration or extension of any premises 

previously licensed shall be provided to the Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer at least 30 days prior 

to such proposed enlargement, alteration or extension and shall be treated the same as an 

application for a new license. Failure to file an application for such enlargement, alteration or 

extension shall be grounds for revocation, suspension or non-renewal of any license. All 

premises licensed under this article shall be in compliance with all federal, state, municipal, 

building, zoning, and fire regulations. Failure to comply with any such federal, state, municipal, 

building, zoning and fire regulations shall be grounds for revocation, suspension or non-renewal 

of any license. 



 

 

 

§111.13 APPLICATION FOR RENEWAL. 

 

At least 60 days before a license issued under this ordinance is to be renewed, an application for 

renewal shall be filed with the city. If, in the judgment of the Council, good and sufficient cause 

is shown by the applicant for his/her failure to file for a renewal within the time provided, the 

Council may, if the other provisions of this chapter are complied with, grant the application.  The 

decision whether or not to renew a license rests within the sound discretion of the Council. No 

licensee has a right to have the license renewed. 

 

§111.14 TRANSFER OF LICENSE. 

 

No license issued under this ordinance may be transferred without the approval of the Council. 

Any transfer of stock of a corporate licensee is deemed to be a transfer of the license, and a 

transfer of stock without prior Council approval is a ground for revocation of the license. An 

application to transfer a license shall be treated the same as an application for a new license, and 

all of the provisions of this code applying to applications for a license shall apply. 

 

§111.15 INVESTIGATION. 

 

(A) Preliminary background and financial investigation. On an initial application for a 

license, on an application for transfer of a license and, in the sound discretion of the 

Council that it is in the public interest to do so, on an application for renewal of a 

license, the city shall conduct a preliminary background and financial investigation of 

the applicant or it may contract with the Commissioner of Public Safety for the 

investigation. The applicant shall pay with the application an investigation fee of 

$500 which shall be in addition to any license fee. If the cost of the preliminary 

investigation is less than $500, the unused balance shall be returned to the applicant. 

The results of the preliminary investigation shall be sent to the Commissioner of 

Public Safety if the application is for an on-sale intoxicating liquor license or an on-

sale wine license. 

 

(B) Comprehensive background and financial investigation. If the results of a preliminary 

investigation warrant, in the sound discretion of the Council, a comprehensive 

background and financial investigation, the Council may either conduct the 

investigation itself or contract with the Commissioner of Public Safety for the 

investigation. The investigation fee for this comprehensive background and financial 

investigation to be paid by the applicant shall be $500, less any amount paid for the 

initial investigation if the investigation is to be conducted within the state, and 

$10,000, less any amount paid for the initial investigation, if the investigation is 

required outside the state. The unused balance of the fee shall be returned to the 

applicant whether or not the application is denied. The fee shall be paid in advance of 

any investigation and the amount actually expended on the investigation shall not be 

refundable in the event the application is denied. The results of the comprehensive 

investigation shall be sent to the Commissioner of Public Safety if the application is 

for an on-sale intoxicating liquor license or an on-sale wine license. 



 

 

 

§111.16 HEARING AND ISSUANCE. 

 

The Council shall investigate all facts set out in the application and not investigated in the 

preliminary or comprehensive background and financial investigations. Opportunity shall be 

given to any person to be heard for or against the granting of the license. After the investigation 

and hearing, the Council shall in its sound discretion grant or deny the application. No license 

shall become effective until the proof of financial security has been approved by the 

Commissioner of Public Safety. 

 

§111.17 RESTRICTIONS ON ISSUANCE. 

 

(A) Each license shall be issued only to the applicant for the premises described in the 

application.  

 

(B) Not more than one license shall be directly or indirectly issued within the city to any 

one person. 

 

(C) No license shall be granted or renewed for operation on any premises on which taxes, 

assessments, utility charges, service charges, or other financial claims of the city are 

delinquent and unpaid.  In the event an action has been commenced pursuant to the 

provisions of M.S. Ch. 278, as it may be amended from time to time, questioning the 

amount of validity of taxes, the Council may, on application by the licensee, waive 

strict compliance with this provision.  No waiver may be granted, however, for taxes 

or any portion thereof which remain unpaid for a period exceeding one year after 

becoming due. 

 

(D) No license shall be issued for any place or any business ineligible for a license under 

state law. 

 

(E) No license shall be granted if the applicant, responsible party, owner, manager or any 

other person involved with the licensee: 

 

(1) Is under 21 years of age; 

 

(2) Who is not of good moral character and repute; 

 

(3) Who, if an individual, is not a U.S. citizen or resident alien, or upon whom it 

is impractical to conduct a background and financial investigation due to the 

lack of availability of information. 

 

(4) Who has been convicted, within five years prior to the application of such 

license, of any violation of any law of the United States, this state or any other 

state or territory, or of any local ordinance regarding the manufacture, sale or 

distribution of intoxicating liquor or whose liquor license has been revoked 

for any violation of any law or ordinance; 



 

 

 

(5) Who is a manufacturer or wholesaler of intoxicating liquor; and no 

manufacturer or wholesaler shall either directly or indirectly own or control or 

have any financial interest in any retail business selling intoxicating liquor; 

 

(6) Who is directly or indirectly interested in any other establishment in the city 

to which an on-sale liquor license has been issued under this chapter; 

 

(7) Who, if a corporation, does not have a manager who is eligible pursuant to the 

provisions of this section; or 

 

(8) Who is the spouse or a person ineligible for a license pursuant to this section 

or who, in the judgment of the Council, is not a real party in interest or 

beneficial owner of the business operated, or to be operated, under the license. 

 

(9) For the purpose of this section, the following definition shall apply unless the 

content clearly indicates or requires a different meaning. 

 

INTEREST.  Includes any pecuniary interest in the ownership, operation, 

management or profits of a retail liquor establishment, but does not include 

bona fide loans, bona fide rental agreements, bona fide open accounts, or 

other obligations arising out of the ordinary and regular course of the business 

of selling or leasing merchandise, fixtures or supplies to the establishment. 

 

(F) No license, other than a temporary 3.2 percent malt liquor license or temporary on-

sale intoxicating license, shall be granted within 500 feet of any school or church. The 

distance is to be measured from the closest side of the church to the closest side of the 

structure on the premises within which liquor is to be sold. 

 

(G) No license shall be issued for a premises owned, operated or managed by a person or 

by the spouse of a person, who is the holder of a sexually oriented business special 

use permit pursuant to Chapter 120 of the City Code. 

 

§111.18 CONDITIONS OF LICENSE. 

 

The failure of a licensee to meet any one of the conditions of the license specified below shall 

result in a suspension of the license until the condition is met. 

 

(A) Within 90 days after employment, every person selling or serving liquor in an 

establishment which has an on-sale license shall receive training regarding the selling 

or serving of liquor to customers. The training shall be provided by an organization 

approved by the Council. Proof of training shall be provided by the licensee. 

 

(B) Every licensee is responsible for the conduct of the place of business and the 

conditions of sobriety and order in it. The act of any employee on the licensed 



 

 

premises is deemed the act of the licensee as well, and the licensee shall be liable to 

all penalties provided by this ordinance and the law equally with the employee. 

 

(C) Every licensee shall allow any peace officer, health officer, city employee, or any 

other person designated by the Council to conduct compliance checks and to 

otherwise enter, inspect, and search the premises of the licensee during business hours 

and after business hours during the time when customers remain on the premises 

without a warrant. 

 

(D) No on-sale establishment shall display liquor to the public during hours when the sale 

of liquor is prohibited. 

 

(E) Compliance with financial responsibility requirements of state law and of this 

ordinance is a continuing condition of any license. 

 

§111.19 HOURS AND DAYS OF SALE. 

 

(A) The hours of operation and days of sale shall be those set by Minn. Stat. § 340A.504, 

as it may be amended from time to time, except that the City Council may, by 

resolution or ordinance, provide for more restrictive hours than state law allows. 

 

(B) No person shall consume nor shall any on-sale licensee permit any consumption of 

intoxicating liquor or 3.2 percent malt liquor in an on-sale licensed premises more 

than 30 minutes after the time when a sale can legally occur.  

 

(C) No on-sale licensee shall permit any glass, bottle, or other container containing 

intoxicating liquor or 3.2 percent malt liquor to remain upon any table, bar, stool, or 

other place where customers are served, more than 30 minutes after the time when a 

sale can legally occur. 

  

(D) No person, other than the licensee and any employee, shall remain on the on-sale 

licensed premises more than 30 minutes after the time when a sale can legally occur. 

  

(E) Any violation of any condition of this section may be grounds for revocation or 

suspension of the license. 

 

§111.20 MINORS ON PREMISES.  

 

(A) No person under the age of 18 years shall be employed in any rooms constituting the 

place in which intoxicating liquors or 3.2 percent malt liquor are sold at retail on sale, 

except that persons under the age of 18 may be employed as musicians or to perform 

the duties of a bus person, host or dishwashing services in places defined as a 

restaurant, hotel, motel or other multi-purpose building serving food in rooms in 

which intoxicating liquors or 3.2 percent malt liquor are sold at retail on sale. 

 



 

 

(B) No person under the age of 21 years may enter a licensed establishment except to 

work, consume meals on premises that qualify as a restaurant, or attend social 

functions that are held in a portion of the premises where liquor is not sold. 

 

§111.21 RESTRICTIONS ON PURCHASE AND CONSUMPTION. 

 

No person shall mix or prepare liquor for consumption in any public place of business unless it 

has a license to sell on-sale, or a permit from the Commissioner of Public Safety under the 

provisions of Minn. Stat. § 340A.414, as it may be amended from time to time, which has been 

approved by the Council, and no person shall consume liquor in any such place. 

 

§111.22 SUSPENSION AND REVOCATION. 

 

(A) The Council shall either suspend for a period not to exceed 60 days or revoke any 

liquor license upon finding that the licensee has failed to comply with any applicable 

statute, regulation, or provision of this ordinance relating to liquor. Except in cases of 

lapse of proof of financial responsibility, no suspension or revocation shall take effect 

until the licensee has been afforded an opportunity for a hearing pursuant to the 

Administrative Procedures Act, Minn. Stat. §§ 14.57 to 14.70, as it may be amended 

from time to time. The Council may act as the hearing body under that act, or it may 

contract with the Office of Hearing Examiners for a hearing officer. 

 

(B) The following are the minimum periods of suspension or revocation which shall be 

imposed by the Council for violations of the provisions of this ordinance or Minn. 

Stat. Ch. 340A, as it may be amended from time to time or any rules promulgated 

under that chapter as they may be amended from time to time: 

 

(1) For commission of a felony related to the licensed activity, sale of alcoholic 

beverages while the license is under suspension, sale of intoxicating liquor 

where the only license is for 3.2 percent malt liquor, or violation of §111.04, 

the license shall be revoked. 

 

(2) The license shall be suspended by the Council after a finding under division 

(A) that the licensee has failed to comply with any applicable statute, rule, or 

provision of this ordinance for at least the minimum periods as follows: 

 

(a) For the first violation within any three-year period, at least one day 

suspension in addition to any criminal or civil penalties which may be 

imposed. 

 

(b) For a second violation within any three-year period, at least three 

consecutive days suspension in addition to any criminal or civil 

penalties which may be imposed. 

 



 

 

(c) For the third violation within any three-year period, at least seven 

consecutive days suspension in addition to any criminal or civil 

penalties which may be imposed. 

 

(d) For a fourth violation within any three-year period, the license shall be 

revoked. 

 

(3) The Council shall select the day or days during which the license will be 

suspended. 

 

(C) Lapse of required proof of financial responsibility shall effect an immediate 

suspension of any license issued pursuant to this ordinance or state law without 

further action of the Council. Notice of cancellation or lapse of a current liquor 

liability policy shall also constitute notice to the licensee of the impending suspension 

of the license. The holder of a license who has received notice of lapse of required 

insurance or of suspension or revocation of a license may request a hearing thereon 

and, if a request is made in writing to the Clerk, a hearing before the Council shall be 

granted within ten days. Any suspension under this division (B) shall continue until 

the Council determines that the financial responsibility requirements of state law and 

this ordinance have again been met. 

  

(D) The provisions of §111.99 pertaining to administrative penalty may be imposed in 

addition to or in lieu of any suspension or revocation under this ordinance. 

 

§111.40 EXISTING MUNICIPAL LIQUOR DISPENSARY CONTINUED. 

 

The Municipal Liquor Dispensary for the sale at off-sale of intoxicating liquor in existence on 

the effective date of this ordinance is continued.  No intoxicating liquor may be sold elsewhere in 

the city or by anyone not employed in the Municipal Liquor Dispensary. 

 

§111.41 LOCATION. 

 

The municipal liquor store shall be located at a suitable place in the city as the Council 

determines by motion. However, no premises upon which taxes, assessments, or other public 

charges are delinquent shall be leased for municipal liquor store purposes. The Council shall 

have the right to establish additional off-sale stores at other locations as it may, from time to 

time, by motion, determine. 

 

§111.42 OPERATION. 

 

(A) Manager.  The municipal liquor store shall be in the immediate charge of a Liquor 

Store Manager selected by the Council and paid compensation as is fixed by the 

Council. The Manager shall not be a person who would be prohibited by law or any 

provision of this ordinance from being eligible for an intoxicating liquor license. The 

Manager shall furnish a surety bond to the city, conditioned upon the faithful discharge 

of the duties of the office, in a sum as specified by the Council. The bond premium 



 

 

may be paid by the city or the Manager, in the discretion of the Council. The Manager 

shall operate the municipal liquor store under the Council's direction and shall perform 

those duties in connection with the store as may be established by the Council. The 

Manager shall be responsible to the Council for the conduct of the store in full 

compliance with this ordinance and with the laws relating to the sale of intoxicating 

liquor and 3.2 percent malt liquor. 

 

(B) Other employees.  The Council may also appoint additional employees as may be 

required and shall fix their compensation. All employees, including the Manager, shall 

hold their positions at the pleasure of the Council. No person under the age of 18 shall 

be employed in the store. The Council may require the employees to furnish surety 

bonds conditioned for the faithful discharge of their duties in a sum as specified by the 

Council. The premium on the bond may be paid by the city or the employees, as the 

Council determines. 

 

(C) Municipal liquor store fund.  All of the revenues received from the operation of a 

municipal liquor store shall be deposited in a municipal liquor store fund from which 

all ordinary operating expenses, including compensation of the Manager and 

employees, shall be paid. Surpluses accumulating in the fund may be transferred to the 

general fund of the city or to any other appropriate fund of the city by resolution of the 

Council, and may be expended for any municipal purpose. The handling of municipal 

liquor store receipts and disbursements shall comply with the procedure prescribed by 

law and charter for the receipts and disbursements of city funds generally. 

 

(D) Financial statement.  The Council shall provide within 90 days following the end of 

the calendar year for publication a balance sheet using generally accepted accounting 

procedures and a statement of operations of the municipal liquor store for that year. 

The balance sheet and statement shall be published in accordance with the provisions 

of Minn. Stat. § 471.6985, as it may be amended from time to time. 

 

(E) Hours of operation.  The hours during which the sale of intoxicating liquor may be sold 

shall be as provided in §111.19. No person, other than the Manager or a store employee, 

may remain in the municipal liquor store longer than one-half hour after the time when 

the sale of intoxicating liquor must cease. 

 

§111.43 PROOF OF FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY. 

 

The city shall demonstrate proof of financial responsibility required by licensees of retail 

intoxicating liquor establishments under the provisions of Minn. Stat. § 340A.409, as it may be 

amended from time to time. 

 

§111.99 PENALTIES. 

 

(A) Any person violating the provisions of this ordinance or Minn. Stat. Ch. 340A as it 

may be amended from time to time or any rules promulgated under that chapter as 



 

 

they may be amended from time to time is guilty of a misdemeanor and upon 

conviction shall be punished as provided by law. 

 

(B) The Council shall impose a civil penalty of up to $2,000 for each violation of Minn. 

Stat. Ch. 340A, as it may be amended from time to time, and of this ordinance. 

Conviction of a violation in a court of law is not required in order for the Council to 

impose the civil penalty. A hearing under the Administrative Procedures Act, Minn. 

Stat. §§ 14.57 to 14.70, as it may be amended from time to time, is not required 

before the penalty is imposed, but the Council shall hold a hearing on the proposed 

violation and the proposed penalty and hear any person who wishes to speak. Non-

payment of the penalty is grounds for suspension or revocation of the license. The 

following is the minimum schedule of presumptive civil penalties which must be 

imposed in addition to any suspension unless the license is revoked: 

 

(1) For the first violation within any three-year period, $500. 

 

(2) For the second violation within any three-year period, $1,000. 

 

(3) For the third and subsequent violations within any three-year period, $2,000. 

 

(C) The term “violation” as used in §111.22 includes any and all violations of the 

provisions in this section, or of Minn. Stat. Ch. 340A, as it may be amended from 

time to time or any rules promulgated under that chapter as they may be amended 

from time to time. The number of violations shall be determined on the basis of the 

history of violations for the preceding three-year period. Revocation shall occur 

within 60 days following a violation for which revocation is imposed. 

 

Section 2.  Effective Date.   This ordinance becomes effective on the date of its publication, 

or upon the publication of a summary of the ordinance as provided by Minn. Stat. § 412.191, 

subd. 4, as it may be amended from time to time, which meets the requirements of Minn. Stat. § 

331A.01, subd. 10, as it may be amended from time to time. 

 

Section 3.  Summary Approved.   The Council herby determines that the text of the 

summary of this ordinance marked “Official Summary of Ordinance No. 417,” and a copy of 

which is attached to this ordinance, clearly informs the public of the intent and effect of this 

ordinance. The Council further determines that publication of the title and this summary will 

clearly inform the public of the intent and the effect of this ordinance. The Clerk shall file a copy 

of this ordinance and the summary in the Clerk’s office which shall be available for inspection 

by any person during regular office hours. 

  



 

 

 

Passed by the City Council of the City of Spring Lake Park, Minnesota, this 20th day of July, 

2015. 

 

 

       APPROVED BY: 

 

             

       Cindy Hansen, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

            

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer  



 



 

 

OFFICIAL SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE NO. 417 

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING THE POSSESSION, SALE AND CONSUMPTION OF 

INTOXICATING AND 3.2 PERCENT MALT LIQUOR WITHIN THE CITY OF 

SPRING LAKE PARK, MINNESOTA 

 
The following is the official summary of Ordinance No. 417, which was passed by the City Council 

on July 20, 2015. 

 

A printed copy of this ordinance is available for inspection by any person at the office of the 

Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer during normal business hours or on the City’s website at 

www.slpmn.org. 

 

The ordinance regulating the possession, sale and consumption of intoxicating and 3.2 percent malt 

liquor within this city contains the following provisions. 

 

§111.01 adopts M.S. Ch. §340A, as it may be amended from time to time, by reference. 

 

§111.02 permits the City to be more restrictive than state law concerning the sale and possession of 

alcoholic beverages. 

 

§111.03 defines “liquor” and “restaurant” as those terms are used in the ordinance. 

 

§111.04 makes it unlawful for any licensee to permit or allow any person or persons on the licensed 

premises when the person does not have his or her buttocks, anus, breasts and genitals covered with a 

non-transparent material. It is unlawful for any person to be on the licensed premises when the 

person does not have his or her buttocks, anus, breasts and genitals covered with a non-transparent 

material. A violation of this section is a misdemeanor punishable as provided by law, and is 

justification for revocation or suspension of any liquor, wine or 3.2 percent malt liquor license or the 

imposition of a civil penalty under the provisions of §111.27 of this ordinance. 

 

§111.05 provides that no person shall consume intoxicating liquor or 3.2 percent malt liquor on any 

public street, sidewalk, parking lot or alley, or in any public place other than on the premises of an 

establishment licensed under this ordinance, in a municipal liquor dispensary if one exists in the city, 

or where the consumption and display of liquor is lawfully permitted.  No person shall consume or 

possess intoxicating liquor or 3.2 percent malt liquor in any public park unless specifically approved 

by the City Council. 

 

§111.06 limits the number of licenses which may be issued. 

 

§111.07 establishes the term and expiration dates for licenses. 

 

§111.08 establishes the kinds of liquor licenses which may be issued: 

 3.2 percent malt liquor on-sale licenses 

 Temporary 3.2 percent malt liquor licenses 

 On-sale intoxicating liquor licenses 

 Sunday on-sale intoxicating liquor licenses 

 Temporary on-sale intoxicating liquor licenses 

 On-sale wine licenses 

http://www.slpmn.org/


 

 

 Consumption and display permit 

 Culinary class limited on-sale licenses 

 Brew pub on-sale licenses 

 Brew pub off-sale licenses 

 Brewer tap room licenses 

 

§111.09 authorizes the establishment of license fees by ordinance. 

 

§111.10 permits the Council, in its sound discretion, to grant or deny applications for licenses, or for 

the transfer or renewal of any license. 

 

§111.11 describes the information required in an application for a license. 

 

§111.12 requires a specific description of the premises to be licensed. 

 

§111.13 provides that applications for renewal of licenses must be filed at least 60 days before the 

date of expiration and permits the Council, in its sound discretion, to renew or not renew a license. 

 

§111.14 prohibits the transfer of a license without Council approval. 

 

§111.15 requires background and financial investigation of applicants for a license, renewal of a 

license or transfer of a license. 

 

§111.16 provides for a hearing on the issuance of a license. 

 

§111.17 establishes restrictions on the issuance of a license. 

 

§111.18 establishes the conditions of a liquor license that a licensee must follow to avoid suspension 

or revocation.  The failure of a licensee to meet any one of the conditions of the license specified 

below shall result in a suspension of the license until the condition is met. 

 Within 90 days after employment, every person selling or serving liquor in an 

establishment which has an "on-sale" license shall receive training regarding the selling 

or serving of liquor to customers. The training shall be provided by an organization 

approved by the Council. Proof of training of the servers shall be provided by the 

licensee. 

 Every licensee is responsible for the conduct of the place of business and the conditions 

of sobriety and order in it. The act of any employee on the licensed premises is deemed 

the act of the licensee as well, and the licensee shall be liable to all penalties provided by 

this ordinance and the law equally with the employee. 

 Every licensee shall allow any peace officer, health officer, city employee, or any other 

person designated by the Council to conduct compliance checks and to otherwise enter, 

inspect and search the premises of the licensee during business hours and after business 

hours during the time when customers remain on the premises without a warrant. 

 No on-sale establishment shall display liquor to the public during hours when the sale of 

liquor is prohibited. 

 Compliance with financial responsibility requirements of state law and of this ordinance 

is a continuing condition of any license. 

 



 

 

§111.19 establishes hours and days of sale which are consistent with those established by state law.  

In addition, the ordinance provides that: 

 No person shall consume nor shall any on-sale licensee permit any consumption of 

intoxicating liquor or 3.2 percent malt liquor in an on-sale licensed premises more than 

30 minutes after the time when a sale can legally occur. 

 No on-sale licensee shall permit any glass, bottle or other container containing 

intoxicating liquor or 3.2 percent malt liquor to remain upon any table, bar, stool or other 

place where customers are served, more than 30 minutes after the time when a sale can 

legally occur. 

 No person, other than the licensee and any employee, shall remain on the on-sale licensed 

premises more than 30 minutes after the time when a sale can legally occur. 

 

§111.20 prohibits minor and underage persons on licensed premises except under certain conditions. 

 

§111.21 prohibits persons from mixing or preparing liquor for consumption in any public place of 

business unless it has a license or permit. 

 

§111.22 establishes the circumstances and procedures for suspension and revocation of a license. The 

Council is required to either suspend for a period not to exceed 60 days or revoke any liquor license 

upon finding that the licensee has failed to comply with any applicable statute, regulation or 

provision of this ordinance relating to liquor. Lapse of required proof of financial responsibility shall 

effect an immediate suspension of any license issued pursuant to this ordinance or state law without 

further action of the Council. Notice of cancellation or lapse of a current liquor liability policy shall 

also constitute notice to the licensee of the impending suspension of the license. A schedule of 

minimum periods of suspension and for revocation is established. 

 

§111.40 provides for the continued establishment of an “off-sale” municipal liquor store. 

 

§111.41 provides for the location of the municipal liquor store(s). 

 

§111.42 provides for the operation of the municipal liquor store. 

 

§111.43 provides for proof of financial responsibility of municipal liquor stores. 

 

§111.99 provides for penalties for violating this ordinance, including a schedule of civil penalties. 

 

The effective date of the ordinance is the date of the publication of this summary of the ordinance.  

The ordinance adopts this summary of the ordinance. 

  



 

 

 

This summary was approved by the City Council of Spring Lake Park, Minnesota, on July 20, 2015. 

 

 

       APPROVED BY: 

 

             

       Cindy Hansen, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

            

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 



609 S. 10th Street, Suite 210  |  Minneapolis, MN 55404  |  612.345.8881  |  contactmn@mysunshare.com  |  1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City of Spring Lake Park 

Proposal for Subscription  
to a SunShare Community Solar Garden 

 

 

 
  

mailto:contactmn@mysunshare.com


609 S. 10th Street, Suite 210  |  Minneapolis, MN 55404  |  612.345.8881  |  contactmn@mysunshare.com  |  2 

 

 

June 24, 2015 
 

Mr. Daniel Buchholz 

City Administrator 

City of Spring Lake Park  

1301 81st Street NE 

Spring Lake Park, MN  55432 

 

Dear Mr. Buchholz, 

 

SunShare is pleased to present a solar energy proposal to the City of Spring Lake Park for a subscription 

to SunShare’s Community Solar Gardens. We believe our offer is uniquely positioned to provide the City of 

Spring Lake Park with the best possible access to Community Solar energy.  

 

Our proposal features a subscription of 895 kW, which will begin construction in early - mid 2016. 

SunShare currently has 89 MW of the Community Garden applications deemed complete by Xcel Energy, 

making us an ideal partner for the City of Spring Lake Park to move forward with this year. As a subscriber, 

the company can begin saving on its utility bills and meeting its environmental goals.  

 

As part of our subscription with the City of Spring Lake Park, we are also offering several additional 

programs, including an employee benefit program that would allow all the City of Spring Lake Park 

employees serviced by Xcel Energy an opportunity to source their energy from the sun.  

 

At the end of this proposal, you will find a Letter of Intent. This reservation form reserves your capacity in 

our gardens to ensure our ability to service you. As SunShare is in the process of reserving our final 

capacity for 2015, signing by July 31, 2015 will insure your capacity is reserved. After that date, we will start 

assigning customers to our 2016 capacity.  

 

We look forward to helping the City of Spring Lake Park in achieving its renewable energy goals, engaging 

its employees and community, and fostering global leadership in renewable energy and local 

environmental sustainability. Should you have any questions or comments about this proposal, please 

contact me at any time.  

 

Best regards,  

 

 

Kyle Roach 

Commercial Sales Specialist 

kroach@mysunshare.com 

612-325-4918 

  

mailto:contactmn@mysunshare.com


609 S. 10th Street, Suite 210  |  Minneapolis, MN 55404  |  612.345.8881  |  contactmn@mysunshare.com  |  3 

 

 

Table of Contents 

Background and Qualifications ............................................................................................................................................. 4 

About Community Solar ..................................................................................................................................................... 4 

About SunShare .................................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Partnerships ............................................................................................................................................................................ 5 

Site Management, Monitoring, and Maintenance ....................................................................................................... 6 

SunShare’s Minnesota Leadership Team ....................................................................................................................... 7 

Mortenson’s Leadership Team .......................................................................................................................................... 8 

Proposal Options ....................................................................................................................................................................... 9 

Pricing Details ...................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

Environmental Impacts ...................................................................................................................................................... 14 

City of Spring Lake Park’s Employee Benefit Program ............................................................................................. 15 

Attachment A: Subscription Reservation Letter .............................................................................................................. 16 

Attachment B: Historical Xcel Rate Increases ................................................................................................................... 17 

 

 

 

  

mailto:contactmn@mysunshare.com


609 S. 10th Street, Suite 210  |  Minneapolis, MN 55404  |  612.345.8881  |  contactmn@mysunshare.com  |  4 

 

 

Background and Qualifications 
 

About Community Solar 

In 2013, the Minnesota State Legislature passed a landmark Community Solar Gardens law that established 

a new market in the solar industry. Community Solar Gardens are simply solar energy systems that are 

connected directly to Xcel Energy’s grid. Residents, businesses, institutions, and governmental customers 

can opt to purchase electricity from a Community Solar Garden and receive the benefits of clean energy 

without having to install panels on their roof or property. Community Solar subscribers receive solar 

credits which lower their overall electricity costs. In addition, Community Solar arrays are typically larger 

than residential or commercial-scale systems, which means that subscribers benefit from economies of 

scale and lower solar costs. Community Solar companies handle the land acquisition, solar array design, 

construction, financing, customer enrollment, and ongoing maintenance of the solar energy systems. 

Community Solar allows more energy users to utilize solar energy than ever before, and it is the easiest 

way to procure clean, affordable, locally generated energy. 

 

About SunShare 

Founded in 2011, SunShare is one of the first and largest Community Solar companies in the United States. 

Our mission is to make solar energy simple, affordable, and accessible to everyone. We helped Colorado 

Springs Utilities establish its pilot Community Solar Gardens program in 2011 and we are Xcel Energy’s 

partner in Colorado, having won 100% of its competitive RFP awards in 2013. In Minnesota, SunShare 

currently has 89 MW of the Community Garden applications deemed complete by Xcel Energy,  

SunShare’s success has been gained by engaging churches, schools, and local governments, while 

building a local presence through community relationships. Our ability to develop Community Solar 

Gardens with a wide subscriber base of diverse community members is highly unique within the solar 

industry. We have years of experience engaging the communities where we operate. Our experience and 

expertise will provide the added benefit of brand recognition and public relations to the City of Spring 

Lake Park as an anchor customer. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

mailto:contactmn@mysunshare.com


609 S. 10th Street, Suite 210  |  Minneapolis, MN 55404  |  612.345.8881  |  contactmn@mysunshare.com  |  5 

 

 

Partnerships 

SunShare has partnered with Mortenson, one of the nation’s largest 

construction companies to provide engineering, procurement, and 

construction (EPC) for our Gardens. SunShare’s and Mortenson’s 

collective experience with financing, construction, operations, and 

maintenance creates an unsurpassed partnership and ability to 

execute successful Community Solar Gardens.  

With revenues surpassing $2.3 billion, Mortenson is recognized nationally as 14th in power construction, 

according to Engineering News Record’s (ENR) 2014 ranking, and the 3rd largest solar EPC contractor, 

according to Bloomberg New Energy Finance’s 2014 ranking. Having secured over 1,200 MW of solar 

energy facilities, Mortenson has proven to be a reliable and bankable EPC partner. Below is a sample of 

projects completed by SunShare and Mortenson: 

Company Project Location Size Status 

Mortenson Alamosa Alamosa, CO 30MW AC Complete 

Mortenson Saint John’s Abbey & University Collegeville, MN 400kW AC Complete 

Mortenson Solar Star I Rosamond, CA 318MW AC Ongoing 

Mortenson Solar Star II Rosamond, CA 279MW AC Ongoing 

Mortenson Quinto Solar Los Banos, CA 110MW AC Ongoing 

Mortenson Alamo 4 Bracketville, TX 39.6MW AC Ongoing 

SunShare Venetucci Solar Garden Colorado Springs, CO 500kW AC Complete 

SunShare Good Shepherd Solar Garden Colorado Springs, CO 500kW AC Complete 

SunShare Imboden Solar Garden Watkins, CO 4MW DC Ongoing 

SunShare PPSG1 Solar Garden Colorado Springs, CO 2.6MW DC Ongoing 

SunShare White Ranch Garden Golden, CO 1.5MW AC Ongoing 

SunShare Colorado Springs Solar Garden Colorado Springs, CO 500kW AC Ongoing 

SunShare Arapahoe County Watkins, CO 500kW DC Ongoing 

 

A Sample of Our Customers 

  

mailto:contactmn@mysunshare.com


609 S. 10th Street, Suite 210  |  Minneapolis, MN 55404  |  612.345.8881  |  contactmn@mysunshare.com  |  6 

 

 

Site Management, Monitoring, and Maintenance 

SunShare and our partners are responsible for ongoing monitoring, maintenance, and repair of the 

Community Solar Gardens. Solar arrays have few moving parts, which means maintenance is fairly limited. 

SunShare maintains a maintenance & repair budget and adheres to a standard operations and 

maintenance plan, which includes the following:  

1) Monitoring: SunShare’s remote monitoring systems provides notice when a module or inverter 

repair is needed. When this occurs, we dispatch a licensed electrician to make the equipment 

repair or replacement. The rest of the system continues to function even if one of our panels goes 

down.  

2) System preventative maintenance: This includes visual inspection of PV arrays, electrical equipment, 

mounting structure, foreign debris, fence, shading, trackers, corrosion, and discolored panels. In 

addition, SunShare’s maintenance team inspects mounting system and components for abnormal 

wear or excess corrosion, inspects modules for signs of degradation, inspects string wiring and 

electrical connectors, and inspects visible conduit and raceways for signs of damage or wear.  

3) Inverter preventative maintenance: SunShare’s maintenance team inspects and cleans the interior 

of inverters, inspects air filters, replaces and cleans air filters, inspects seals and replaces them if 

necessary, inspects electrical connections and wiring, mechanically inspects connections and wiring, 

re- torques electrical connections as needed, and completes IR scans of inverter connections, 

writing, and electronics.  

4) Other site maintenance: SunShare’s team inspects general site conditions regularly. We maintain 

vegetation within the fence line including under panels to prevent shading and risk of fire, clear 

debris within the fenced area, and clean modules if necessary due to excessive dust or soil buildup. 

We also conduct regular system testing and verification, and have emergency response 

procedures in place to respond 24 hours a day if something happens at one of our Gardens. 

SunShare also pledges to maintain or add value to the land we use to host our Gardens, including a 

pledge to plant pollinator-friendly habitat as described below. 

SunShare Pollinator Pledge 

We recognize and acknowledge that Community Solar developers can play an important role in creating 

on-site habitats that support and generate environmentally beneficial pollinators, including monarch 

butterflies and various bee species. For this reason, we pledge to evaluate (and when feasible, adopt) the 

use of pollinator-friendly ground-cover and vegetation-management practices for all the solar PV sites 

that we develop and/or manage in Minnesota.  

Co-locating solar arrays with native wildflowers is a well-established 

practice and offers a wide range of habitats both around garden 

perimeters and beneath the arrays. Pollinator plants are known to enrich 

soils, increase rainwater infiltration and prevent erosion. These native 

grasslands can be maintained without the use of fertilizers or pesticides. 

  

mailto:contactmn@mysunshare.com


609 S. 10th Street, Suite 210  |  Minneapolis, MN 55404  |  612.345.8881  |  contactmn@mysunshare.com  |  7 

 

 

SunShare’s Minnesota Leadership Team 

Jonathan W. Postal (J.W.), Senior Vice President 

JW oversees SunShare’s strategic efforts, including sales, marketing, business 

development, business expansion, and public policy. Before joining SunShare, JW served 

as the Renewable Energy Executive for Milender White Construction Co. He also co- 

founded Main Street Power in 2008 and helped to grow it to one of the largest 

owner/operators of solar assets in the country. He brings 14 years of financial experience 

as a fiduciary investment advisor prior to his career in solar. He currently serves as 

Treasurer of the Board of the Solar Electric Light Fund, an international non-profit 

working to deploy solar power in the developing world. JW is a graduate of the 

University of Colorado and has a Master’s in Public Policy from Georgetown University. 

Ken Bradley, Director of Business Development 

Ken leads sales, marketing, press, and policy work in the Minnesota market. Ken was 

CEO of Minnesota Community Solar where he led business development, regulatory 

work, and sales. He served as Director of Environment Minnesota and Clean Water 

Action, leading these organizations’ efforts to protect the environment and promote 

clean energy. He serves on the Minneapolis Community & Technical Colleges 

Foundation Board of Directors, raising scholarship funds for students, and is on the 

Steering Committee for the Blue Green Alliance. He currently resides in Minneapolis. 

Ross Abbey, Director of Regulatory and Legal  

Ross is responsible for governmental sales in Minnesota, as well as writing and helping 

to pass Community Solar legislation across the nation. Prior to joining SunShare, Ross 

was an expert advocate with Fresh Energy in St. Paul, where he was involved in solar 

market analysis, policy development, and regulatory rule making and co-authored 

Market Transformation Pathways for Grid-Connected Rooftop Solar PV in Minnesota. As 

an attorney, Ross has served as plaintiff counsel for a range of corporations, and as 

business counsel for social entrepreneurs. Ross holds a J.D. from the University of 

Chicago Law School and a B.S. in Chemical Engineering from Texas A&M University. He 

lives in Minneapolis with his wife and child. 

Matthew Bowers, Director of Commercial Sales  

Matthew is currently building and growing the Minnesota Sales and Marketing team. 

Matthew was a District Sales Manager for a division of Siemens Energy and during 

graduate school, he participated in a fellowship with the National Renewable Energy 

Laboratory. He has a B.S. in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Colorado and 

an M.B.A. (Finance) from the University of Denver. He currently resides in Minneapolis. 

  

mailto:contactmn@mysunshare.com


609 S. 10th Street, Suite 210  |  Minneapolis, MN 55404  |  612.345.8881  |  contactmn@mysunshare.com  |  8 

 

 

Mortenson’s Leadership Team 

Trent Mostaert, Vice President and General Manager  

With over 20 years of construction experience, Trent is the vice president and general 

manager for the Solar and Emerging Renewables operating group. He is responsible for 

the overall strategy development and direction of all facets of the group, including 

market selection, business development, design, construction, and maintenance 

activities, as well as P&L responsibilities. He is driven by the desire to continuously drive 

waste out of all processes, while developing innovative ways to deliver far superior 

results to the customer. 

Dan Biere, Director of Operations  

Dan oversees the operations of solar and emerging renewables projects and provides 

direction from project concept to completion. His responsibilities include management 

of Mortenson personnel, oversight of all subcontractor coordination and administration, 

quality assurance, safety management, cost control, and labor relations. Dan’s depth of 

experience includes managing preconstruction processes such as estimating, scheduling, 

project planning, constructability, and site utilization. 

Bradley Heitland, Design Phase Manager  

As Design Phase Manager II, Bradley guides the preconstruction phase of the electrical, 

structural, and civil engineering disciplines of our solar projects. His core responsibilities 

include leading the estimating services team in translating customer desires into 

technical and financial documentation as well as coordinating design team members 

and preconstruction services. These services include estimating, scheduling, project 

planning, operations, quality and safety plans, site utilization, integration of 3-D/4-D 

modeling technology into the preconstruction phase of the projects, vendor 

qualifications, and contract management. Bradley also manages internal and external 

communications related to preconstruction planning and estimating. 

  

mailto:contactmn@mysunshare.com


609 S. 10th Street, Suite 210  |  Minneapolis, MN 55404  |  612.345.8881  |  contactmn@mysunshare.com  |  9 

 

 

Proposal Options 

We are pleased to present the City of Spring Lake Park with plans for 100% offset of your energy use with 

Community Solar. Our offer gives the City of Spring Lake Park access to clean solar energy at no upfront 

cost and minimal risk, while providing long-term savings for 25 years. This option also allows for an 

unlimited amount of employee subscriptions. 

 

Option Description 
Benefits to the City of Spring Lake 

Park 

Option 1:  
Fixed Rate 

 985 kW subscription 

 $0.1050 per-kWh SunShare 
solar electricity rate 

 2% annual escalation on 
SunShare rate 

 $18,600 estimated savings in year 1 

 $775,000 estimated cumulative savings 
by year 25 

 $0 down 

Option 2:  
Fixed Discount 

 985 kW subscription 

 15% fixed discount to bill 
credit 

 Rate floor of $0.1000 

 $23,500 estimated savings in year 1 

 $740,000 estimated cumulative savings 
by year 25 

 $0 down 

*All pricing is subject to final site due diligence, engineering, and market factors at time of contract closing.  

**Savings assume 2.75% annual utility escalation. 

  

mailto:contactmn@mysunshare.com


609 S. 10th Street, Suite 210  |  Minneapolis, MN 55404  |  612.345.8881  |  contactmn@mysunshare.com  |  10 

 

 

Pricing Details 

Option 1: Fixed Rate of $0.1050 and 2% Escalator 

0.985 MW Option 
10.5-cent SunShare SSA with 2% escalator, $0 upfront pre-pay 

0.985 MW Solar Services Agreement 

     

Year 1 5 10 25 

     

Est. Annual Panel Degradation Rate: 0.5%         

Estimated kWh Production 1,315,960 1,289,838 1,257,912 1,166,801 

     

Est. Annual Utility Rate Increase: 2.75%         

Xcel Est. Electricity Solar Rewards Credit/kWh $0.119 $0.131 $0.147 $0.210 

Projected Annual Credit $156,783 $168,328 $184,356 $245,160 

     

Annual SunShare SSA Rate Increase: 2%         

SunShare SSA Price/kWh $0.105 $0.114 $0.125 $0.169 

SunShare SSA Payments $138,176 $146,597 $157,849 $197,056 

        

Savings (S*RC Credit vs. Est. Xcel Rates)         

Estimated Annual Savings $18,608 $21,731 $26,507 $48,104 

Estimated Cumulative Savings $18,608 $100,667 $223,239 $778,459 

 

   

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

$800,000

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

E
st

. A
n

n
u

al
 C

re
d

it
s 

&
 P

ay
m

e
n

ts

Year

Savings Profile - 0.985 MW

Xcel Est. Electricity Solar Rewards Credit @ 2.75% annual utility rate escalation

SunShare SSA Payments

Cumulative Savings @ 2.75% annual utility rate escalation

Annual Savings {

mailto:contactmn@mysunshare.com


609 S. 10th Street, Suite 210  |  Minneapolis, MN 55404  |  612.345.8881  |  contactmn@mysunshare.com  |  11 

 

 

The following table and graph show alternative utility rate tests, demonstrating the savings the City of 

Spring Lake Park would achieve under various utility rate increases: 

CUMULATIVE ALTERNATIVE SAVINGS     

 with Alternative Xcel Rate Increases     

Year 1 5 10 25 

     

Estimated kWh Production 1,315,960 1,289,838 1,257,912 1,166,801 

     

Annual Utility Rate Increase: 4%         

Estimated Net Savings/year vs. Xcel $18,608 $28,795 $44,810 $122,794 

Estimated Cumulative Savings $18,608 $117,841 $308,278 $1,539,282 

     

Annual Utility Rate Increase: 1%         

Estimated Net Savings/year vs. Xcel $18,608 $12,266 $3,702 -$26,842 

Estimated Cumulative Savings $18,608 $77,322 $113,255 -$65,882 

 

 

 

  

-$200,000

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

$1,400,000

$1,600,000

$1,800,000

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

Year

Cumulative Alternative Savings - 0.985 MW, $0 Upfront Payment

Cumulative Savings @ 4% annual
utility rate escalation

Cumulative Savings @ 1% annual
utility rate escalation

mailto:contactmn@mysunshare.com


609 S. 10th Street, Suite 210  |  Minneapolis, MN 55404  |  612.345.8881  |  contactmn@mysunshare.com  |  12 

 

 

Option 2: 15% Fixed Discount Off Bill Credit 

Utility 
Escalator 

Year 1 Year 5 Year 10 Year 25 

     

 Annual kWh Production 

 1,315,960  1,289,838  1,257,912  1,166,801  

     

Annual Utility Bill Credit Rate 

2.75% $0.119 $0.131 $0.147 $0.210 

4.00% $0.119 $0.136 $0.161 $0.274 

1.00% $0.119 $0.123 $0.128 $0.146 

     

Annual SunShare Rate 

2.75% $0.101 $0.111 $0.125 $0.179 

4.00% $0.101 $0.116 $0.137 $0.233 

1.00% $0.101 $0.105 $0.109 $0.124 

     

Annual Utility Bill Credit 

2.75% $156,783 $168,328 $184,356 $245,160 

4.00% $156,783 $175,392 $202,659 $319,850 

1.00% $156,783 $158,863 $161,551 $170,215 

     

Annual SunShare Payment 

2.75% $133,266 $143,079 $156,702 $208,386 

4.00% $133,266 $149,083 $172,260 $271,873 

1.00% $133,266 $135,034 $137,318 $144,682 

     

Annual Net Savings 

2.75% $23,518 $25,249 $27,653 $36,774 

4.00% $23,518 $26,309 $30,399 $47,978 

1.00% $23,518 $23,830 $24,233 $25,532 

     

Net Cumulative Savings 

2.75% $23,518 $121,866 $255,213 $739,083 

4.00% $23,518 $124,443 $267,969 $853,206 

1.00% $23,518 $118,365 $238,716 $612,432 

 

  

mailto:contactmn@mysunshare.com


609 S. 10th Street, Suite 210  |  Minneapolis, MN 55404  |  612.345.8881  |  contactmn@mysunshare.com  |  13 

 

 

 

 

 

  

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

$800,000

$900,000

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

C
u

m
u

la
ti

ve
 S

av
in

g
s

Year

Cumulative Savings Over Time w/ 15% Fixed Discount To 
Bill Credit vs. Variable Utility Rates

2.75% utility increase 4% utility increase 1% utility increase

$0.00000

$0.05000

$0.10000

$0.15000

$0.20000

$0.25000

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

$ 
P

e
r 

kW
h

Year

Projected Xcel Bill Credit vs. 15% Discounted SunShare 
Charge Per kWh

Xcel Est. Electricity Solar Rewards Credit @ 2.75% increase

SunShare payment

Annual Savings {

mailto:contactmn@mysunshare.com


609 S. 10th Street, Suite 210  |  Minneapolis, MN 55404  |  612.345.8881  |  contactmn@mysunshare.com  |  14 

 

 

Environmental Impacts 

Community Solar projects create significant benefit to the environment, including avoidance of emissions 

of pollutants such as CO2, NOX, and SO2. These pollutants impact climate change, pulmonary diseases, 

and acid rain. With any subscription size the City of Spring Lake Park chooses, the City of Spring Lake Park 

can realize significant impacts on the environment and the communities in which it operates.  

Here we have listed sample projected cumulative emission offsets for a 985 kW option. 

 

 Your Offset Impact Equivalent to: 

 

64,270,734  

lbs of CO2 

a leading cause of climate change 

 

 

 
 

64,712,681  

miles of driving avoided 

 

174,803  

lbs of SO2 

a leading cause of acid rain 

 

 

 

13,257,459 

gallons of water saved from use 
in coal plants 

 

104,673  

lbs of NOX 

a leading cause of smog 

 

 

 

747,584  

CO2-absorbing trees planted 

 

  

mailto:contactmn@mysunshare.com


609 S. 10th Street, Suite 210  |  Minneapolis, MN 55404  |  612.345.8881  |  contactmn@mysunshare.com  |  15 

 

 

City of Spring Lake Park’s Employee Benefit Program 

We are excited to invite the City of Spring Lake Park’s employees the opportunity to participate in a City of 

Spring Lake Park-branded Community Solar benefits program, which SunShare will develop to the City of 

Spring Lake Park’s specifications and in line with its existing benefits programs for employees.  

With the City of Spring Lake Park as an anchor customer, SunShare will provide the City of Spring Lake 

Park employees with a unique recruitment story for employees to integrate Community Solar seamlessly 

with the City of Spring Lake Park’s existing benefits programs so that employees can choose discounted 

solar energy just as they would select a health care plan. While the program will be developed to the City 

of Spring Lake Park’s specifications, minimal effort or responsibility will be required on the City of Spring 

Lake Park’s part to enroll participants into the program.  

SunShare will work closely with the City of Spring Lake Park’s sustainability or human resources team to 

develop a co-branded program that will engage employees, educate them about the benefits of 

Community Solar, and congratulate the City of Spring Lake Park for its continued global leadership in 

sustainability. Events can include, at the City of Spring Lake Park’s request, breakfast, lunch, and after-

work/school social events; video, animation, and other digital educational tools; social media engagement 

including Twitter, Facebook, and YouTube; outreach and education, including visits to a Community Solar 

Garden; marketing materials; and full public relations and media support to externally educate and 

message the City of Spring Lake Park’s leadership in sustainability. 

  

mailto:contactmn@mysunshare.com


609 S. 10th Street, Suite 210  |  Minneapolis, MN 55404  |  612.345.8881  |  contactmn@mysunshare.com  |  16 

 

 

Attachment A: Subscription Reservation Letter  

NON-BINDING LETTER OF INTENT 

Reservation for Subscription to a SunShare Community Solar Garden 

June 24, 2015 
 

Mr. Daniel Buchholz 

City Administrator 

City of Spring Lake Park  

1301 81st Street NE 

Spring Lake Park, MN  55432 

 

Dear Mr. Buchholz, 

 

SunShare is excited that you have expressed interest in subscription to our Community Solar program in 

Minnesota and we look forward to moving forward with you as a subscriber.  

This letter of intent reserves capacity in a program under which you would enter into a subscription 

agreement with SunShare, LLC. This letter is not a formal or binding agreement for you nor for SunShare. 

However, it reflects both of our intentions to enter into a binding agreement for your subscription to one 

of our Community Solar gardens of 985 kW in size within 60 days. 

If the above arrangement is acceptable, please sign below and return a copy to the address below.  

We look forward to continuing discussions with you!  

Sincerely,  

 

Kyle Roach 

Commercial Sales Specialist 

kroach@mysunshare.com 

612-325-4918 

SunShare, LLC  City of Spring Lake Park  

By: ______________________________________________ By: ______________________________________________ 

Printed Name: ___________________________________ Printed Name: ___________________________________ 

Date: ____________________________________________ Date: ____________________________________________ 

mailto:contactmn@mysunshare.com


609 S. 10th Street, Suite 210  |  Minneapolis, MN 55404  |  612.345.8881  |  contactmn@mysunshare.com  |  17 

 

 

Attachment B: Historical Xcel Rate Increases  
Our projected Xcel rate increase (2.75%) is a conservative estimate based on Xcel’s 10-year historical rate 

increases. 

 

 

 

 

 

0.040

0.060

0.080

0.100

0.120

0.140

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

E
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

 R
at

e
 (

ce
n

ts
/k

W
h

)

Year

Xcel Energy Annual Rate Increases

mailto:contactmn@mysunshare.com






What is Community Solar?
Allows subscribers to realize both financial and 
environmental benefits from offsite solar as if it was 
on the subscriber’s roof

Any Xcel Energy customer in Minnesota can now 
choose solar



What is Community Solar?
New program passed as part of 2013 comprehensive 
solar legislation

Helps Xcel meet its requirement of 1.5% solar by 2020 
and goal of 10% solar by 2030



Why Community Solar?
Many individuals, businesses, institutions, and 
organizations do not own their own roofs

About 80% of roofs are 
unsuitable for rooftop 
solar

Anyone can subscribe to 
an offsite solar garden



How Does It Work?



How Does It Work?
No upfront costs

Subscribers receive bill credits (rebates) for the energy 
generated by solar panels in our gardens

Can subscribe up to 120% of energy usage

Subscription costs are designed to be lower than 
utility bills, creating monthly savings from day one



Why SunShare?
Developed the first competitive Community Solar 
program in the nation in Colorado

Won 100% of Xcel Energy’s 
2013 Colorado RFPs 

Community roots

Major partners



Why SunShare?
Local office with locally hired staff in Minneapolis

Partnered with Mortenson for our engineering, 
procurement, and construction

Third-largest solar EPC in the country



Why SunShare?
Achieve savings and meet environmental goals with a 
SunShare subscription

Employees can participate through our employee-
benefit program

Protect against unpredictable future utility rates

Community engagement opportunities, including 
curricula for academic subscribers



0.040

0.050

0.060

0.070

0.080

0.090

0.100

0.110

0.120

0.130

0.140

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

El
ec

tr
ic

it
y 

R
at

e 
(c

en
ts

/k
W

h)

Year

Xcel Energy Annual Rate Increases

Source: Energy Information Administration



$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

$800,000

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

A
nn

ua
l S

av
in

g
s

Annual Savings Comparison 
Based on Subscription Size

0.5 MW

1.0 MW

5.0 MW

10.0 MW

Assumes Annual Growth Rates - Xcel (4.0%) and SunShare (2.75%)



Next Steps
Day 1: initial customer meeting

Week 1: customer sends electricity data or consent form to 
access data to SunShare

Weeks 1-2: SunShare prepares and presents a proposal for 
subscription

Week 2: customer signs non-binding subscription 
reservation letter

Week 3: contract review and signing



Next Steps
After 6-12 months: once solar gardens are fully 
constructed and interconnected, solar panels begin 
generating energy

After a month of 
garden operations, 
subscriber begins 
receiving credits



Any Questions?

Kyle Roach

612.325.4918

kroach@mysunshare.com



Additional Information



Projects from Us and Our Partners
Company Project Location Size Status

Mortenson Alamosa Alamosa, CO 30MW AC Complete
Mortenson Saint John’s Abbey & 

University
Collegeville, MN 400kW AC Complete

Mortenson Solar Star I Rosamond, CA 318MW AC Ongoing
Mortenson Solar Star II Rosamond, CA 279MW AC Ongoing
Mortenson Quinto Solar Los Banos, CA 110MW AC Ongoing
Mortenson Alamo 4 Bracketville, TX 39.6MW AC Ongoing
SunShare Venetucci Solar Garden Colorado Springs, CO 500kW AC Complete
SunShare Good Shepherd Solar 

Garden
Colorado Springs, CO 500kW AC Complete

SunShare Imboden Solar Garden Watkins, CO 4MW DC Ongoing
SunShare PPSG1 Solar Garden Colorado Springs, CO 2.6MW DC Ongoing
SunShare White Ranch Garden Golden, CO 1.5MW AC Ongoing
SunShare Colorado Springs Solar 

Garden
Colorado Springs, CO 500kW AC Ongoing

SunShare Arapahoe County Watkins, CO 500kW DC Ongoing



Our Customers



$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

Es
t. 

An
nu

al
 C

re
di

ts
 &

 P
ay

m
en

ts

Year

Savings Profile - 3 MW

Xcel Est. Electricity Solar Rewards Credit
@ 2.75% annual utility rate escalation
SunShare SSA Payments

Cumulative Savings @ 2.75% annual utility
rate escalation

Annual Savings {

Projected Savings (for a 3-MW subscription)







Cologne, Minn., signs deal to go all 
solar for its municipal electricity 
The Carver County city expects to save about 
$40,000 annually over the next 25 years.  

By David Shaffer 
JUNE 11, 2015  

The city of Cologne on the western edge of the Twin Cities on Thursday signed a deal that 
would make it the first local government in the state to entirely offset its municipal 
electricity with solar power. 

The city of 1,500 in Carver County will go all solar by subscribing to a Community Solar 
Garden planned by energy developer SunShare at the nearby Bongards cheese plant, 
which also would be a solar subscriber. 

Under the deal, city’s share of the solar garden — the output of about 2,700 panels — will 
generate during sunny times more power than the city needs for its City Hall, water 
pumps and other uses. The extra solar power goes on the grid, offsetting electricity drawn 
at other times from Xcel Energy, which remains the city’s power supplier. 

Cologne, which expects to save $1.1 million on the deal over 25 years, likely is one of 
many local governments taking an interest in Xcel’s Solar Rewards Community program. 
It allows any customer to subscribe to centralized solar projects or “gardens,” whose 
output is sold at favorable rates to Xcel, offsetting all or part of the customer’s monthly 
bills. 

“It is something we couldn’t even have imagined talking about four or five years ago,” 
said Ken Bradley, a SunShare executive who negotiated the deal and lobbied for the 2013 
law that made it possible. 

The city of St. Cloud and the Metropolitan Council recently solicited bids for multiple, 
large solar garden projects. The Metro Council is planning a second solar bid open for 
metro counties and cities, including Minneapolis and St. Paul, to participate and offset 
their city power with solar energy. 



Jessie Dickson, city administrator for Cologne, said its City Council, which approved the 
project 5-0, liked the idea that the solar power will be generated nearby even though the 
electricity goes straight to Xcel’s distribution system, not directly to city buildings. 
SunShare hopes to complete this and other solar gardens by the end of 2016 to capture 
an expiring 30 percent federal solar tax credit. 

The city’s electric bill savings, which is expected to average more than $40,000 a year, 
could be used for road, parks or other city infrastructure needs. “It is a pretty healthy 
chunk of change,” he said. 

Businesses and residents of the city won’t get any of the solar power, but have the option 
of signing up for solar gardens themselves. Bradley said many other cities are considering 
similar deals. 

“In the last six weeks, I have met with 25 cities,” the SunShare executive said. “I am 
driving all over the state.” 

Several other cooperative utilities also offer solar gardens. Only Xcel’s program allows 
independent energy developers like SunShare to develop solar projects, market them to 
Xcel customers and sell the power to Xcel at rates exceeding the retail price of electricity. 

Xcel says it has received more than 600 solar garden proposals since December. As it 
reviews them, the Minneapolis-based utility has raised concerns that too many projects 
are clustered together, resembling large-scale solar projects built by utilities at a lower 
cost to ratepayers. If all of the proposed solar projects are built, it could boost rates 2 
percent or more to all customers, Xcel says. 

The utility is negotiating with the solar industry to resolve those concerns. The state 
Public Utilities Commission has said it will take up the issue later this month. Despite the 
uncertainty over the scope of the solar garden program, energy developers and cities are 
working on deals, hoping that issue will be resolved. 

david.shaffer@startribune.com 
612-673-7090







 

Memorandum 

 

Date: July 20, 2015 

 

To: Mayor and City Council  

 

From: Chief Doug Ebeltoft 

 

Re: Authorization to begin testing process for a Police Officer position  

 

Mayor and City Council Members, 

 

With the pending retirement of Officer Gary King on September 30, 2015, I am requesting to start the 

testing process on July 22, 2015 by advertising the position of police officer, accepting applications, 

provide written testing and conduct interviews to determine top candidates for the position.  

It is my intent to create an eligibility list for the future hire of a police officer which will allow the City of 

Spring Lake Park and the Police Department to be able to proceed with doing background checks on the 

top candidates and then make a tentative job offer to the appropriate candidate pending passing a 

psychological, chemical and physical examine. 

I am seeking authorization at this time for this process to minimize the amount of time that the police 

department will be short staffed and to maximize our ability to provide the citizens of our community 

with the police services that they are accustomed to and expect.    

This authorization is contingent upon the expiration (July 21, 2015) of Officer King’s time frame to 

rescind his retirement request. 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: MAYOR HANSEN AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: DANIEL R. BUCHHOLTZ, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

SUBJECT: MAUREEN GOERTZ RETIREMENT NOTICE 

DATE: JULY 16, 2015 

 

Maureen Goertz submitted her letter of resignation on Thursday, July 16.  Rene has served 

as the City’s Payroll/Assessment Clerk for 17 years.  Over that time, she has processed the 

City’s payroll that has become increasingly complex over that time, assisting employees 

with benefit and payroll questions, and answering citizen inquiries on special assessments.  

On behalf of our City staff, I would like to sincerely thank Rene for her service to the 

citizens of Spring Lake Park.  Her retirement is effective August 28, 2015. 

 

Staff is in the process of reviewing and updating the job description for the 

Payroll/Assessment Clerk position to reflect changes in the position over the years.  Once 

that is complete, staff will begin the work of recruiting for the position.  Recruitment for 

the position includes advertising for the position, accepting and scoring applications and 

conducting interviews to determine a finalist to present to the City Council for approval. 

 

Staff asks that the City Council accept Rene’s letter of resignation with sincere thanks for 

her years of service to the City and authorize staff to proceed with candidate recruitment 

for the position. 

 

If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 763-784-6491. 

 



 





 



 

 

 

 
City of Spring Lake Park  

Engineer’s Project Status Report 
 

To: Council Members and Staff  Re: Status Report for 7.20.15 Meeting       
 

From:  Phil Gravel     File No.: R-18GEN  
 

 

Note:  Updated information is shown in italics. 
 

2015 Sanitary Sewer Lining Project (193803135).  

This project includes lining and wye grouting in the northeast corner of the city.  The 

Contractor, Visu-Sewer, will begin preliminary televising.  A Pre-construction conference 

will be scheduled when the preliminary televising has been completed.                             

 
2015 Seal Coat Project (193803134).  

The pavement markings have been completed.  Next step is issue final payment.                   

 
2014-2015 Street Improvement Project (193801577).      

A majority of the work has been completed.  A punch-list inspection on the project has 

been prepared.  The punch-list includes several clean-up and seeding items that need to 

be addressed by the contractor.     

 

The public assessment hearing for 81st Avenue, Arthur Street, and the TH65 Service Drive 

will be held on August 17th.      

 

CSAH 35 Turn Lanes and Sidewalk (193802914).  

This project includes CSAH 35 improvements required as part of the SUP for 8299 Central 

Ave.  Preliminary plans are being revised based on comments received from Anoka 

County.  The wetland permitting process has started.  A purchase agreement for 

required wetland credits has been approved.   We are having some RCWD permit issues.        

 
MS4 Permit (193802936). 

The annual Public Meeting to discuss MS4 activities will be held at the July 20th meeting.     

 
Lift Station No. 1 Equipment (193802805). 

We have been working with the 3 equipment suppliers for to make schedule adjustments 

in lieu of the re-bidding of the lift station construction project.   

 
Lift Station No. 1 Reconstruction (193803115). 

Bids were rejected on May 18th.  Project will be re-bid this fall.              

 
Other issues/projects.    
 

We continue to work with T-Mobile and Sprint on their applications for antenna 

modifications.    There is an issue with T-Mobile and their handrail modification on the 

Able Street tower that needs to be resolved.     

 

 
Feel free to contact Harlan Olson, Cristina Mlejnek, Phil Carlson, Jim Engfer, Mark Rolfs, Tim Grinstead, Peter 

Allen, or me if you have any questions or require any additional information.   



 





 





 



 
CORRESPONDENCE 

  



 



















North Metro Telecommunications Commission 

Meeting Talking Points 
July 15, 2015 

 

 NMTV is covering the USA Cup Soccer Tournament.  In total, 30 games and Opening 

Ceremonies will be cablecast live.  Viewers can see the games on channel 15 and via the 

North Metro TV website.  DVD sales are typically quite strong for this event.      

 

 The new NMTV website has finally been launched.  There hasn't been a big PR 

campaign to advertise it yet, as there are some bugs to be worked out.  Everyone on staff 

is going through every process and detail to make sure it works the way we want it to.  It 

is hoped that everything is running smoothly be the end of July.   

 The Master Control portion of the HD Equipment Upgrade Analysis has been completed.  

Alpha Video presented the plan in early July, along with a preliminary plan for the 

production truck and studios.  Master Control will need to be upgraded first in any 

upgrade plan.  

 The Commission approved the NMTC 2016 Capital Budget at $301,000.  The Master 

Control Upgrade will be scheduled for the fall of 2015, with a completion date of 

December 2015.  The upgrade will be paid for with the approved 2015 capital budget and 

the recommended 2016 funds. The timing of the upgrade will allow us to split payments 

between the two years.  This will allow for a timely upgrade of Master Control without 

the need for bonding.  The capital budget also includes computer, software updates, and 

software licenses.    

 Negotiations with CenturyLink on a cable franchise continue.  We are very close, but 

need to resolve a couple of issues.  It should also be noted that Jim Campbell, one of the 

negotiators for CenturyLink, recently left the company.   

 

 

PLEASE encourage your council members to call me if they have any questions you can’t 

answer.  I would be happy to answer any questions they may have.  Heidi Arnson at NMTV.  

Direct line is 763-231-2801.  Email is harnson@northmetrotv.com.   



 














	New Business - Consideration of SunShare Community Solar Proposal.pdf
	Blank Page




